










































Shareholders’ Information
REGISTERED OFFICE

1-McLeod Road, Lahore
Tel: (92-42) 37225015-17
 (92-42) 37233515-17
Fax: (92-42) 37233518
 (92-42) 37351119

EXCHANGE LISTING
 
Atlas Honda Limited (the Company) is listed on Pakistan 
Stock Exchange Limited (PSX).

STOCK SYMBOL

The stock code for dealing in equity shares of the Company 
at Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited is ATLH.

LISTING FEES

The annual listing fees for the financial year 2017 - 18 were 
paid to the PSX and Central Depository Company of 
Pakistan Limited within the prescribed time limit.

STATUTORY COMPLIANCE

During the year, the Company has complied with all 
applicable provisions, filed all returns / forms and furnished 
all relevant particulars / information as required under the 
Companies Act 2017, Companies Ordinance 1984 (now 
repealed) and allied rules, the listing requirements and any 
other relevant laws, rules and regulations prescribed by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Date: June 28, 2018
Time: 11:00 A.M.
Venue: Avari Hotel, 87, Mall Road,     
 Lahore.

 
FINANCIAL CALENDAR

April 2018 Audited annual results for the year   
 ended March 31, 2018
June 2018  Mailing of annual reports 
June 2018  Annual General Meeting
July 2018 Unaudited first quarter financial results
November 2018  Unaudited half year financial results
January 2019  Unaudited third quarter financial results

DIVIDEND ANNOUNCEMENT

The Board of Directors of the Company has proposed a 
final cash dividend of Rs. 27 per share (270 %) for the year 
ended March 31, 2018 subject to approval by shareholders 
of the Company at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 

Last year, the Company has paid the cash dividend of
Rs. 18.5 per share (185%). 

DATES OF BOOK CLOSURE

The register of the members and shares transfer books of 
the Company will remain closed from June 14, 2018 to June 
28, 2018 (both days inclusive).

DATE OF DIVIDEND PAYMENT

The payment of dividend, upon declaration by shareholders 
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, will be made 
on or after June 28, 2018.

Last year, the Company has dispatched the cash dividend 
on June 19, 2017 after approval from shareholders at the 
53rd Annual General Meeting.

CIRCULATION OF ANNUAL REPORTS 
THROUGH CD/DVD/USB

As notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan (SECP) vide SRO 470(1)/2016, dated May 31, 
2016, and in continuation with the SRO 787(1)/2014 dated 
September 8, 2014, further supported by Section 223(6) of 
the Companies Act 2017 and approved by the Shareholders 
in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on June 
19, 2017, the Company shall circulate Annual Report 2018 
to its shareholders in the form of CD. Any member requiring 
printed copy of Annual Report 2018 may send a request 
using a Standard Request Form placed on Company 
website.

E-DIVIDEND MANDATE (MANDATORY)

Under the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 
2017, it is mandatory for a listed Company to pay cash 
dividend to its shareholders only through electronic mode 
directly into bank account designated by the entitled 
shareholders. In order to receive dividends directly into their 
bank account, shareholders are requested to fill in Dividend  
Mandate Form available on Company’s website i.e. 
http://www.atlashonda.com.pk and send it duly signed along 
with a copy of CNIC to the Registrar of the Company

The instrument appointing a proxy (duly signed by the 
shareholder appointing that proxy) should be deposited at 
the Company/share registrar not less than forty eight hours 
before the meeting.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

In pursuance of section 132 of the Companies Act, 2017, 
the Company holds a General Meeting of shareholders at 
least once a year. Every shareholder has a right to attend 
the General Meeting. The notice of such meeting is sent to 
all shareholders at least 21 days before the meeting and 
also advertised in at least one English and Urdu newspaper.

All shares issued by the Company carry equal voting rights. 
Generally, matters at the general meetings are decided by 
a show of hands in the first instance. The voting by show of 
hands operates on the principle of "One Member-One Vote". 
If majority of the shareholders raise their hands in favor of 
a particular resolution, it is taken as passed, unless a poll 
is demanded. 

WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY

The Company is operating the website 
www.atlashonda.com.pk containing updated information 
regarding the Company. The website contains the financial 
results of the Company together with the Company’s profile, 
the Atlas group philosophy and products of the Company.

CHANGE OF ADDRESS / E-MAIL ADDRESS

All registered shareholders should send information of 
changes of addresses and e-mail address, if any to the 
share registrar of the Company: 
M/s. Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt.) Limited.
H.M. House, 7-Bank Square, Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, 
Lahore
Phone: +92 (42) 37235081-82
Fax: +92 (42) 37358817

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The paid up capital of the Company is Rs. 1,034 million 
represented by 103.4 million shares of Rs. 10/- each. The 
balance sheet footing stands at Rs. 31.8 billion and net 
worth of Rs. 16 billion. 

The Company is a subsidiary of Shirazi Investments (Private) 
Limited holding 52.43% shareholding. Another major 
shareholder is Honda Motor Company Limited – Japan 
holding 35% of the shares.

Details of shares held by Directors / Sponsors / Executives 
are given in the Pattern of Shareholding.

M/S Hameed Majeed Associates (Private) Limited, H.M 
House, 7-Bank Square, Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, Lahore, 
Pakistan in case of physical shares. In case shares are held 
in CDC then Dividend Mandate Form must be submitted 
directly to shareholder’s broker/ participant/CDC account 
services.

WITHHOLDING OF TAX & ZAKAT ON DIVIDEND

As per the provisions of Section 150 of the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001, the withholding tax is deductible at source 
on the amount of dividend paid by the Company at the rate 
of 15% for filers and at the rate of 20% for non-filers.

In the light of clarification from Federal Board of Revenue, 
all the shareholders who intend to seek exemption from 
withholding of taxes on payment of dividend under clause 
47B of Part – IV of the Second Schedule of the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001, are requested to provide the valid 
Exemption Certificate under section 159(1) of the Income 
Tax Ordinance, 2001 duly issued by the concerned 
Commissioner of Inland Revenue in order to claim the said 
exemption.

Zakat is also deductible at source from the dividend at the 
rate of 2.5% of the face value of the share, other than 
corporate holders or individuals who have provided an 
undertaking for non-deduction of zakat.

SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM

The Company’s shares department is operated by M/s. 
Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt.) Limited. It is managed 
by a team of well-experienced professionals and is equipped 
with the necessary infrastructure and has in place the 
comprehensive set of systems and procedures for 
operational activities pertaining to shares and conducting 
the Registration function.

Share transfers received at the Share Registrar of the 
Company are registered within 30 days from the date of 
receipt, provided the documents are complete in all respects.

PROXIES

According to section 137 of the Companies Act, 2017 and 
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, 
every shareholder of the Company who is entitled to attend 
and vote at a General Meeting of the Company can appoint 
another member as his/her proxy to attend and vote instead 
of him/her. Every notice calling a General Meeting of the 
Company contains a statement that a shareholder entitled 
to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy, who ought 
to be a member of the Company.
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MARKET CAPITALIZATION, SHARE PRICE AND VOLUME DATA
The following table shows the monthly high, low and closing share prices of the Company and the volume of shares traded on 
the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited during the financial year ended March 31, 2018:

* Based on highest price

Apr 17 598.98 535.00 590.25 66,550 61.94

May 17 657.72 585.01 644.87 200,750 68.01

Jun 17 650.01 561.42 604.03 34,750 67.22

Jul 17 600.00 538.01 590.00 18,650 62.04

Aug 17 603.00 515.00 530.00 15,250 62.35

Sep 17 564.99 505.01 560.00 13,950 58.42

Oct 17 549.98 470.00 508.91 80,150 56.87

Nov 17 580.00 501.00 505.00 35,350 59.98

Dec 17 576.71 500.00 566.17 36,150 59.64

Jan 18 567.00 520.00 555.00 51,900 58.63

Feb 18 571.00 530.00 537.00 21,200 59.05

Mar 18 568.00 515.01 525.00 46,500 58.73

Months Highest
(Rs.)

Lowest
(Rs.)

Closing
(Rs.)

No. of
shares
traded

Market
Capitalization

in Value*
(Rs. in billion)

535

599

700

650

600

550

500

450

400

585

658

561

650

538

600

515

603

505

565

470

550

501

580

500

577

520

567

530

571

515

568

Highest (Rs.) Lowest (Rs.) Closing (Rs.)

Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18
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Chairman’s Review
The fiscal year 2017-18 remained a year of outperformance with achievement of significant targets ahead of plan. 
This was primarily driven by the Company’s attractive product range, continuous productivity and efficient cost 
management. The enhanced capacity together with planned capital investments strengthen the Company’s ability 
to grow further. All in all, the Company strongly believes that it has embarked on the path of sustainable growth.       

I am pleased to present the 54th Annual Report of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018.

MACROECONOMIC OVERVIEW

Pakistan’s economy has continued to grow at an encouraging pace but macroeconomic balances are widening. GDP is expected to 
reach a decade high level of 5.8%. The continued implementation of CPEC projects, new power generation capacity, sustained recovery 
of agriculture and strong growth in consumption were instrumental in achieving the recent performance. CPI inflation has remained 
stable averaging at 3.8% during first nine months of financial year 2017-18 mainly due to muted food inflation and lower than anticipated 
rise in fuel prices. Foreign Direct Investment improved to 4.4% which was primarily dominated by Chinese CPEC related inflows. On 
the fiscal front, FBR collected taxes worth Rs. 2,621 billion during first three quarters of financial year 2017-18, recording growth of 
16% as compared to corresponding period of last year. Accordingly, to maintain growth momentum and keep inflation under control, 
the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) has decided to marginally raise policy rate by 25 bps to 6.0% after keeping it unchanged since May 
2016.  

Pakistan’s external position continued to remain under stress. The main driver has been the surge in imports by 17.0% year on year 
basis, reflecting strong domestic demand, implementation of import-intensive CPEC projects and rising oil prices. In contrast, exports 
have bounced back by 12.0% after three years of continuous decline due to supportive government measures. Growth in home 
remittances remained muted, up slightly by 3.6%. Accordingly, elevated current account deficit of USD 12.0 billion in nine months of 
financial year 2017-18 and increased external obligations have raised external financing needs, taking a further toll on foreign exchange 
reserves which stood at USD 17.8 billion. In line with evolving fundamentals, the SBP allowed the rupee to lose by 9.4% against USD 
since December 2017. The performance of the stock market also remained lackluster as PSX 100 index dropped by 14.4% since its 
high in May 2017 of 53,217 to 45,560 points.

AGRICULTURE 

The agriculture sector continues to be corner stone with a contribution of 20% in the GDP and employment of 42% of the labor force. 
Better water availability, higher yields, attractive output prices and supportive government policies have provided impetus to the growth. 
Major Kharif crops such as sugarcane and rice surpassed their targets, while cotton managed to exceed last year’s production level. 
Other components of agriculture like livestock, fishing and forestry are also showing progressive growth. Barring chances of wheat 
target being missed by a slight margin, this sector is projected to register positive growth for the second consecutive year. 
 
LARGE SCALE MANUFACTURING (LSM)

The overall LSM growth, of 6.1% during financial year 2017-18, is appreciably higher than that observed during the corresponding 
period last year. The increased consumer spending led to a strong showing by durables such as automobile and electronics, while the 
ongoing infrastructure and construction activities stimulated the allied sectors of cement and steel. Encouragingly, various industrial 
players across different sectors are investing in capacity expansions and product diversification. Due to transition of fixed investment 
into additional productive capacity and with favorable trend in demand, LSM growth is expected to maintain its current momentum in 
the coming months.

THE TWO WHEELER INDUSTRY

The two-wheeler industry caters to Pakistan’s need for low-cost and fuel-efficient transport. A large proportion of the Country’s population 
therefore continues to prefer two-wheelers for their daily commuting purpose. The industry displayed robust performance during the 
outgoing year as well, with volumetric increase of about 15.0% compared to the previous year. Improved incomes in both rural and 
urban areas along with better economic fundamentals, stable fuel prices, rapid urbanization and security conditions have boosted the 
demand for two-wheelers.

THE COMPANY

For over five decades, the Company has been providing best-in-class mobility solutions to its customers. 
The Company is consistently adopting best technologies and keeping up with emerging trends to be able 
to stay ahead of competition through its products and services. The result is a brand that is trusted for 
reliability, durability and enduring stakeholder value. During the year under review, the Company joined 
the one million unit unique club. Focus on operational excellence, maintaining quality, continued investment 
in capacity and cost reduction has helped the Company in achieving record results.
  
SEGMENTAL REVIEW

The Company further strengthened its market leadership in an environment marked by volatilities and 
competition. Growing economic well-being, better law & order situation and stable prices together with 
enhanced capacity resulted in easing customers’ access to mobility and generated the highest ever 
demand for Honda bikes. As a result, the Company crossed a landmark by selling over 1,088,000 units. 

In the entry segment of 70 cc motorcycles, despite strong competition, the Company has witnessed an 
overwhelming demand and continues to reap benefits through its brands “CD 70” and “CD 70 Dream”. 
The Company has achieved growth of 17% over sales of last year in this category. Strong domestic 
demand was further consolidated by introducing minor model changes (MMC) in CD 70 and CD 70 Dream. 
These MMCs provided a successful blend of modern and traditional features, with an uncompromising 
everyday usability.
  
Sales of the Company’s product in 100 cc segment, “Pridor”, remained encouraging and recorded an 
increase of 10% over last year. Through this model, the Company continues to provide its customers a 
product powered by “commuting with comfort and maximum fuel efficiency”. Econo run competitions, free 
checkup camps and other exciting campaigns were carried out to further deepen market penetration in 
this category.
 
The 125 cc category persistently gained share in the overall motorcycle industry and recorded growth of 
18% over last year. This was because of evolving customer preferences for higher engine displacements 
and strong urban demand. The Company continued to reinforce its leadership by offering products that 
meet customers’ expectation in terms of design, power and functionality. During the year, the Company 
introduced a MMC of CG125 which earned positive feedback from customers. 

On May 3, 2017, the Company launched, “CB 150 F”, its first model in the 150 cc category. The new bike 
has been designed to fulfill customers’ needs and aspirations for mobility, setting benchmarks in technology, 
style and quality. This newly launched model has received an overwhelming response from up-scale 
customers and the demand is expected to maintain a healthy pace.

The Spare Parts business registered an impressive growth of 15%. The Company was able to enhance 
sales of Atlas Honda “Genuine Parts” through creative marketing ideas, promoting sales through service 
workshops and a larger & improved product portfolio. During the year under review, several advertising 
and customer care campaigns addressed the importance of using genuine parts and engine oil for 
maintaining overall health of motorcycles. These efforts along with a wider distribution network and improved 
customer accessibility helped to increase revenue to over Rs. 7.1 billion. However, the unabated influx of 
spurious parts continues to pose a threat to businesses in the organized sector.       

PERFORMANCE SCORECARD

The Company remains committed to deliver on its long term objectives of sustainable growth and maximizing 
value creation. These objectives are being achieved by concentrating business resources to achieve 
operational excellence, optimize cost structure, execution of growth projects and investment in new 
technologies. 

As a result of these efforts, the Company registered net sales of Rs. 77.5 billion, which represents an 
increase of 20% over previous year. The improvement in sales translated in higher gross profits for the 
year ended March 31, 2018 of Rs. 8.3 billion, up by 22%. Strong contributions came from cost efficiencies, 
better sales mix and other operational measures. Sales and marketing expenses rose to Rs. 1.9 billion, 
a year on year increase of 13.6% which is attributable to higher volume, spending on launch of new model 

and other promotional campaigns to support the core business. Administrative expenses registered an 
increase of 5.4% over the corresponding year primarily due to an increase in personnel cost and general 
inflation. Other income, net of financial charges, contributed Rs. 0.9 million to the bottom-line, slightly 
lower than the comparative year on account of negative return on stock funds. The impressive topline 
allowed the Company to outperform its previous best efforts and achieve ever highest profit before tax of 
Rs. 6.3 billion, an increase of 23%. Net profit after tax rose to Rs. 4.7 billion from 3.75 billion, an increase 
of 24% over last year. This translated into Earnings per Share (EPS) of Rs. 45.1 as against Rs. 36.29 of 
last year.

Atlas Honda Limited has been a debt free Company for the past seven years and therefore incurs no 
borrowing cost. Finance cost represents bank charges on transactional cost paid to banks for collection 
from customers on behalf of the Company throughout Pakistan. Free cash flow from operations during 
the year stood at Rs. 9.2 billion.  This has been deployed in capital assets, short term investments and 
payment of dividend. Additions to capital assets mainly represent expansion of production facilities and 
balancing, modernization and replacement of existing manufacturing facilities.

During the year, the Company contributed an amount of Rs. 16.1 billion to the Government and its agencies 
on account of various taxes and levies. The Atlas Group, of which the Company is a constituent member, 
contributed Rs. 55 billion in all towards the national exchequer. This makes Atlas Group one of the highest 
tax prayers in the country with over 1% of Government’s total revenue. 

DIVIDEND POLICY

Bearing in mind the strategic concerns, business needs and Company’s ability to generate cash, the Board 
of Directors is pleased to propose cash dividend of Rs. 27.0 per share for the year 2017-18 which is in 
continuation of Company’s policy of paying high dividends. This amounts to Rs. 2.79 billion, which is the 
highest in the Company’s history.    

MANUFACTURING EXCELLENCE

The Company continues to invest in the resources and capabilities which underpin its success. Operational 
efficiencies in terms of enhancement in productivity, output and capacities has been the essential core 
behind all activities throughout the year. During the year under review, the capacity of Engine Machining 
Area was upgraded to 1.25 million units. Further, the objective of “stabilized Production” was accomplished 
through a successful production ramp up in Assembly plant. This has helped the Company in fulfilling, to 
an extent, the ever-increasing market demand. The Company also recognizes that development of 
resources across its supply chain is critical in maintaining its long term competitiveness. Accordingly, the 
Company is in constant collaboration with its suppliers for utilizing their expertise and benefitting from 
increased economies of scale. 

As part of sustainable development initiatives, the Company continued to implement various breakthrough 
ideas on energy and fuel consumption. During the year, the Company completed its second project of 
360KW solar panels installation. This initiative, along with the results of “Waste Heat Recovery” for utilizing 
heat emissions from Generators, helped to reduce electricity bills despite continuous rise in energy prices. 
Further, maintenance of 5-S and safety is emphasized by re-establishing systems and methods through 
regular audit and evaluation of compliance.  

BUSINESS PROCESS RE-ENGINEERING 

As optimization of processes is vital for success of the Company in the long run, a number of Kaizen 
activities were performed, some of which are listed below:
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Other components of agriculture like livestock, fishing and forestry are also showing progressive growth. Barring chances of wheat 
target being missed by a slight margin, this sector is projected to register positive growth for the second consecutive year. 
 
LARGE SCALE MANUFACTURING (LSM)

The overall LSM growth, of 6.1% during financial year 2017-18, is appreciably higher than that observed during the corresponding 
period last year. The increased consumer spending led to a strong showing by durables such as automobile and electronics, while the 
ongoing infrastructure and construction activities stimulated the allied sectors of cement and steel. Encouragingly, various industrial 
players across different sectors are investing in capacity expansions and product diversification. Due to transition of fixed investment 
into additional productive capacity and with favorable trend in demand, LSM growth is expected to maintain its current momentum in 
the coming months.

THE TWO WHEELER INDUSTRY

The two-wheeler industry caters to Pakistan’s need for low-cost and fuel-efficient transport. A large proportion of the Country’s population 
therefore continues to prefer two-wheelers for their daily commuting purpose. The industry displayed robust performance during the 
outgoing year as well, with volumetric increase of about 15.0% compared to the previous year. Improved incomes in both rural and 
urban areas along with better economic fundamentals, stable fuel prices, rapid urbanization and security conditions have boosted the 
demand for two-wheelers.

THE COMPANY

For over five decades, the Company has been providing best-in-class mobility solutions to its customers. 
The Company is consistently adopting best technologies and keeping up with emerging trends to be able 
to stay ahead of competition through its products and services. The result is a brand that is trusted for 
reliability, durability and enduring stakeholder value. During the year under review, the Company joined 
the one million unit unique club. Focus on operational excellence, maintaining quality, continued investment 
in capacity and cost reduction has helped the Company in achieving record results.
  
SEGMENTAL REVIEW

The Company further strengthened its market leadership in an environment marked by volatilities and 
competition. Growing economic well-being, better law & order situation and stable prices together with 
enhanced capacity resulted in easing customers’ access to mobility and generated the highest ever 
demand for Honda bikes. As a result, the Company crossed a landmark by selling over 1,088,000 units. 

In the entry segment of 70 cc motorcycles, despite strong competition, the Company has witnessed an 
overwhelming demand and continues to reap benefits through its brands “CD 70” and “CD 70 Dream”. 
The Company has achieved growth of 17% over sales of last year in this category. Strong domestic 
demand was further consolidated by introducing minor model changes (MMC) in CD 70 and CD 70 Dream. 
These MMCs provided a successful blend of modern and traditional features, with an uncompromising 
everyday usability.
  
Sales of the Company’s product in 100 cc segment, “Pridor”, remained encouraging and recorded an 
increase of 10% over last year. Through this model, the Company continues to provide its customers a 
product powered by “commuting with comfort and maximum fuel efficiency”. Econo run competitions, free 
checkup camps and other exciting campaigns were carried out to further deepen market penetration in 
this category.
 
The 125 cc category persistently gained share in the overall motorcycle industry and recorded growth of 
18% over last year. This was because of evolving customer preferences for higher engine displacements 
and strong urban demand. The Company continued to reinforce its leadership by offering products that 
meet customers’ expectation in terms of design, power and functionality. During the year, the Company 
introduced a MMC of CG125 which earned positive feedback from customers. 

On May 3, 2017, the Company launched, “CB 150 F”, its first model in the 150 cc category. The new bike 
has been designed to fulfill customers’ needs and aspirations for mobility, setting benchmarks in technology, 
style and quality. This newly launched model has received an overwhelming response from up-scale 
customers and the demand is expected to maintain a healthy pace.

The Spare Parts business registered an impressive growth of 15%. The Company was able to enhance 
sales of Atlas Honda “Genuine Parts” through creative marketing ideas, promoting sales through service 
workshops and a larger & improved product portfolio. During the year under review, several advertising 
and customer care campaigns addressed the importance of using genuine parts and engine oil for 
maintaining overall health of motorcycles. These efforts along with a wider distribution network and improved 
customer accessibility helped to increase revenue to over Rs. 7.1 billion. However, the unabated influx of 
spurious parts continues to pose a threat to businesses in the organized sector.       

PERFORMANCE SCORECARD

The Company remains committed to deliver on its long term objectives of sustainable growth and maximizing 
value creation. These objectives are being achieved by concentrating business resources to achieve 
operational excellence, optimize cost structure, execution of growth projects and investment in new 
technologies. 

As a result of these efforts, the Company registered net sales of Rs. 77.5 billion, which represents an 
increase of 20% over previous year. The improvement in sales translated in higher gross profits for the 
year ended March 31, 2018 of Rs. 8.3 billion, up by 22%. Strong contributions came from cost efficiencies, 
better sales mix and other operational measures. Sales and marketing expenses rose to Rs. 1.9 billion, 
a year on year increase of 13.6% which is attributable to higher volume, spending on launch of new model 

and other promotional campaigns to support the core business. Administrative expenses registered an 
increase of 5.4% over the corresponding year primarily due to an increase in personnel cost and general 
inflation. Other income, net of financial charges, contributed Rs. 0.9 million to the bottom-line, slightly 
lower than the comparative year on account of negative return on stock funds. The impressive topline 
allowed the Company to outperform its previous best efforts and achieve ever highest profit before tax of 
Rs. 6.3 billion, an increase of 23%. Net profit after tax rose to Rs. 4.7 billion from 3.75 billion, an increase 
of 24% over last year. This translated into Earnings per Share (EPS) of Rs. 45.1 as against Rs. 36.29 of 
last year.

Atlas Honda Limited has been a debt free Company for the past seven years and therefore incurs no 
borrowing cost. Finance cost represents bank charges on transactional cost paid to banks for collection 
from customers on behalf of the Company throughout Pakistan. Free cash flow from operations during 
the year stood at Rs. 9.2 billion.  This has been deployed in capital assets, short term investments and 
payment of dividend. Additions to capital assets mainly represent expansion of production facilities and 
balancing, modernization and replacement of existing manufacturing facilities.

During the year, the Company contributed an amount of Rs. 16.1 billion to the Government and its agencies 
on account of various taxes and levies. The Atlas Group, of which the Company is a constituent member, 
contributed Rs. 55 billion in all towards the national exchequer. This makes Atlas Group one of the highest 
tax prayers in the country with over 1% of Government’s total revenue. 

DIVIDEND POLICY

Bearing in mind the strategic concerns, business needs and Company’s ability to generate cash, the Board 
of Directors is pleased to propose cash dividend of Rs. 27.0 per share for the year 2017-18 which is in 
continuation of Company’s policy of paying high dividends. This amounts to Rs. 2.79 billion, which is the 
highest in the Company’s history.    

MANUFACTURING EXCELLENCE

The Company continues to invest in the resources and capabilities which underpin its success. Operational 
efficiencies in terms of enhancement in productivity, output and capacities has been the essential core 
behind all activities throughout the year. During the year under review, the capacity of Engine Machining 
Area was upgraded to 1.25 million units. Further, the objective of “stabilized Production” was accomplished 
through a successful production ramp up in Assembly plant. This has helped the Company in fulfilling, to 
an extent, the ever-increasing market demand. The Company also recognizes that development of 
resources across its supply chain is critical in maintaining its long term competitiveness. Accordingly, the 
Company is in constant collaboration with its suppliers for utilizing their expertise and benefitting from 
increased economies of scale. 

As part of sustainable development initiatives, the Company continued to implement various breakthrough 
ideas on energy and fuel consumption. During the year, the Company completed its second project of 
360KW solar panels installation. This initiative, along with the results of “Waste Heat Recovery” for utilizing 
heat emissions from Generators, helped to reduce electricity bills despite continuous rise in energy prices. 
Further, maintenance of 5-S and safety is emphasized by re-establishing systems and methods through 
regular audit and evaluation of compliance.  

BUSINESS PROCESS RE-ENGINEERING 

As optimization of processes is vital for success of the Company in the long run, a number of Kaizen 
activities were performed, some of which are listed below:
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I am pleased to present the 54th Annual Report of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018.

MACROECONOMIC OVERVIEW

Pakistan’s economy has continued to grow at an encouraging pace but macroeconomic balances are widening. GDP is expected to 
reach a decade high level of 5.8%. The continued implementation of CPEC projects, new power generation capacity, sustained recovery 
of agriculture and strong growth in consumption were instrumental in achieving the recent performance. CPI inflation has remained 
stable averaging at 3.8% during first nine months of financial year 2017-18 mainly due to muted food inflation and lower than anticipated 
rise in fuel prices. Foreign Direct Investment improved to 4.4% which was primarily dominated by Chinese CPEC related inflows. On 
the fiscal front, FBR collected taxes worth Rs. 2,621 billion during first three quarters of financial year 2017-18, recording growth of 
16% as compared to corresponding period of last year. Accordingly, to maintain growth momentum and keep inflation under control, 
the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) has decided to marginally raise policy rate by 25 bps to 6.0% after keeping it unchanged since May 
2016.  

Pakistan’s external position continued to remain under stress. The main driver has been the surge in imports by 17.0% year on year 
basis, reflecting strong domestic demand, implementation of import-intensive CPEC projects and rising oil prices. In contrast, exports 
have bounced back by 12.0% after three years of continuous decline due to supportive government measures. Growth in home 
remittances remained muted, up slightly by 3.6%. Accordingly, elevated current account deficit of USD 12.0 billion in nine months of 
financial year 2017-18 and increased external obligations have raised external financing needs, taking a further toll on foreign exchange 
reserves which stood at USD 17.8 billion. In line with evolving fundamentals, the SBP allowed the rupee to lose by 9.4% against USD 
since December 2017. The performance of the stock market also remained lackluster as PSX 100 index dropped by 14.4% since its 
high in May 2017 of 53,217 to 45,560 points.

AGRICULTURE 

The agriculture sector continues to be corner stone with a contribution of 20% in the GDP and employment of 42% of the labor force. 
Better water availability, higher yields, attractive output prices and supportive government policies have provided impetus to the growth. 
Major Kharif crops such as sugarcane and rice surpassed their targets, while cotton managed to exceed last year’s production level. 
Other components of agriculture like livestock, fishing and forestry are also showing progressive growth. Barring chances of wheat 
target being missed by a slight margin, this sector is projected to register positive growth for the second consecutive year. 
 
LARGE SCALE MANUFACTURING (LSM)

The overall LSM growth, of 6.1% during financial year 2017-18, is appreciably higher than that observed during the corresponding 
period last year. The increased consumer spending led to a strong showing by durables such as automobile and electronics, while the 
ongoing infrastructure and construction activities stimulated the allied sectors of cement and steel. Encouragingly, various industrial 
players across different sectors are investing in capacity expansions and product diversification. Due to transition of fixed investment 
into additional productive capacity and with favorable trend in demand, LSM growth is expected to maintain its current momentum in 
the coming months.

THE TWO WHEELER INDUSTRY

The two-wheeler industry caters to Pakistan’s need for low-cost and fuel-efficient transport. A large proportion of the Country’s population 
therefore continues to prefer two-wheelers for their daily commuting purpose. The industry displayed robust performance during the 
outgoing year as well, with volumetric increase of about 15.0% compared to the previous year. Improved incomes in both rural and 
urban areas along with better economic fundamentals, stable fuel prices, rapid urbanization and security conditions have boosted the 
demand for two-wheelers.

THE COMPANY

For over five decades, the Company has been providing best-in-class mobility solutions to its customers. 
The Company is consistently adopting best technologies and keeping up with emerging trends to be able 
to stay ahead of competition through its products and services. The result is a brand that is trusted for 
reliability, durability and enduring stakeholder value. During the year under review, the Company joined 
the one million unit unique club. Focus on operational excellence, maintaining quality, continued investment 
in capacity and cost reduction has helped the Company in achieving record results.
  
SEGMENTAL REVIEW

The Company further strengthened its market leadership in an environment marked by volatilities and 
competition. Growing economic well-being, better law & order situation and stable prices together with 
enhanced capacity resulted in easing customers’ access to mobility and generated the highest ever 
demand for Honda bikes. As a result, the Company crossed a landmark by selling over 1,088,000 units. 

In the entry segment of 70 cc motorcycles, despite strong competition, the Company has witnessed an 
overwhelming demand and continues to reap benefits through its brands “CD 70” and “CD 70 Dream”. 
The Company has achieved growth of 17% over sales of last year in this category. Strong domestic 
demand was further consolidated by introducing minor model changes (MMC) in CD 70 and CD 70 Dream. 
These MMCs provided a successful blend of modern and traditional features, with an uncompromising 
everyday usability.
  
Sales of the Company’s product in 100 cc segment, “Pridor”, remained encouraging and recorded an 
increase of 10% over last year. Through this model, the Company continues to provide its customers a 
product powered by “commuting with comfort and maximum fuel efficiency”. Econo run competitions, free 
checkup camps and other exciting campaigns were carried out to further deepen market penetration in 
this category.
 
The 125 cc category persistently gained share in the overall motorcycle industry and recorded growth of 
18% over last year. This was because of evolving customer preferences for higher engine displacements 
and strong urban demand. The Company continued to reinforce its leadership by offering products that 
meet customers’ expectation in terms of design, power and functionality. During the year, the Company 
introduced a MMC of CG125 which earned positive feedback from customers. 

On May 3, 2017, the Company launched, “CB 150 F”, its first model in the 150 cc category. The new bike 
has been designed to fulfill customers’ needs and aspirations for mobility, setting benchmarks in technology, 
style and quality. This newly launched model has received an overwhelming response from up-scale 
customers and the demand is expected to maintain a healthy pace.

The Spare Parts business registered an impressive growth of 15%. The Company was able to enhance 
sales of Atlas Honda “Genuine Parts” through creative marketing ideas, promoting sales through service 
workshops and a larger & improved product portfolio. During the year under review, several advertising 
and customer care campaigns addressed the importance of using genuine parts and engine oil for 
maintaining overall health of motorcycles. These efforts along with a wider distribution network and improved 
customer accessibility helped to increase revenue to over Rs. 7.1 billion. However, the unabated influx of 
spurious parts continues to pose a threat to businesses in the organized sector.       

PERFORMANCE SCORECARD

The Company remains committed to deliver on its long term objectives of sustainable growth and maximizing 
value creation. These objectives are being achieved by concentrating business resources to achieve 
operational excellence, optimize cost structure, execution of growth projects and investment in new 
technologies. 

As a result of these efforts, the Company registered net sales of Rs. 77.5 billion, which represents an 
increase of 20% over previous year. The improvement in sales translated in higher gross profits for the 
year ended March 31, 2018 of Rs. 8.3 billion, up by 22%. Strong contributions came from cost efficiencies, 
better sales mix and other operational measures. Sales and marketing expenses rose to Rs. 1.9 billion, 
a year on year increase of 13.6% which is attributable to higher volume, spending on launch of new model 

and other promotional campaigns to support the core business. Administrative expenses registered an 
increase of 5.4% over the corresponding year primarily due to an increase in personnel cost and general 
inflation. Other income, net of financial charges, contributed Rs. 0.9 million to the bottom-line, slightly 
lower than the comparative year on account of negative return on stock funds. The impressive topline 
allowed the Company to outperform its previous best efforts and achieve ever highest profit before tax of 
Rs. 6.3 billion, an increase of 23%. Net profit after tax rose to Rs. 4.7 billion from 3.75 billion, an increase 
of 24% over last year. This translated into Earnings per Share (EPS) of Rs. 45.1 as against Rs. 36.29 of 
last year.

Atlas Honda Limited has been a debt free Company for the past seven years and therefore incurs no 
borrowing cost. Finance cost represents bank charges on transactional cost paid to banks for collection 
from customers on behalf of the Company throughout Pakistan. Free cash flow from operations during 
the year stood at Rs. 9.2 billion.  This has been deployed in capital assets, short term investments and 
payment of dividend. Additions to capital assets mainly represent expansion of production facilities and 
balancing, modernization and replacement of existing manufacturing facilities.

During the year, the Company contributed an amount of Rs. 16.1 billion to the Government and its agencies 
on account of various taxes and levies. The Atlas Group, of which the Company is a constituent member, 
contributed Rs. 55 billion in all towards the national exchequer. This makes Atlas Group one of the highest 
tax prayers in the country with over 1% of Government’s total revenue. 

DIVIDEND POLICY

Bearing in mind the strategic concerns, business needs and Company’s ability to generate cash, the Board 
of Directors is pleased to propose cash dividend of Rs. 27.0 per share for the year 2017-18 which is in 
continuation of Company’s policy of paying high dividends. This amounts to Rs. 2.79 billion, which is the 
highest in the Company’s history.    

MANUFACTURING EXCELLENCE

The Company continues to invest in the resources and capabilities which underpin its success. Operational 
efficiencies in terms of enhancement in productivity, output and capacities has been the essential core 
behind all activities throughout the year. During the year under review, the capacity of Engine Machining 
Area was upgraded to 1.25 million units. Further, the objective of “stabilized Production” was accomplished 
through a successful production ramp up in Assembly plant. This has helped the Company in fulfilling, to 
an extent, the ever-increasing market demand. The Company also recognizes that development of 
resources across its supply chain is critical in maintaining its long term competitiveness. Accordingly, the 
Company is in constant collaboration with its suppliers for utilizing their expertise and benefitting from 
increased economies of scale. 

As part of sustainable development initiatives, the Company continued to implement various breakthrough 
ideas on energy and fuel consumption. During the year, the Company completed its second project of 
360KW solar panels installation. This initiative, along with the results of “Waste Heat Recovery” for utilizing 
heat emissions from Generators, helped to reduce electricity bills despite continuous rise in energy prices. 
Further, maintenance of 5-S and safety is emphasized by re-establishing systems and methods through 
regular audit and evaluation of compliance.  

BUSINESS PROCESS RE-ENGINEERING 

As optimization of processes is vital for success of the Company in the long run, a number of Kaizen 
activities were performed, some of which are listed below:

Environment improvement in Die Casting by 
installing mist collectors 

Renewable Energy Source enhancement 
through installation of Solar Power

Localization of LPDC dies & Resourcing of Tools 
and consumables

Improved productivity by automation of part 
transfer through autoloaders and conveyor 

Increase in number of fuel tanks per hanger in 
paint shop

Introduction of Multi Spindle and 3-Way)
machines to achieve production efficiency
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AWARDS

It gives me great pleasure that following awards were received by the Company:

 Top 25 Companies Award by Pakistan Stock Exchange for the financial year 2016

 Best Corporate Report Award in “Engineering Sector” by the Joint Committee of ICAP and ICMAP

 Best Sustainability Report Award  by the Joint Committee of ICAP and ICMAP

 Awards by National Forum for Environment & Health in the categories of Corporate Social Responsibility Report, Research &  
 Publication and Environment & Waste Management.
 
FUTURE OUTLOOK

The current progress shows that Pakistan’s economy is well poised to maintain growth. However, in order to achieve virtuous equilibrium 
of high growth and controlled inflation, there is an urgent need to address long standing structural reforms in the fiscal and external 
sectors.  Given the huge current account deficit along with the size of maturing loans, it is imperative for the government to ensure 
that estimated official inflows are realized. Going forward, well-targeted diplomatic exchange with the global community, monetary 
tightening, stronger fiscal discipline and decisive efforts to contain losses in public enterprises would help to address these concerns. 
Besides, continuous progress on CPEC will continue to provide impetus to the economy. On the other hand, an upbeat industrial and 
agricultural outlook is going to have a positive spillover effect on the overall economy.  If the economy regains its balance post general 
elections, fundamentals are strong enough to push it towards a high growth path. This would encourage the demand for two wheelers 
due to its role as main source of motorized transportation. However, continuous depreciation of Pak Rupee and rising material prices 
may keep a check on this growth momentum.  

With sights set on sustained and qualitative long term growth, the Company strives for the best use of resources and operational 
excellence leading to significant value creation for the stakeholders. Atlas Honda is going through a dynamic phase where skills, 
technologies and scales are being developed for this decade and the next. With the enhanced capacity and improved competitiveness 
the Company is well positioned to grow the two wheeler market together with its own share therein. In this regard, principles of “Atlas 
Way” and “Atlas Systems” continue to remain the corner stone of our business philosophy.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Atlas Group takes great pride in its joint venture with Honda Motor Company Limited and would like to acknowledge their continued 
support and cooperation in maintaining high standards of excellence. I take this opportunity to thank our valued customers for the 
trust they continue to place in us, the management team for its sincere efforts, the Board of Directors for their guidance, Mr. Saquib 
H. Shirazi for his inspiring leadership and all stakeholders - Bankers, Dealers, Vendors, Associates and Shareholders for helping build 
Atlas Honda Limited into a unique company.

 

Date:  April 30, 2018              Yusuf H. Shirazi
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Directors’ Report to Shareholders
The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their report together with the 54th Annual Report of the Company along with 
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018.  

Operating Results

The operating results of the Company are summarized as follows:
   Year ended Year ended
   March 31, March 31,
   2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----
Profit before taxation   

Taxation  6,264,846  5,092,742

   Current  1,567,943  1,159,131
   Prior Years  3,012  77,910
   Deferred  30,256  103,222

   1,601,211  1,340,263

Profit after taxation  4,663,635  3,752,479

Dividends and Appropriations
    
The Directors have recommended a final cash dividend of Rs. 27.0 (2017: Rs. 18.5) per share. Accordingly, the appropriation of profit will 
be as under:    
   Year ended Year ended
   March 31, March 31,
   2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----
 
Profit available for appropriation  6,934,537  5,191,349
Appropriation:   
   Transfer to General Reserves  1,500,000  1,000,000
   Cash Dividend 270% (2017: 185%)  2,791,979  1,913,022

   4,291,979  2,913,022

Un-appropriate profit carried forward  2,642,558  2,278,327

Earnings per Share

The Basic and Diluted earnings per share after tax is Rs. 45.10 (2017: Rs. 36.29).

Holding company

Shirazi Investments (Pvt.) Limited, incorporated in Pakistan, is the holding company of Atlas Honda Limited with 52.43% shares.
 
Chairman’s Review

The Chairman's review included in the Annual Report deals inter alia with the nature of business, performance of the Company, 
explanation of significant deviations from last year, future prospects and uncertainties.

Board of Directors and its Committees

The Board:
The Board comprises of one independent Director, three executive and four non-executive Directors. The Directors of the Company 
were re-elected in Extraordinary General meeting of the Company held on March 14, 2017. On March 30, 2018, Mr. Yasutaka Uda 
and Mr. Susumu Mitsuishi resigned as Directors and Mr. Yukitoshi Fujisaka and Mr. Hironobu Yoshimura were appointed in their places 
respectively on April 5, 2018. The Board places on record its appreciation for the valuable contributions made by the outgoing Directors 
and welcome the new Directors.
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Human Resource and Remuneration (HR&R) Committee 
The Committee meets to review and recommend all elements of the compensation, organization and employee development policies 
relating to the senior executives’ remuneration and to approve all matters relating to the remunerations of the executive directors and 
members of the management committee. The CEO of the Company and the Head of HR of Atlas Honda attended the Human Resource 
and Remuneration Committee meeting. The Committee met once during 2017 - 18. 

Board Audit Committee (BAC)
The Board Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, primarily in reviewing and reporting financial 
and non-financial information to share-holders, systems of internal control and risk management and the audit process. It has the 
autonomy to call for information from management and to consult directly with the external auditors or advisors as considered 
appropriate. The Chief Financial Officer regularly attends the Board Audit Committee meetings by invitation to present the accounts. 
After each meeting, the Chairman of the Committee reports to the Board. The Committee met 4 times during 2017-18. 

Meetings of the Board and its Committees in 2017-18

During the year, four meetings of Board of Directors (BOD), four meetings of the BAC and one meeting of the HR&R Committee were 
held. All the meetings were held in Pakistan. The attendance of the Directors and the number of their directorships in listed companies, 
including Atlas Honda Limited are as follows:

Performance Evaluation of Board of Directors and Committees of the Board

The evaluation of Board’s role of oversight and its effectiveness is continual process, which is appraised by the Board itself. The core 
areas of focus are:

• Alignment of corporate goals and objectives with the vision and mission of the Company;
• Strategy formulation for sustainable operation;
• Board’s independence; and
• Evaluation of Board’s Committees performance in relation to discharging their responsibilities set out in respective terms of reference.

Review of CEO’s Performance

The performance of the CEO is formally appraised through the evaluation system which is based on quantitative and qualitative values. 
It includes the performance of the business, the accomplishment of objectives with reference to profits, organization building, succession 
planning and corporate success.

Directors’ Remuneration

The remuneration of the Board members is approved by the Board itself. However, in accordance with the Code of Corporate Governance, 
it is ensured that no Director takes part in deciding his own remuneration. The Company does not pay remuneration to non-executive 
directors except fee for attending the meetings. In order to retain the best talent, the Company’s remuneration policies are structured 
in line with prevailing industry trends and business practices. For information on remuneration of Directors and CEO in 2017-18, please 
refer notes to the Financial Statements.

 1.  Mr. Yusuf H. Shirazi 4 Re-elected on March 14, 2017 - - 3/4 - -
 2.  Mr. Saquib H. Shirazi 4 -do- - � 4/4 - 1/1
 3.  Mr. Sanaullah Qureshi 1 -do- � � 3/4 4/4 1/1
 4.  Mr. Yasutaka Uda 1 Resigned on March 30, 2018 - - 4/4 - -
 5.  Mr. Abid Naqvi 2 Re-elected on March 14, 2017 � - 4/4 3/4 -
 6.  Mr. Jawaid Iqbal Ahmed 2 -do- � � 4/4 4/4 1/1
 7.  Mr. Hirofumi Yada 1 Co-opted on April 20, 2017 - - 3/4 - -
 8.  Mr. Susumu Mitsuishi 2 Co-opted on April 20, 2017
     resigned on March 30, 2018 - - 4/4 - -

 9.  Mr. Yukitoshi Fujisaka 1 Co-opted on April 5, 2018 - - 0/4 - -
 10.  Mr. Hironobu Yoshimura 2 Co-opted on April 5, 2018 - - 0/4 - -

Sr. # Director

Committee
Board
Audit

Committee

HR & 
Remuneration

Committee
Directorship

Attendance

Board of
Directors

Status Board
Audit

Committee

HR & 
Remuneration

Committee
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External Auditors

The retiring auditors M/s ShineWing Hameed Chaudhri & Co. Chartered Accountants, being eligible, offered themselves for 
re-appointment. The Audit Committee has recommended their re-appointment as auditors of the Company for the year 2018-19.

Internal Control Framework

The report on internal control Framework, is presented in the ‘Sustainability Report’, which forms a part of this Annual Report.

Internal Audit

Atlas Honda has an independent Internal Audit function. The Board Audit Committee quarterly reviews the appropriateness of 
resources and authority of this function. The Head of Internal Audit functionally reports to the Audit Committee. The Board Audit 
Committee approves the audit plan, based on an annual and quarterly assessment of the operating areas. The Internal Audit 
function carries out reviews on the financial, operational and compliance controls, and reports on findings to the Board Audit 
Committee, Chief Executive and the divisional management.

Material changes

There have been no material changes since March 31, 2018 to date of the report and the Company has not entered into any 
commitment during this period, which would have an adverse impact on the financial position of the Company. 

Pattern of Shareholding

The pattern of shareholding of the Company is annexed to this report.

Communication

The Company focuses on the importance of the communication with the shareholders.  The annual, half yearly and quarterly 
reports are distributed to them within the time specified in the Companies Act, 2017. The activities of the Company are updated 
on its web site at www.atlashonda.com.pk, on timely basis. 

Safeguarding of Records

The Company puts great emphasis for storage and safe custody of its financial records. The Company is using SAP for recording 
its financial information. The access to electronic documentation has been secured through implementation of a comprehensive 
password protected authorization matrix in SAP-ERP system.

Business Continuity Plan

As part of Business Continuity Plan, remote disaster recovery sites have been adequately set up for maintaining backup server 
and data in case our primary server encounters any issues.
 
Human Resource Management

Human resource planning and management is one of the most important considerations with the senior management. The 
Company has established a HR&R Committee which is involved in the selection, evaluation, compensation and succession 
planning of key management personnel. It is also involved in recommending improvements in the human resource policies and 
procedures and their periodic review. The details of human resource policies are presented in the ‘Sustainability Report’ which 
forms an integral part of this Annual Report.

Health, Safety and Environment
 
We strongly believe in maintaining the highest standards in health, safety and environment (HSE) to ensure the well-being of 
the people who work with us as well as of the communities where we operate.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company considers social, environmental, and ethical matters in the context of the overall business environment. The 
Company is committed to work in the best interest of all the stakeholders, in particular the community in which we live and forms 
our customer base. The report on Corporate Social Responsibilities, including its approach to health and safety, human resources, 
social, environmental and other related issues are presented in the ‘Sustainability Report’, which forms a part of this Annual 
Report.
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Statement of Value Addition and its Distribution and Risk Management

The ‘Statement of Value Addition and its Distribution’ and ‘Risk and Opportunity Report’ are annexed to this report.

Corporate and Financial reporting framework

The Directors confirm the compliance with Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework of the Securities and Exchange Commission 
of Pakistan and Code of Corporate Governance for the following matters:

• The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, fairly present its state of affairs, the results of its operations, 
cash flows and changes in equity.

• The Company has maintained proper books of account.

• Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial statements and accounting estimates 
are based on reasonable and prudent judgments.

• International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been duly followed in preparation of the financial 
statements.

• There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance, as detailed in the Regulations of Rule 
Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange.

• The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored. The process of monitoring 
internal controls will continue as an ongoing process with the objective to further strengthen the controls and bring improvements 
in the system.

• There is no doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

• A summary of key operating and financial data of the Company is annexed.

• Information about taxes and levies is given in notes to the accounts.

• The Company operates a contributory provident fund scheme for all employees and Defined benefit gratuity fund scheme for its 
management/non-management employees. The value of investments based as at March 31, 2018 are as follows: 

• Provident Fund Rs. 875.76 million
• Gratuity Fund  

� Management Staff                Rs. 260.28 million
� Non-Management Staff        Rs. 86.12 million

 On behalf of the Board of Directors On behalf of the Board of Directors

 Yusuf H. Shirazi Saquib H. Shirazi
 Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Karachi:  April 30, 2018
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The Board Audit Committee (the Committee) comprises only of Non-Executive Directors. Details of the Directors are set out in the Board 
of Directors section of this report. The Chief Executive Officer (CEO), the Chief Financial Officer (CFO), the Internal Auditors and the 
External Auditors attend the Committee meetings by invitation. The Committee meets with the Internal Auditors and the External Auditors 
with and without the presence of CEO and CFO. 

The Committee has concluded its annual review of the conduct and operations of the Company during the year ended March 31, 2018, 
and reports that:

• The Committee met four times during the year 2017-18. All the meetings were presided by the Chairman Audit Committee. The 
secretary circulated the minutes of meetings of the Audit Committee to all members, Directors, CEO and CFO prior to the next 
meeting of the Board.

• The Committee reviewed quarterly, half yearly and annual financial statements of the Company and recommended them for approval 
of the Board of Directors.

• The Board has issued a “Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance” which has also been reviewed and 
certified by the Auditors of the Company.

• Understanding and compliance with the Company Codes and policies has been affirmed by the members of the Board, the Management 
and employees of the Company individually. Equitable treatment of shareholders has also been ensured.

• Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied except for the changes, if any, which have been appropriately 
disclosed in the financial statements. All core & other applicable International Financial Reporting Standards were followed in 
preparation of financial statements of the Company on a going concern basis, for the financial year ended March 31, 2018, which 
present fairly the state of affairs, results of operations, profits, cash flows and changes in equities of the Company.

• The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer have endorsed the financial statements of the Company. They acknowledge 
their responsibility for true and fair presentation of the Company’s financial condition and results, compliance with regulations and 
applicable accounting standards and design and effectiveness of internal control system of the Company.

• Accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment. Proper and adequate accounting records have been maintained 
by the Company in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and the external reporting is consistent with management process 
and adequate for shareholders' needs.

• The Committee has reviewed the related party transactions and recommended for approval of the Board of Directors.

• No cases of complaints regarding accounting, internal controls, audit matters or whistle blowing events were received by the 
Committee.

• The Company’s system of internal control is sound in design and has been continually evaluated for effectiveness and adequacy.

• The Committee has ensured the achievement of operational, compliance, risk management, financial reporting and control objectives, 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and the shareholders wealth at all levels within the Company.

• Closed periods were duly determined and announced by the Company, precluding the Directors, the Chief Executive Officer
 and Executives of the Company from dealing in Company’s shares, prior to each Board meeting involving announcement of
 interim / final results, distribution to shareholders or any other business decision, which could materially affect the share market 

price of the Company, along with maintenance of confidentiality of all business information.

INTERNAL AUDIT

• The Board has effectively implemented and monitored the internal control framework through an independent in-house Internal Audit 
function which is independent of the External Audit function.

• The Internal Audit function has carried out its duties under the charter defined by the Committee. The Committee has reviewed 
material findings, taking appropriate action or bringing the matters to the Board’s attention where required. 

• The Head of Internal Audit has direct access to the Chairman of the Committee and the Committee has ensured staffing of personnel 
with sufficient qualification and internal audit acumen. The Internal Audit Function has necessary access to Management and the 
right to seek information and explanations.

• The Committee has reviewed the annual internal audit program and the consideration of findings of the Internal Audit function and 
management's response. Further, it approved the internal audit plan for 2018-19.

• Coordination between the External and Internal Auditors was facilitated to ensure efficiency and contribution to the Company’s 
objectives, including a reliable financial reporting system and compliance with laws and regulations.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

• The statutory auditors of the Company, M/s. ShineWing Hameed Chaudhri & Co., Chartered Accountants, have completed the audit 
of financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018 and review of the "Statement of Compliance with the 
Code of Corporate Governance" for the year ended March 31, 2018.

• The Auditors have been allowed direct access to the Committee and the effectiveness, independence and objectivity of the Auditors 
has thereby been ensured.

• The Committee has reviewed and discussed audit observations with the External Auditors for the year ended March 31, 2018. 
Moreover, during the year Management Letter for the year ended March 31, 2018 was received within 45 days of the date of the 
Auditors' Report on financial statements as required under the PSX rule book; and the Committee reviewed and discussed the 
Management Letter with the External Auditors and the management.

• The performance, cost and independence of External Auditor is reviewed annually by the Committee. Based on the Committee’s 
review of the performance of external auditor, the Committee has recommended to the Board that a resolution to re-appoint M/s. 
ShineWing Hameed Chaudhri & Co., Chartered Accountants, for the year 2018-19 be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting.

Report of the Board Audit Committee
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The Board Audit Committee (the Committee) comprises only of Non-Executive Directors. Details of the Directors are set out in the Board 
of Directors section of this report. The Chief Executive Officer (CEO), the Chief Financial Officer (CFO), the Internal Auditors and the 
External Auditors attend the Committee meetings by invitation. The Committee meets with the Internal Auditors and the External Auditors 
with and without the presence of CEO and CFO. 

The Committee has concluded its annual review of the conduct and operations of the Company during the year ended March 31, 2018, 
and reports that:

• The Committee met four times during the year 2017-18. All the meetings were presided by the Chairman Audit Committee. The 
secretary circulated the minutes of meetings of the Audit Committee to all members, Directors, CEO and CFO prior to the next 
meeting of the Board.

• The Committee reviewed quarterly, half yearly and annual financial statements of the Company and recommended them for approval 
of the Board of Directors.

• The Board has issued a “Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance” which has also been reviewed and 
certified by the Auditors of the Company.

• Understanding and compliance with the Company Codes and policies has been affirmed by the members of the Board, the Management 
and employees of the Company individually. Equitable treatment of shareholders has also been ensured.

• Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied except for the changes, if any, which have been appropriately 
disclosed in the financial statements. All core & other applicable International Financial Reporting Standards were followed in 
preparation of financial statements of the Company on a going concern basis, for the financial year ended March 31, 2018, which 
present fairly the state of affairs, results of operations, profits, cash flows and changes in equities of the Company.

• The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer have endorsed the financial statements of the Company. They acknowledge 
their responsibility for true and fair presentation of the Company’s financial condition and results, compliance with regulations and 
applicable accounting standards and design and effectiveness of internal control system of the Company.

• Accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment. Proper and adequate accounting records have been maintained 
by the Company in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and the external reporting is consistent with management process 
and adequate for shareholders' needs.

• The Committee has reviewed the related party transactions and recommended for approval of the Board of Directors.

• No cases of complaints regarding accounting, internal controls, audit matters or whistle blowing events were received by the 
Committee.

• The Company’s system of internal control is sound in design and has been continually evaluated for effectiveness and adequacy.

• The Committee has ensured the achievement of operational, compliance, risk management, financial reporting and control objectives, 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and the shareholders wealth at all levels within the Company.

• Closed periods were duly determined and announced by the Company, precluding the Directors, the Chief Executive Officer
 and Executives of the Company from dealing in Company’s shares, prior to each Board meeting involving announcement of
 interim / final results, distribution to shareholders or any other business decision, which could materially affect the share market 

price of the Company, along with maintenance of confidentiality of all business information.

INTERNAL AUDIT

• The Board has effectively implemented and monitored the internal control framework through an independent in-house Internal Audit 
function which is independent of the External Audit function.

• The Internal Audit function has carried out its duties under the charter defined by the Committee. The Committee has reviewed 
material findings, taking appropriate action or bringing the matters to the Board’s attention where required. 

• The Head of Internal Audit has direct access to the Chairman of the Committee and the Committee has ensured staffing of personnel 
with sufficient qualification and internal audit acumen. The Internal Audit Function has necessary access to Management and the 
right to seek information and explanations.

• The Committee has reviewed the annual internal audit program and the consideration of findings of the Internal Audit function and 
management's response. Further, it approved the internal audit plan for 2018-19.

• Coordination between the External and Internal Auditors was facilitated to ensure efficiency and contribution to the Company’s 
objectives, including a reliable financial reporting system and compliance with laws and regulations.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

• The statutory auditors of the Company, M/s. ShineWing Hameed Chaudhri & Co., Chartered Accountants, have completed the audit 
of financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018 and review of the "Statement of Compliance with the 
Code of Corporate Governance" for the year ended March 31, 2018.

• The Auditors have been allowed direct access to the Committee and the effectiveness, independence and objectivity of the Auditors 
has thereby been ensured.

• The Committee has reviewed and discussed audit observations with the External Auditors for the year ended March 31, 2018. 
Moreover, during the year Management Letter for the year ended March 31, 2018 was received within 45 days of the date of the 
Auditors' Report on financial statements as required under the PSX rule book; and the Committee reviewed and discussed the 
Management Letter with the External Auditors and the management.

• The performance, cost and independence of External Auditor is reviewed annually by the Committee. Based on the Committee’s 
review of the performance of external auditor, the Committee has recommended to the Board that a resolution to re-appoint M/s. 
ShineWing Hameed Chaudhri & Co., Chartered Accountants, for the year 2018-19 be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting.
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Based on the analysis of risk and opportunities identified in the report, the relatioship between Company's objectives, strategy along-
with priority, performance indicators (financial & non financial) used by the management to evaluate actual results are summarised 
below in the table:

To expand sales in two wheeler industry

Sales expansion through focus on product quality & innovation, expanding dealers' network, efficient after sales 
services and availability of financial solutions to boost customers' purchasing power. 
High
Sales and profitability
Total sales for the year were1,088,401 units which represent 17% increase from last year. 2 new models namely 
"CB150F" and "CB 250F" were launched along with 4 MMC's of existing model lineup were introduced in the 
market. Further, we are the only Company in Pakistan which provides 3 years’ warranty for all engine parts.

Strategy 

Priority

Indicators

Actual Results

Additional Information
Management Objectives

To maintain industry leadership in two wheeler industry

We continuously focus on upgrading production facilities to maximize efficiency and to ensure compliance with 
international standards and latest technology.
High
Capital expenditure, market share and production efficiency ratio
We have incurred capital expenditure of Rs. 2.4 billion during the year for the improvement, maintenance and 
expansion of our production facilities

Strategy 

Priority

Indicators

Actual Results

To ensure continuity of operations without disruptions in supply 

From the outset, production structures and processes are designed with a view to minimize any potential 
damage and its probability of occurrence. In order to ensure uninterrupted and smooth supplies of raw material 
and components, more than one supplier are inducted which share its production and delivery plan on B2B 
network.  
High
Current ratio and idle days
We achieved uninterrupted production during the year with undisrupted supplies from vendors. Furthermore, 
regular audits are conducted to ensure that backup plans are effectively in place to mitigate any operational 
interruptions.

Strategy 

Priority
Indicators

Actual Results

To recruit and retain the best people and provide adequate training to ensure high quality skilled force

We have developed comprehensive and well-structured procedures for recruitment, training, compensation, 
periodic appraisals and succession planning in order to ensure staff development and retention. 
High
Workforce related ratios
The detail of training programs are as follows:
External Training Programs: 63 programs
Internal Training Programs: 36 programs
No. of Persons trained in external trainings: 118 persons
No. of Persons trained in internal training: 429 persons
No. of days spent for trainings: 2,973 days
No. of hours spent for trainings: 23,784 hours
Average hours of training per year per employee: 14.8 hours
Average training days per employee: 1.9 days

Strategy 

Priority
Indicators

Actual Results
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To ensure health and safety of employees in workplaces 

We recognize the importance of a healthy working environment and therefore safety of employees is our top 
priority. We have developed a documented Health and Safety policy according to which it is mandatory for 
every employee to go through the Company's safety awareness program. The employees are informed about 
best HSE practices through regular internal communication channels such as transformation forums and 
internal safety workshops. Each employee is also trained to follow safety rules and to exercise caution in all 
work activities. We conduct risk assessments that address all the hazards that might cause harm in workplace.  
Extraction and evacuation drills are conducted regularly and staff is frequently trained for crisis management.
High
No of accidents
No majors accidents occurred during the year at any of the Company's facilities, a testament to the Company's  
effective safety policies.

Strategy 

Priority
Indicators

Actual Results

To ensure optimum cost level

We keep our cost at an optimum level through strict governance policies and cost reduction measures

High

Profitability ratios

Our net profitability amounted to Rs. 4.7 billion, an increase of 24% from last year

Strategy 

Priority

Indicators

Actual Results

To ensure environment friendly products and processes

Our defined policy for the protection of environment from emissions and hazardous discharges, ongoing 
monitoring and maintenance activities coupled with investment in new technology, efficiency enhancing meas-
ures, continuous measurements, follow ups and reporting are carried out to ensure we achieve our desired 
goals. Solid hazardous waste is disposed-off through Environmental Protection Agency's legitimate contrac-
tors. Recycling is also done, to the maximum extent, where possible.
High
Carbon emission, water usage
For achievements in environmental protection, see the section of "Environment" in the Company's sustainability 
report.

Strategy 

Priority
Indicators

Actual Results

To operate in a stable market being compliant with all relevant laws of the Country

Maintain team of qualified and experienced professionals to ensure compliance with all applicable laws, rules 
and regulations. 
High
Number of non compliances and reporting awards
There were no non-compliances reported by any Government body or institution during the year.
Company’s corporate reporting practises were recognized through following awards:
- Top 25 Companies Award by Pakistan Stock Exchange for the financial year 2016
- Best Corporate Report Award in “Engineering Sector” by the Joint Committee of ICAP and ICMAP
- Best Sustainability Report Award  by the Joint Committee of ICAP and ICMAP
- Awards by National Forum for Environment & Health in the categories of Corporate Social Responsibility Report,          
 Research & Publication and Environment & Waste Management.

Strategy 

Priority
Indicators

Actual Results

There have been no significant changes in objectives and strategies of the Company as compared to previous year.

Significant Changes in Objectives & Strategies 
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Prospects of the Entity

We remain committed to deliver on our long term objectives of sustainable growth and maximizing value creation. These objectives are 
being achieved by concentrating business resources to achieve operational excellence, optimize cost structure, execution of growth 
projects and investment in new technologies. We continue to invest in the resources and capabilities which underpin our success. 
Operational efficiencies in terms of enhancement in productivity, output and capacities have been the essential core behind all activities 
throughout the year. We also recognize that development of resources across supply chain is critical in maintaining long term competi-
tiveness. Accordingly, we are in constant collaboration with our suppliers for utilizing their expertise and benefitting from increased 
economies of scale.

Financial Measures

There are various controllable and uncontrollable factors on which the Company’s targets are dependent. These factors include price 
of raw materials, foreign currency rates, taxation regimes, availability of skilled workforce and resources etc. The impact and sensitivity 
of their fluctuation is considered while setting targets and budgets. Accordingly, financial targets are set for revenue, cost, profitability, 
gearing and liquidity. The Company on an annual basis sets marketing, production and other targets in the form of a budget which is 
duly approved by the Board of Director. We have surpassed most of the key targets set in our last year’s budget specially pertaining to 
production, revenue and profitability. For liquidity and gearing, cash flows are monitored on a daily basis to achieve the targets. These 
achievements are in line with expectations as depicted in last year’s Directors’ report.

Non Financial Measures

The Company has identified the following areas as key non-financial performance measures:

•  Corporate image
•  Stakeholders’ engagement
•  Maintenance of product quality for fulfilment of customer needs
•  After sales service
•  Relationship with customers and business partners
•  Compliance with the regulatory framework
•  Energy conservation
•  Brand preference
•  Environmental protection
•  Responsibility towards the society
•  Transparency, accountability and good governance
•  Employee satisfaction and wellbeing
•  BCG Matrix
•  SWOT Analysis

Responsibility for implementation has been delegated to the management with continuous monitoring and control by the Board.

Analysis of Prospects of Entity

48 Annual Report 2018

Company Overview Message for Stakeholders Financial Highlights Financial Statements Other Information



Analysis of prior period’s forward looking disclosures

As indicated last year, improvement of incomes in both rural and urban areas along with better economic fundamentals, stable fuel 
prices, rapid urbanization and security conditions have boosted the demand for two-wheelers. Accordingly, volume growth and
improvement in sales mix resulted in achieving ever highest sales. The top line driven the bottom line figure and resultantly, the Company 
achieved the ever highest profit figures. Strong contributions came from cost control measures and treasury income. Thus, the Company 
posted the highest ever profit before tax of Rs. 6.3 billion.  

Further, as planned, we successfully managed to increase our capacity upto 1.25 Million units in March 2018.

Forward looking statement

2018-19 is likely to be a challenging year for a variety of reasons, both local and global. With elections knocking on the door, there is a 
certain degree of risk to the stability that is required to conduct business. The depreciation of the PKR at the end of the year has 
triggered speculations of further devaluation in the offing.

However, we are very well positioned in our markets with leading products and services. We are increasingly succeeding in addressing 
new targets, utilizing additional market potential and strengthening our market position nationwide. We will consistently implement our 
strategy thus, creating the basis for further growth. We expect both unit sales and revenue to be higher than previous year, and will try 
to achieve better earnings than current year. However, devaluation of Pak Rupee and constant increase in material prices may keep 
profit margins under pressure.  

We will significantly increase our capital expenditure for capacity expansion and new technologies once again in 2019. As a result, we 
remain confident that the important investments we are making to modernize our production will create a strong platform to drive 
customer service and strong cash flows.

Statement of Charity Account
We paid an amount of around Rs. 52m for the year 2018 to Atlas Foundation. The Foundation has played its role in promoting 
centers of professional education, contributing to health facilities, helping law enforcement agencies and improving the quality of life 
with the commitment that what has come from the society should be shared with the society. The Foundation has built a school in 
collaboration with The Citizen Foundation having capacity for 400 students at present. Most of the children belong to poor families of 
farmers and labourers living in the neighboring areas.        

Forward Looking Statement
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Notice is hereby given that the 54th Annual General Meeting of the members of Atlas Honda Limited will be held on Thursday June 
28, 2018, at 11:00 A.M., at the Avari Hotel, Mall Road, Lahore, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1. To confirm minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on June 19, 2017.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018, 
together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ reports thereon. 

3. To appoint auditors and fix their remuneration for the year ending March 31, 2019. The present auditors M/s ShineWing Hameed 
Chaudhri & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible have offered themselves for reappointment.

4. To consider and approve the final cash dividend of Rs. 27 per share i.e. 270 % for the year ended March 31, 2018 as recommended 
by the Board of Directors.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5. To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution with or without modification to amend 
the Articles of Association of the Company to bring the Articles in conformity :

 “RESOLVED that the existing Articles of Association of the Company be and are hereby amended to bring them in conformity 
with the Companies Act 2017 and for that purpose, the Revised Articles of Association of the Company, as initialed by the 
CEO for the purpose of identification, be and are hereby adopted as Articles of Association of the Company, in substitution 
of and to the exclusion of the existing Articles of Association.

OTHER BUSINESS

6. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

  By Order of the Board
  

  
Karachi: June 7, 2018 Marrium Ahmed
  Company Secretary
  
NOTES:

i. The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from June 14, 2018 to June 28, 2018 (both days inclusive). The 
transfers received at Company’s Share Registrar namely M/s. Hameed Majeed Associates (Private) Limited, H.M House, 7-Bank 
Square, Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, Lahore, Pakistan by the close of business on June 13, 2018 will be considered in time for 
the purpose of payment of final dividend to the transferees. 

ii. A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at this Annual General Meeting shall be entitled to appoint another member, as 
a proxy to attend and vote on his / her behalf. The proxies in order to be effective, instrument appointing Proxy must be received 
at the Registered Office or Share Registrar of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting. For the 
convenience of the members a Proxy Application Form is attached at the end of the Annual Report 2018.

Notice of 54th Annual General Meeting iii. Members holding physical shares are requested to notify any change in their addresses immediately to our Share Registrars, 
M/s. Hameed Majeed Associates (Private) Limited, H.M House, 7-Bank Square, Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, Lahore, Pakistan.

iv. Any individual Beneficial Owner of CDC, entitled to vote at this Meeting, must bring his / her original Computerized National 
Identity Card (CNIC) to prove identity, and in case of proxy, a copy of shareholder’s attested CNIC must be attached with the 
proxy form. Representatives of corporate members should bring the usual documents required for such purpose.

 CDC Account Holders will also have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular 1 dated January 26, 
2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

A. For Attending the Meeting:

(i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person, whose securities are in group account 
and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations, shall authenticate identity by showing his / her original 
Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the Meeting.

(ii) Members registered on CDC are also requested to bring their particulars, I.D. Numbers and account numbers in CDS.

(iii) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of the nominee shall 
be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of Meeting.

B. For Appointing Proxies:

(i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose securities are in group account and 
their registration detail is uploaded as per the regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement.

(ii) The proxy form shall be witnessed by the person whose name, address and CNIC number shall be mentioned on the form.

(iii) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.

(iv) The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of Meeting.

(v) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted 
(unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.

v. Circulation of Annual Audited Accounts via Email / CD / USB / DVD or Any Other Media

 SECP through its SRO 470(1)/2016, dated May 31, 2016, has allowed companies to circulate the annual balance sheet, profit 
and loss account,  auditors’ report and Directors’ report etc (“annual audited accounts”) to its members through CD/DVD/USB 
at their registered addresses. In view of the above, the Company has sent its Annual Report 2018 to its shareholders in the 
form of CD. Any member requiring printed copy of Annual Report 2018 may send a request using a Standard Request Form 
placed on Company website. 

 Members are hereby informed that pursuant to SECP SRO 787(1)/2014 dated September 8, 2014, and under Section 223(6) 
of the Companies Act 2017, circulation of Audited Financial Statements and Notice of Annual General Meeting has been allowed 
in electronic format through email.

 Members can request a hard copy which shall be provided free of cost within seven days from receipt of requisition. 

vi. Video Conference Facility

 If the Company receives consent from members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing at a geographical 
location, to participate in the meeting through video conference at least 10 days prior to date of meeting, the Company will 

arrange video conference facility in that city subject to availability of such facility in that city. The Company will intimate Members 
regarding venue of video conference facility at least 5 days before the date of the Annual General Meeting along with complete 
information necessary to enable them to access such facility.

vii. Submission of CNIC / SNIC / NTN

 The SRO 831(2)/2012 dated July 5, 2012 read with SRO 19(1)/2014 dated January 10, 2014 issued by SECP, requires printing 
of CNIC / SNIC or NTN (in case of corporate entities) on the dividend warrant, without which no dividend warrant shall be 
issued. Therefore, the individual members who have not yet submitted photocopy of their valid CNICs / SNICs, are once again 
reminded to send the same at the earliest directly to the Company’s share registrar. The Corporate entities are requested to 
provide their NTN. Please give folio number with the copy of CNIC / SNIC / NTN details. 

viii. Dividend Mandate

 Under the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, it is mandatory for a listed Company to pay cash dividend 
to its shareholders only through electronic mode directly into bank account designated by the entitled shareholders. In order 
to receive dividends directly into their bank account, shareholders are requested to fill in Dividend Mandate Form available on 
Company’s website i.e. http://www.atlashonda.com.pk and send it duly signed along with a copy of CNIC to the Registrar of 
the Company M/s. Hameed Majeed Associates (Private) Limited, H.M House, 7-Bank Square, Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, Lahore, 
Pakistan in case of physical shares. In case shares are held in CDC then Dividend Mandate Form must be submitted directly 
to shareholder’s broker/ participant/CDC account services.

ix. Unclaimed Dividend 

 Pursuant to Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, any shares issued or dividend declared by the Company, which remain 
unclaimed or unpaid for a period of three years from the date it become due payable shall vest with the Federal Government 
after compliance of procedures prescribed under the Company Act, 2017. Section 244(I)(a) of the Act requires the Company 
to give a 90 days’ notice to the members to file their claims with the Company. Further SECP vide Direction No. 16 of 2017 
issued on July 07, 2017 directed all listed Companies issued such notice to the members and submit statement of unclaimed 
shares or dividend or any other instruments which remain unclaimed or unpaid for a period of three years from the date it is 
due and payable as of May 30, 2017.

x. Withholding Tax on Dividend

 Pursuant to the provisions of Finance Act, 2017, different rates are prescribed for deduction of withholding tax on the amount 
of dividend paid by the companies, as under:

 The ‘Filer’ is defined as a taxpayer whose name appears in the Active Tax-payers List (ATL) issued by Federal Board of Revenue 
(FBR) from time to time. 

 To enable the Company to withhold tax @ 15% for filers, all the shareholders are advised to ensure that their names appear in 
the latest available ATL on FBR website, otherwise tax on their cash dividend will be deducted @ 20% for non-filers.

 In case of joint shareholder, each shareholder is to be treated individually as either a filer or non-filer and tax will be deducted 
on the basis of shareholding of each shareholder as may be notified by the shareholders, in writing as follows, to our share 
registrar, or if no such notification is received each shareholder shall be assumed to have an equal number of shares:

 The required information must reach the shares registrar of the Company by the close of business on June 13, 2018 otherwise 
it will be assumed that the shares are equally held by Principal shareholder and Joint shareholder(s).

 As per FBR’s clarification, the valid exemption certificate under section 159 of the ordinance is mandatory to claim exemption 
of withholding tax under clause 47B of Part IV of 2nd Schedule of the Income tax Ordinance, 2001. Those who fall in the category 
mentioned in the aforesaid clause must provide valid tax exemption certificate to our share registrar, otherwise tax will be 
deducted on dividend amount as per rates prescribed in Section 150 of the Income tax Ordinance, 2001.

xi.  E-Voting

 Members can also exercise their right of E-voting subject to the requirements of S. 143 - 145 of the Companies Act 2017 and 
the applicable clauses of the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018. 

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2017

Alteration in the articles of the Articles of Association of the Company is necessary in the light of the Companies Act, 2017. The 
proposed changes in the Articles of Association of the Company are being made to bring the articles in conformity with the Companies 
Act, 2017.

The Comparative statement of proposed amendments is being sent to the Members along with this Notice.

The Directors have no personal interest in the above business.
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Notice is hereby given that the 54th Annual General Meeting of the members of Atlas Honda Limited will be held on Thursday June 
28, 2018, at 11:00 A.M., at the Avari Hotel, Mall Road, Lahore, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1. To confirm minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on June 19, 2017.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018, 
together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ reports thereon. 

3. To appoint auditors and fix their remuneration for the year ending March 31, 2019. The present auditors M/s ShineWing Hameed 
Chaudhri & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible have offered themselves for reappointment.

4. To consider and approve the final cash dividend of Rs. 27 per share i.e. 270 % for the year ended March 31, 2018 as recommended 
by the Board of Directors.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5. To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution with or without modification to amend 
the Articles of Association of the Company to bring the Articles in conformity :

 “RESOLVED that the existing Articles of Association of the Company be and are hereby amended to bring them in conformity 
with the Companies Act 2017 and for that purpose, the Revised Articles of Association of the Company, as initialed by the 
CEO for the purpose of identification, be and are hereby adopted as Articles of Association of the Company, in substitution 
of and to the exclusion of the existing Articles of Association.

OTHER BUSINESS

6. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

  By Order of the Board
  

  
Karachi: June 7, 2018 Marrium Ahmed
  Company Secretary
  
NOTES:

i. The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from June 14, 2018 to June 28, 2018 (both days inclusive). The 
transfers received at Company’s Share Registrar namely M/s. Hameed Majeed Associates (Private) Limited, H.M House, 7-Bank 
Square, Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, Lahore, Pakistan by the close of business on June 13, 2018 will be considered in time for 
the purpose of payment of final dividend to the transferees. 

ii. A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at this Annual General Meeting shall be entitled to appoint another member, as 
a proxy to attend and vote on his / her behalf. The proxies in order to be effective, instrument appointing Proxy must be received 
at the Registered Office or Share Registrar of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting. For the 
convenience of the members a Proxy Application Form is attached at the end of the Annual Report 2018.

iii. Members holding physical shares are requested to notify any change in their addresses immediately to our Share Registrars, 
M/s. Hameed Majeed Associates (Private) Limited, H.M House, 7-Bank Square, Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, Lahore, Pakistan.

iv. Any individual Beneficial Owner of CDC, entitled to vote at this Meeting, must bring his / her original Computerized National 
Identity Card (CNIC) to prove identity, and in case of proxy, a copy of shareholder’s attested CNIC must be attached with the 
proxy form. Representatives of corporate members should bring the usual documents required for such purpose.

 CDC Account Holders will also have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular 1 dated January 26, 
2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

A. For Attending the Meeting:

(i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person, whose securities are in group account 
and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations, shall authenticate identity by showing his / her original 
Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the Meeting.

(ii) Members registered on CDC are also requested to bring their particulars, I.D. Numbers and account numbers in CDS.

(iii) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of the nominee shall 
be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of Meeting.

B. For Appointing Proxies:

(i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose securities are in group account and 
their registration detail is uploaded as per the regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement.

(ii) The proxy form shall be witnessed by the person whose name, address and CNIC number shall be mentioned on the form.

(iii) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.

(iv) The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of Meeting.

(v) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted 
(unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.

v. Circulation of Annual Audited Accounts via Email / CD / USB / DVD or Any Other Media

 SECP through its SRO 470(1)/2016, dated May 31, 2016, has allowed companies to circulate the annual balance sheet, profit 
and loss account,  auditors’ report and Directors’ report etc (“annual audited accounts”) to its members through CD/DVD/USB 
at their registered addresses. In view of the above, the Company has sent its Annual Report 2018 to its shareholders in the 
form of CD. Any member requiring printed copy of Annual Report 2018 may send a request using a Standard Request Form 
placed on Company website. 

 Members are hereby informed that pursuant to SECP SRO 787(1)/2014 dated September 8, 2014, and under Section 223(6) 
of the Companies Act 2017, circulation of Audited Financial Statements and Notice of Annual General Meeting has been allowed 
in electronic format through email.

 Members can request a hard copy which shall be provided free of cost within seven days from receipt of requisition. 

vi. Video Conference Facility

 If the Company receives consent from members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing at a geographical 
location, to participate in the meeting through video conference at least 10 days prior to date of meeting, the Company will 

arrange video conference facility in that city subject to availability of such facility in that city. The Company will intimate Members 
regarding venue of video conference facility at least 5 days before the date of the Annual General Meeting along with complete 
information necessary to enable them to access such facility.

vii. Submission of CNIC / SNIC / NTN

 The SRO 831(2)/2012 dated July 5, 2012 read with SRO 19(1)/2014 dated January 10, 2014 issued by SECP, requires printing 
of CNIC / SNIC or NTN (in case of corporate entities) on the dividend warrant, without which no dividend warrant shall be 
issued. Therefore, the individual members who have not yet submitted photocopy of their valid CNICs / SNICs, are once again 
reminded to send the same at the earliest directly to the Company’s share registrar. The Corporate entities are requested to 
provide their NTN. Please give folio number with the copy of CNIC / SNIC / NTN details. 

viii. Dividend Mandate

 Under the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, it is mandatory for a listed Company to pay cash dividend 
to its shareholders only through electronic mode directly into bank account designated by the entitled shareholders. In order 
to receive dividends directly into their bank account, shareholders are requested to fill in Dividend Mandate Form available on 
Company’s website i.e. http://www.atlashonda.com.pk and send it duly signed along with a copy of CNIC to the Registrar of 
the Company M/s. Hameed Majeed Associates (Private) Limited, H.M House, 7-Bank Square, Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, Lahore, 
Pakistan in case of physical shares. In case shares are held in CDC then Dividend Mandate Form must be submitted directly 
to shareholder’s broker/ participant/CDC account services.

ix. Unclaimed Dividend 

 Pursuant to Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, any shares issued or dividend declared by the Company, which remain 
unclaimed or unpaid for a period of three years from the date it become due payable shall vest with the Federal Government 
after compliance of procedures prescribed under the Company Act, 2017. Section 244(I)(a) of the Act requires the Company 
to give a 90 days’ notice to the members to file their claims with the Company. Further SECP vide Direction No. 16 of 2017 
issued on July 07, 2017 directed all listed Companies issued such notice to the members and submit statement of unclaimed 
shares or dividend or any other instruments which remain unclaimed or unpaid for a period of three years from the date it is 
due and payable as of May 30, 2017.

x. Withholding Tax on Dividend

 Pursuant to the provisions of Finance Act, 2017, different rates are prescribed for deduction of withholding tax on the amount 
of dividend paid by the companies, as under:

 The ‘Filer’ is defined as a taxpayer whose name appears in the Active Tax-payers List (ATL) issued by Federal Board of Revenue 
(FBR) from time to time. 

 To enable the Company to withhold tax @ 15% for filers, all the shareholders are advised to ensure that their names appear in 
the latest available ATL on FBR website, otherwise tax on their cash dividend will be deducted @ 20% for non-filers.

 In case of joint shareholder, each shareholder is to be treated individually as either a filer or non-filer and tax will be deducted 
on the basis of shareholding of each shareholder as may be notified by the shareholders, in writing as follows, to our share 
registrar, or if no such notification is received each shareholder shall be assumed to have an equal number of shares:

 The required information must reach the shares registrar of the Company by the close of business on June 13, 2018 otherwise 
it will be assumed that the shares are equally held by Principal shareholder and Joint shareholder(s).

 As per FBR’s clarification, the valid exemption certificate under section 159 of the ordinance is mandatory to claim exemption 
of withholding tax under clause 47B of Part IV of 2nd Schedule of the Income tax Ordinance, 2001. Those who fall in the category 
mentioned in the aforesaid clause must provide valid tax exemption certificate to our share registrar, otherwise tax will be 
deducted on dividend amount as per rates prescribed in Section 150 of the Income tax Ordinance, 2001.

xi.  E-Voting

 Members can also exercise their right of E-voting subject to the requirements of S. 143 - 145 of the Companies Act 2017 and 
the applicable clauses of the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018. 

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2017

Alteration in the articles of the Articles of Association of the Company is necessary in the light of the Companies Act, 2017. The 
proposed changes in the Articles of Association of the Company are being made to bring the articles in conformity with the Companies 
Act, 2017.

The Comparative statement of proposed amendments is being sent to the Members along with this Notice.

The Directors have no personal interest in the above business.
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Notice is hereby given that the 54th Annual General Meeting of the members of Atlas Honda Limited will be held on Thursday June 
28, 2018, at 11:00 A.M., at the Avari Hotel, Mall Road, Lahore, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1. To confirm minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on June 19, 2017.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018, 
together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ reports thereon. 

3. To appoint auditors and fix their remuneration for the year ending March 31, 2019. The present auditors M/s ShineWing Hameed 
Chaudhri & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible have offered themselves for reappointment.

4. To consider and approve the final cash dividend of Rs. 27 per share i.e. 270 % for the year ended March 31, 2018 as recommended 
by the Board of Directors.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5. To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution with or without modification to amend 
the Articles of Association of the Company to bring the Articles in conformity :

 “RESOLVED that the existing Articles of Association of the Company be and are hereby amended to bring them in conformity 
with the Companies Act 2017 and for that purpose, the Revised Articles of Association of the Company, as initialed by the 
CEO for the purpose of identification, be and are hereby adopted as Articles of Association of the Company, in substitution 
of and to the exclusion of the existing Articles of Association.

OTHER BUSINESS

6. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

  By Order of the Board
  

  
Karachi: June 7, 2018 Marrium Ahmed
  Company Secretary
  
NOTES:

i. The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from June 14, 2018 to June 28, 2018 (both days inclusive). The 
transfers received at Company’s Share Registrar namely M/s. Hameed Majeed Associates (Private) Limited, H.M House, 7-Bank 
Square, Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, Lahore, Pakistan by the close of business on June 13, 2018 will be considered in time for 
the purpose of payment of final dividend to the transferees. 

ii. A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at this Annual General Meeting shall be entitled to appoint another member, as 
a proxy to attend and vote on his / her behalf. The proxies in order to be effective, instrument appointing Proxy must be received 
at the Registered Office or Share Registrar of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting. For the 
convenience of the members a Proxy Application Form is attached at the end of the Annual Report 2018.
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iii. Members holding physical shares are requested to notify any change in their addresses immediately to our Share Registrars, 
M/s. Hameed Majeed Associates (Private) Limited, H.M House, 7-Bank Square, Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, Lahore, Pakistan.

iv. Any individual Beneficial Owner of CDC, entitled to vote at this Meeting, must bring his / her original Computerized National 
Identity Card (CNIC) to prove identity, and in case of proxy, a copy of shareholder’s attested CNIC must be attached with the 
proxy form. Representatives of corporate members should bring the usual documents required for such purpose.

 CDC Account Holders will also have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular 1 dated January 26, 
2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

A. For Attending the Meeting:

(i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person, whose securities are in group account 
and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations, shall authenticate identity by showing his / her original 
Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the Meeting.

(ii) Members registered on CDC are also requested to bring their particulars, I.D. Numbers and account numbers in CDS.

(iii) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of the nominee shall 
be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of Meeting.

B. For Appointing Proxies:

(i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose securities are in group account and 
their registration detail is uploaded as per the regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement.

(ii) The proxy form shall be witnessed by the person whose name, address and CNIC number shall be mentioned on the form.

(iii) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.

(iv) The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of Meeting.

(v) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted 
(unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.

v. Circulation of Annual Audited Accounts via Email / CD / USB / DVD or Any Other Media

 SECP through its SRO 470(1)/2016, dated May 31, 2016, has allowed companies to circulate the annual balance sheet, profit 
and loss account,  auditors’ report and Directors’ report etc (“annual audited accounts”) to its members through CD/DVD/USB 
at their registered addresses. In view of the above, the Company has sent its Annual Report 2018 to its shareholders in the 
form of CD. Any member requiring printed copy of Annual Report 2018 may send a request using a Standard Request Form 
placed on Company website. 

 Members are hereby informed that pursuant to SECP SRO 787(1)/2014 dated September 8, 2014, and under Section 223(6) 
of the Companies Act 2017, circulation of Audited Financial Statements and Notice of Annual General Meeting has been allowed 
in electronic format through email.

 Members can request a hard copy which shall be provided free of cost within seven days from receipt of requisition. 

vi. Video Conference Facility

 If the Company receives consent from members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing at a geographical 
location, to participate in the meeting through video conference at least 10 days prior to date of meeting, the Company will 

arrange video conference facility in that city subject to availability of such facility in that city. The Company will intimate Members 
regarding venue of video conference facility at least 5 days before the date of the Annual General Meeting along with complete 
information necessary to enable them to access such facility.

vii. Submission of CNIC / SNIC / NTN

 The SRO 831(2)/2012 dated July 5, 2012 read with SRO 19(1)/2014 dated January 10, 2014 issued by SECP, requires printing 
of CNIC / SNIC or NTN (in case of corporate entities) on the dividend warrant, without which no dividend warrant shall be 
issued. Therefore, the individual members who have not yet submitted photocopy of their valid CNICs / SNICs, are once again 
reminded to send the same at the earliest directly to the Company’s share registrar. The Corporate entities are requested to 
provide their NTN. Please give folio number with the copy of CNIC / SNIC / NTN details. 

viii. Dividend Mandate

 Under the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, it is mandatory for a listed Company to pay cash dividend 
to its shareholders only through electronic mode directly into bank account designated by the entitled shareholders. In order 
to receive dividends directly into their bank account, shareholders are requested to fill in Dividend Mandate Form available on 
Company’s website i.e. http://www.atlashonda.com.pk and send it duly signed along with a copy of CNIC to the Registrar of 
the Company M/s. Hameed Majeed Associates (Private) Limited, H.M House, 7-Bank Square, Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, Lahore, 
Pakistan in case of physical shares. In case shares are held in CDC then Dividend Mandate Form must be submitted directly 
to shareholder’s broker/ participant/CDC account services.

ix. Unclaimed Dividend 

 Pursuant to Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, any shares issued or dividend declared by the Company, which remain 
unclaimed or unpaid for a period of three years from the date it become due payable shall vest with the Federal Government 
after compliance of procedures prescribed under the Company Act, 2017. Section 244(I)(a) of the Act requires the Company 
to give a 90 days’ notice to the members to file their claims with the Company. Further SECP vide Direction No. 16 of 2017 
issued on July 07, 2017 directed all listed Companies issued such notice to the members and submit statement of unclaimed 
shares or dividend or any other instruments which remain unclaimed or unpaid for a period of three years from the date it is 
due and payable as of May 30, 2017.

x. Withholding Tax on Dividend

 Pursuant to the provisions of Finance Act, 2017, different rates are prescribed for deduction of withholding tax on the amount 
of dividend paid by the companies, as under:

 The ‘Filer’ is defined as a taxpayer whose name appears in the Active Tax-payers List (ATL) issued by Federal Board of Revenue 
(FBR) from time to time. 

 To enable the Company to withhold tax @ 15% for filers, all the shareholders are advised to ensure that their names appear in 
the latest available ATL on FBR website, otherwise tax on their cash dividend will be deducted @ 20% for non-filers.

 In case of joint shareholder, each shareholder is to be treated individually as either a filer or non-filer and tax will be deducted 
on the basis of shareholding of each shareholder as may be notified by the shareholders, in writing as follows, to our share 
registrar, or if no such notification is received each shareholder shall be assumed to have an equal number of shares:

 The required information must reach the shares registrar of the Company by the close of business on June 13, 2018 otherwise 
it will be assumed that the shares are equally held by Principal shareholder and Joint shareholder(s).

 As per FBR’s clarification, the valid exemption certificate under section 159 of the ordinance is mandatory to claim exemption 
of withholding tax under clause 47B of Part IV of 2nd Schedule of the Income tax Ordinance, 2001. Those who fall in the category 
mentioned in the aforesaid clause must provide valid tax exemption certificate to our share registrar, otherwise tax will be 
deducted on dividend amount as per rates prescribed in Section 150 of the Income tax Ordinance, 2001.

xi.  E-Voting

 Members can also exercise their right of E-voting subject to the requirements of S. 143 - 145 of the Companies Act 2017 and 
the applicable clauses of the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018. 

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2017

Alteration in the articles of the Articles of Association of the Company is necessary in the light of the Companies Act, 2017. The 
proposed changes in the Articles of Association of the Company are being made to bring the articles in conformity with the Companies 
Act, 2017.

The Comparative statement of proposed amendments is being sent to the Members along with this Notice.

The Directors have no personal interest in the above business.
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Notice is hereby given that the 54th Annual General Meeting of the members of Atlas Honda Limited will be held on Thursday June 
28, 2018, at 11:00 A.M., at the Avari Hotel, Mall Road, Lahore, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1. To confirm minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on June 19, 2017.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018, 
together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ reports thereon. 

3. To appoint auditors and fix their remuneration for the year ending March 31, 2019. The present auditors M/s ShineWing Hameed 
Chaudhri & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible have offered themselves for reappointment.

4. To consider and approve the final cash dividend of Rs. 27 per share i.e. 270 % for the year ended March 31, 2018 as recommended 
by the Board of Directors.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5. To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution with or without modification to amend 
the Articles of Association of the Company to bring the Articles in conformity :

 “RESOLVED that the existing Articles of Association of the Company be and are hereby amended to bring them in conformity 
with the Companies Act 2017 and for that purpose, the Revised Articles of Association of the Company, as initialed by the 
CEO for the purpose of identification, be and are hereby adopted as Articles of Association of the Company, in substitution 
of and to the exclusion of the existing Articles of Association.

OTHER BUSINESS

6. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

  By Order of the Board
  

  
Karachi: June 7, 2018 Marrium Ahmed
  Company Secretary
  
NOTES:

i. The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from June 14, 2018 to June 28, 2018 (both days inclusive). The 
transfers received at Company’s Share Registrar namely M/s. Hameed Majeed Associates (Private) Limited, H.M House, 7-Bank 
Square, Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, Lahore, Pakistan by the close of business on June 13, 2018 will be considered in time for 
the purpose of payment of final dividend to the transferees. 

ii. A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at this Annual General Meeting shall be entitled to appoint another member, as 
a proxy to attend and vote on his / her behalf. The proxies in order to be effective, instrument appointing Proxy must be received 
at the Registered Office or Share Registrar of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting. For the 
convenience of the members a Proxy Application Form is attached at the end of the Annual Report 2018.

iii. Members holding physical shares are requested to notify any change in their addresses immediately to our Share Registrars, 
M/s. Hameed Majeed Associates (Private) Limited, H.M House, 7-Bank Square, Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, Lahore, Pakistan.

iv. Any individual Beneficial Owner of CDC, entitled to vote at this Meeting, must bring his / her original Computerized National 
Identity Card (CNIC) to prove identity, and in case of proxy, a copy of shareholder’s attested CNIC must be attached with the 
proxy form. Representatives of corporate members should bring the usual documents required for such purpose.

 CDC Account Holders will also have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular 1 dated January 26, 
2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

A. For Attending the Meeting:

(i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person, whose securities are in group account 
and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations, shall authenticate identity by showing his / her original 
Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the Meeting.

(ii) Members registered on CDC are also requested to bring their particulars, I.D. Numbers and account numbers in CDS.

(iii) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of the nominee shall 
be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of Meeting.

B. For Appointing Proxies:

(i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose securities are in group account and 
their registration detail is uploaded as per the regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement.

(ii) The proxy form shall be witnessed by the person whose name, address and CNIC number shall be mentioned on the form.

(iii) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.

(iv) The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of Meeting.

(v) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted 
(unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.

v. Circulation of Annual Audited Accounts via Email / CD / USB / DVD or Any Other Media

 SECP through its SRO 470(1)/2016, dated May 31, 2016, has allowed companies to circulate the annual balance sheet, profit 
and loss account,  auditors’ report and Directors’ report etc (“annual audited accounts”) to its members through CD/DVD/USB 
at their registered addresses. In view of the above, the Company has sent its Annual Report 2018 to its shareholders in the 
form of CD. Any member requiring printed copy of Annual Report 2018 may send a request using a Standard Request Form 
placed on Company website. 

 Members are hereby informed that pursuant to SECP SRO 787(1)/2014 dated September 8, 2014, and under Section 223(6) 
of the Companies Act 2017, circulation of Audited Financial Statements and Notice of Annual General Meeting has been allowed 
in electronic format through email.

 Members can request a hard copy which shall be provided free of cost within seven days from receipt of requisition. 

vi. Video Conference Facility

 If the Company receives consent from members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing at a geographical 
location, to participate in the meeting through video conference at least 10 days prior to date of meeting, the Company will 

arrange video conference facility in that city subject to availability of such facility in that city. The Company will intimate Members 
regarding venue of video conference facility at least 5 days before the date of the Annual General Meeting along with complete 
information necessary to enable them to access such facility.

vii. Submission of CNIC / SNIC / NTN

 The SRO 831(2)/2012 dated July 5, 2012 read with SRO 19(1)/2014 dated January 10, 2014 issued by SECP, requires printing 
of CNIC / SNIC or NTN (in case of corporate entities) on the dividend warrant, without which no dividend warrant shall be 
issued. Therefore, the individual members who have not yet submitted photocopy of their valid CNICs / SNICs, are once again 
reminded to send the same at the earliest directly to the Company’s share registrar. The Corporate entities are requested to 
provide their NTN. Please give folio number with the copy of CNIC / SNIC / NTN details. 

viii. Dividend Mandate

 Under the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, it is mandatory for a listed Company to pay cash dividend 
to its shareholders only through electronic mode directly into bank account designated by the entitled shareholders. In order 
to receive dividends directly into their bank account, shareholders are requested to fill in Dividend Mandate Form available on 
Company’s website i.e. http://www.atlashonda.com.pk and send it duly signed along with a copy of CNIC to the Registrar of 
the Company M/s. Hameed Majeed Associates (Private) Limited, H.M House, 7-Bank Square, Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, Lahore, 
Pakistan in case of physical shares. In case shares are held in CDC then Dividend Mandate Form must be submitted directly 
to shareholder’s broker/ participant/CDC account services.

ix. Unclaimed Dividend 

 Pursuant to Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, any shares issued or dividend declared by the Company, which remain 
unclaimed or unpaid for a period of three years from the date it become due payable shall vest with the Federal Government 
after compliance of procedures prescribed under the Company Act, 2017. Section 244(I)(a) of the Act requires the Company 
to give a 90 days’ notice to the members to file their claims with the Company. Further SECP vide Direction No. 16 of 2017 
issued on July 07, 2017 directed all listed Companies issued such notice to the members and submit statement of unclaimed 
shares or dividend or any other instruments which remain unclaimed or unpaid for a period of three years from the date it is 
due and payable as of May 30, 2017.

x. Withholding Tax on Dividend

 Pursuant to the provisions of Finance Act, 2017, different rates are prescribed for deduction of withholding tax on the amount 
of dividend paid by the companies, as under:

 The ‘Filer’ is defined as a taxpayer whose name appears in the Active Tax-payers List (ATL) issued by Federal Board of Revenue 
(FBR) from time to time. 

 To enable the Company to withhold tax @ 15% for filers, all the shareholders are advised to ensure that their names appear in 
the latest available ATL on FBR website, otherwise tax on their cash dividend will be deducted @ 20% for non-filers.

 In case of joint shareholder, each shareholder is to be treated individually as either a filer or non-filer and tax will be deducted 
on the basis of shareholding of each shareholder as may be notified by the shareholders, in writing as follows, to our share 
registrar, or if no such notification is received each shareholder shall be assumed to have an equal number of shares:

 The required information must reach the shares registrar of the Company by the close of business on June 13, 2018 otherwise 
it will be assumed that the shares are equally held by Principal shareholder and Joint shareholder(s).

 As per FBR’s clarification, the valid exemption certificate under section 159 of the ordinance is mandatory to claim exemption 
of withholding tax under clause 47B of Part IV of 2nd Schedule of the Income tax Ordinance, 2001. Those who fall in the category 
mentioned in the aforesaid clause must provide valid tax exemption certificate to our share registrar, otherwise tax will be 
deducted on dividend amount as per rates prescribed in Section 150 of the Income tax Ordinance, 2001.

xi.  E-Voting

 Members can also exercise their right of E-voting subject to the requirements of S. 143 - 145 of the Companies Act 2017 and 
the applicable clauses of the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018. 

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2017

Alteration in the articles of the Articles of Association of the Company is necessary in the light of the Companies Act, 2017. The 
proposed changes in the Articles of Association of the Company are being made to bring the articles in conformity with the Companies 
Act, 2017.

The Comparative statement of proposed amendments is being sent to the Members along with this Notice.

The Directors have no personal interest in the above business.
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Particulars 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Profitability Ratios

Gross profit margin %  10.7    10.5    10.3    10.2    9.5    8.7 
Profit before tax margin %  8.1    7.9    7.4    7.1    6.0    5.2 
Net profit margin %  6.0    5.8    5.5    5.1    4.5    3.8 
Return on capital employed % 40.4     39.7    37.1    37.9    37.2    36.9 
Return on equity - before tax % 42.8    42.0    36.8    35.1    34.0    33.7 
Return on equity - after tax % 31.9    30.9    27.3    25.4    25.3    24.5 
Return on assets %  16.2    16.3    14.7    14.9    13.9    13.4 
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation
   and amortization (EBITDA) Rs. In million 7,174.0   5,905.9    4,753.4    3,898.4    3,329.2    2,831.9 
EBITDA margin % 9.3    9.2    8.6    8.5    7.5    6.7 
       
Equity Ratios
       
Cash dividend per share (declared) Rs.  27.00    18.50    14.50    12.0    10.0    7.5 
Stock dividend per share (bonus shares
   declared for the year) Rs.  -       -       -       -       -       2.5 
Bonus shares declared for the year No. in '000  -       -       -       -       -       20,681 
Earning per share Rs. 45.10   36.29    29.03    22.73    19.36    19.44 
Price earning ratio Times 11.64    15.42    13.26    14.60    15.1    9.9 
Market price per share for the year  Rs.  525.0    559.7    385.0    335.0    292.6    191.5 
 - maximum value Rs.  657.0    620.0    414.8    405.3    299.0    192.0 
 - minimum value Rs.  470.0    362.0    320.1    209.0    171.0    114.0 
Break up value per share Rs.  154.7    128.2    106.4    89.3    76.5    79.3 
Dividend yield %  5.1    3.3    3.8    3.6    3.4    5.2 
Dividend cover Times 1.7    2.0    2.0    1.9    1.9    1.9 
Dividend pay out %  59.9    51.0    49.9    52.8    51.7    51.5 
Plough back ratio %  40.1    49.0    50.5    47.2    48.3    48.5 
Weighted average cost of debt %  -     -      -      -      -      -   
Cost of equity  %  5.1    3.3    7.5    6.8    6.6    10.1 
       
Efficiency Ratios
       
Assets turnover Times  2.7    2.8    2.7    2.9    3.1    3.5 
Fixed assets turnover Times  9.7    9.3    9.5    9.2    9.8    9.6 
Inventory turnover Times  23.4    23.0    22.3    19.7    16.5    15.1 
Debtors turnover Times  104.4    104.8    83.8    65.0    85.5    82.2 
Creditors turnover Times  5.2    5.6    6.9    7.1    7.2    8.5 
Capital employed turnover Times  4.8    4.9    5.0    5.0    6.2    6.5 
       
Operating Cycle
       
Period of inventory holding Days  17    17    17    18    22    24 
Period of collection from debtors Days  4    4    4    6    4    4 
Period of payments to creditors Days  (70)   (69)   (53)   (51)   (51)   (44)
Operating cycle Days  (49)   (48)   (31)   (27)   (25)   (16)
       
Liquidity / Leverage Ratios
       
Current ratio Times  1.6    1.6    1.7    1.8    1.7    1.6 
Quick ratio Times  1.4    1.4    1.4    1.5    1.3    1.1 
Debt to equity / financial leverage ratio Times               ------------------------------- ------------ D e b t  F r e e  ------------------------------------------      
Total liabilities to equity Times  0.99    0.93    0.85    0.71    0.82    0.83 
Interest cover Times  11,645.69    10,523.19    3,388.30    3,862.5    5,651.0    1,797.9 
Operating leverage ratio %  114.7    149.9    122.2    709.0    427.9    317.2 
Cash to current liabilities Times  0.7    0.6    0.6    0.6    0.5    0.6 
Cash flow from opertions to sales %  10.1    10.0    10.0    6.1    7.9    5.2 

Six Years Analysis of Financial Statements
Financial Ratios
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Particulars 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
 ---------------------------------Rupees in '000 ---------------------------------

Property, plant & equipment 7,976,101   6,961,919   5,817,700   4,982,552   4,552,816   4,421,744 
Intangible asset 44,905   37   5,379   12,774   4,781   5,555 
Long term investments 324,899   292,342   245,508   216,283   -     -   
Long term loans and advances 31,481   30,108   28,027   27,198   26,396   25,583 
Long term deposits 22,573   17,339   14,937   12,986   9,632   8,399 

Total non current assets 8,399,959   7,301,745   6,111,551   5,251,793   4,593,625   4,461,281 
       
Current Assets       
Stores,spares and loose tools 650,160   539,104   489,415   421,339   400,424   390,250 
Stock in trade 2,599,530   2,123,831   1,863,482   1,660,529   2,042,602   2,171,536 
Trade debts 861,224   623,331   608,420   704,597   520,321   514,742 
Loans and advances 40,107   38,921   35,877   41,235   35,305   33,253 
Trade deposits and prepayments 137,663   120,562   64,770   59,568   50,679   47,722 
Short term investments 8,400,246   7,080,669   5,876,554   4,119,696   3,691,241   1,635,183 
Accrued mark-up/interest 15,557   21,470   16,842   10,857   11,130   11,603 
Other receivables 15,528   6,627   4,910   3,674   4,666   6,302 
Taxation-net 725,750   732,706   542,121   99,185   -     2,578 
Bank balances 9,981,615   7,053,784   4,755,020   3,409,200   2,843,738   2,739,988 

Total current assets 23,427,380   18,341,005   14,257,411   10,529,880   9,600,106   7,553,157 
      
Non Current Assets Classified as
Held for Sales -         -         -         -          171,459  -        
      
Total assets 31,827,339   25,642,750   20,368,962   15,781,673   14,365,190   12,014,438 
       
Equity & Liabilities       

Equity       
Share capital 1,034,066   1,034,066   1,034,066   1,034,066   1,034,066   827,253 
Reserves 14,966,654   12,223,467   9,968,057   8,204,479   6,879,247   5,732,907 
       
Total equity 16,000,720   13,257,533   11,002,123   9,238,545   7,913,313   6,560,160 
       
Non Current Liablities       
Compensated absences 241,681   228,443   214,620   195,145   192,042   170,248 
Deferred taxation 698,042   670,968   566,749   578,249   637,558   696,727 
       
Total non current liablities 939,723   899,411   781,369   773,394   829,600   866,975 
       
Current Liabilities       
Trade and other payables 14,886,896   11,485,806   8,585,470   5,769,734   5,577,694   4,587,303 
Taxation  - net -           -           -          -         44,583   -        
       
Total current liabilities 14,886,896   11,485,806   8,585,470   5,769,734   5,622,277   4,587,303 
       
Total equity and liabilities 31,827,339   25,642,750   20,368,962   15,781,673   14,365,190   12,014,438 

Non Current Assets

Six Years Analysis of Financial Statements
Statement of Financial Position 

Assets
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Six Years Analysis of Financial Statements
Statement of Financial Position

 --------------------------------------------------Percentage-----------------------------------------------------

Vertical AnalysisHorizontal Analysis

Particulars

Property, plant & equipment  15   20   17   9   3   12      25   27   29   32   32   37 
Intangible asset  121,265   (99)  (58)  167   (14)  (13)    0   0   0   0   0   0 
Long term investments  11   19   14   100   -     -         1   1   1   1   -     -   
Long term loans and advances  5   7   3   3   3   25    0   0   0   0   0   0 
Long term deposits  30   16   15   35   15   (47)     0   0   0   0   0   0 
             
Total non current assets  15   19   16   14   3   12      26   28   30   33   32   37 
             
Current Assets             
Stores,spares and loose tools  21   10   16   5   3   12      2   2   2   3   3   3 
Stock in trade  22   14   12   (19)  (6)  0     8   8   9   11   14   18 
Trade debts  38   2   (14)  35   1   (14)    3   2   3   4   4   4 
Loans and advances  3   8   (13)  17   6   0    0   0   0   0   0   0 
Trade deposits and prepayments  14   86   9   18   6   6      0   0   0   0   0   0 
Short term investments  19   20   43   12   126   12     26   28   29   26   26   14 
Accrued mark-up/interest  (28)  27   55   (2)  (4)  167     0   0   0   0   0   0 
Other receivables  134   35   34   (21)  (26)  (59)     0   0   0   0   0   0 
Taxation-net  (1)  35   447   100   (100)  (98)   2   3   3   1   -     0 
Bank balances  42   48   39   20   4   27      31   28   23   22   20   23 
             
Total current assets  28   29   35   10   27   8      74   72   70   67   67   63 
             
Non Current Assets Classified as
Held for Sales  -    -    -    (100)  100   -            -     1   -   
             
Total  assets  24   26   29   10   20   10      100   100   100   100   100   100 
             
Equity & Liabilities             

Equity             
Share capital  -     -     -     -     25   15      3   4   5   7   7   7 
Reserves  22   23   21   19   20   22      47   48   49   52   48   48 
             
Total equity  21   20   19   17   21   21      50   52   54   59   55   55 

Non Current Liablities             
Compensated absences  6   6   10   2   13   11     1   1   1   1   1  1 
Deferred taxation  4   18   (2)  (9)  (8) 21      2   3   3  4  5   6 
             
Total non current liablities  4   15   1   (7)  (4)  19      3   4   4   5   6   7 
             
Current Liabilities             
Trade and other payables  30   34   49   3   22   (5)     47   45   42   37   39   38 
Accrued mark-up / interest  -     -     -     -     -     -       -     -     -     -     -     -   
Current portion of long term borrowings  -     -     -     -     -     -       -     -     -     -     -     -   
Taxation - net  -     -     -     (100)  100   -         -     -     -     -     0   -   
             
Total current liabilities  30   34   49   3   23   (5)     47   45   42   37   39   38 
             
Total equity and liabilities  24   26   29   10   20   10    100        100   100   100   100   100 

Non Current Assets

Assets
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2016

2016
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2015
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Six Years Analysis of Financial Statements
Statement of Financial Position
ASSETS
   
Non current assets
  
Non-current assets mainly include property, plant and equipment and long term investments. Property, plant and equipment registered 
an increase of Rs. 3.6 billion since 2013 due to expansion of production facilities and balancing, modernization and replacement of existing 
manufacturing facilities and other routine capex requirements. Further, the Company has made an acquisition of 29.23% in Atlas Hitec 
(Private) Limited at a cost of Rs. 0.2 billion. Consequently the long term investment stand at Rs. 0.3 billion at the end of 2018, with an 
increase of 50% 0.2 billion in 2015.     
   
Current assets
   
Current Assets mainly constitute of stores and spares, stock in trade, trade debts, other receivables, short term investments and cash & 
bank balances. Variation in current assets balances was mainly due to the increase in short term investments and cash & bank balances 
owing to better cash availability on account of increase in customer advances and profit retention for reinvestment and future growth. 
Stocks increased by Rs. 0.7 billion due to production requirements. However, inventory holding period reduced from 24 days to 17 days 
on account of better inventory management.    
   
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
   
Equity
   
Issuance of 25% bonus share in 2013 resulted in a share of capital of Rs. 1.034 billion at the end of year 2014. Reserves increased at 
cumulative average growth rate of around 20% since 2013 primarily on account of profit retention for re-investment and future growth. 
Resultantly, shareholders' equity comprising of share capital and reserves rose to Rs. 16.0 billion at the end of the year 2018 around 
246% higher than Rs. 6.5 billion recorded in 2013.    
   
Non current liabilities
   
Non current liabilities, comprising of deferred taxation and compensated leave absences at Rs. 0.9 billion is in line with historical trend 
of past six years primarily due to accumulation of leave absences.    
   
Current liabilities
   
Current liabilities increased from Rs.4.6 billion in 2013 to Rs. 14.9 billion in 2018 primarily due to increase in customer advances and 
trade related payables, which are in line with the increasing sales and production trend respectively.  
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Profit and Loss Account
Sales  77,478,845   64,534,021   55,022,415   45,772,177   44,478,713   42,325,242 
      
Cost of sales  (69,188,101)  (57,754,987)  (49,376,506)  (41,098,571)  (40,253,929)  (38,646,049)
      
Gross Profit  8,290,744   6,779,034   5,645,909   4,673,606   4,224,784   3,679,193 
      
Sales and marketing expenses  (1,852,057)  (1,630,773)  (1,456,152)  (1,314,231)  (1,293,938)  (1,206,648)
      
Administrative expenses  (634,594)  (602,343)  (499,915)  (432,622)  (430,054)  (387,477)
      
Other income  877,908   916,333   637,074   543,924   420,651   322,668 
      
Other operating expenses  (445,037)  (404,740)  (310,682)  (245,132)  (223,989)  (190,453)
      
Share of profit of an Associated
   Company - net of tax  50,607   61,084   43,475   26,283   -         -       
      
Profit from operations  6,287,571   5,118,595   4,059,709   3,251,828   2,697,454   2,217,283 
      
Finance cost  (22,725)  (25,853)  (15,280)  (8,190)  (8,036)  (9,726)
      
Profit before taxation  6,264,846   5,092,742   4,044,429   3,243,638   2,689,418   2,207,557 
      
Taxation  (1,601,211)  (1,340,263)  (1,042,630)  (892,747)  (687,858)  (599,753)
      
Profit after taxation  4,663,635   3,752,479   3,001,799   2,350,891   2,001,560   1,607,804 
      

Particulars 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

---------------------------------------------- (Rupees in ’000) ----------------------------------------------

Six Years Analysis of the Financial Statements
Statement of Profit or Loss

Profit and Loss Account
Sales  20.1   17.3   20.2   2.9   5.1   11.3   100.0   100.0   100.0   100.0   100.0   100.0 
            
Cost of sales  19.8   17.0   20.1   2.1   4.2   9.7   (89.3)  (89.5)  (89.7)  (89.8)  (90.5)  (91.3)
            
Gross Profit  22.3   20.1   20.8   10.6   14.8   32.5   10.7   10.5   10.3   10.2   9.5   8.7 
            
Sales and marketing expenses  13.6   12.0   10.8   1.6   7.3   24.9   (2.4)  (2.5)  (2.6)  (2.9)  (2.9)  (2.9)
            
Administrative expenses  5.4   20.5   15.6   0.6   11.0   15.4   (0.8)  (0.9)  (0.9)  (0.9)  (1.0)  (0.9)
            
Other income  (4.2)  43.8   17.1   29.3   30.4   17.6   1.1   1.4   1.2   1.1   0.9   0.8 
            
Other operating expenses  10.0   30.3   26.7   9.4   17.6   62.6   (0.6)  (0.6)  (0.6)  (0.5)  (0.5)  (0.4)
            
Share of profit of an Associated
   Company - net of tax  (17.2)  40.5   65.4   100.0   -     -     0.1   0.1   0.1   0.1   -     -   
            
Profit from operations  22.8   26.1   24.8   20.6   21.7   35.9   8.1   7.9   7.4   7.1   6.0   5.2 
            
Finance cost  (12.1)  69.2   86.6   1.9   (17.4)  (17.0)  (0.03)  (0.04)  (0.03)  (0.02)  (0.02)  (0.02)
            
Profit before taxation  23.0   25.9   24.7   20.6   21.8   36.3   8.1   7.9   7.4   7.1   6.0   5.2 
            
Taxation  19.5   28.5   16.8   29.8   14.7   44.2   (2.1)  (2.1)  (1.9)  (2.0)  (1.5)  (1.4)
            
Profit after taxation  24.3   25.0   27.7   17.5   24.5   33.5   6.0   5.8   5.5   5.1   4.5   3.8 

 -------------------------------------------------- Percentage -----------------------------------------------------
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Six Years Analysis of the Financial Statements
Statement of Profit or Loss
Sales & Cost of sales
   
The Company remained focused towards delivering objective of sustainable growth through value creation. The momentum of increasing 
sales continued over the period of six year on account of positive market demand. It resulted in achievement of cumulative average 
growth rate of 13% over six years period. Further, cost of sales recorded an cumulative average growth rate of 12% since 2013, on 
account of volume growth. Resultantly, Gross Profit margin improved from 8.7% to 10.7%.      
       
Selling General and Administrative Expenses
       
Selling general and administrative expenses remained under control and as a percentage of sales decreased from 3.8% to 3.2% since 
2013. However, in terms of absolute numbers, increase by 56% over the period of six years mainly on account of inflation and sales 
related expense.   
       
Other Operating Expenses
       
Other operating expenses increased from Rs. 190 million in 2013 to Rs. 445 million in 2018 over the period of six years with cumulative 
average growth rate of 19 %. These mainly comprises of provision for workers' welfare funds and workers' profit participation funds 
that were directly related to profits.       
     
Other Operating Income
       
Other operating income increased from Rs. 323 million in 2013 to Rs. 929 million in 2018 over the period of six years with cumulative 
average growth rate of 22 %. This is on account of investment of surplus funds in TDRs, mutual funds and income from associate. 
            
Taxation 
      
The taxation charge decreased due to reduction in corporate income tax rates by the federal government.  
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Cash Flow Statement      
      
Cash flows from operating activities  7,803,002   6,435,417   5,523,178   2,808,104   3,531,566   2,208,740 
      
Cash flows from investing activities  (2,970,748)  (2,643,558)  (2,947,543)  (1,216,243)  (2,813,658)  (1,154,675)
      
Cash flows from financing activites  (1,904,423)  (1,493,095)  (1,229,815)  (1,026,399)  (614,158)  (463,231)
      
Net increase / (decrease)
   in cash & cash equivalent  2,927,831   2,298,764   1,345,820   565,462   103,750   590,834 

Particulars 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

---------------------------------------------- (Rupees in ’000) ----------------------------------------------

Six Years Analysis of the Financial Statements
Statement of Cash Flows

Cash Flow Statement          
        
Cash flows from
   operating activites  21.3   16.5   96.7   (20.5)  59.9   28.4   266.5   280.0   410.4   496.6   3,403.9   373.8 
            
Cash flows from
   investing activities  12.4   (10.3)  142.3   (56.8)  143.7   (1.4)  (101.5)  (115.0)  (219.0)  (215.1)  (2,711.9)  (195.4)
            
Cash flows from
   financing activities  27.5   21.4   19.8   67.1   32.6   (5.7)  (65.0)  (65.0)  (91.4)  (181.5)  (592.0)  (78.4)
            
Net increase / (decrease)
   in cash & cash equivalent  27.4   70.8   138.0   445.0   (82.4)  912.5   100.0   100.0   100.0   100.0   100.0   100.0 

 ------------------------------------------------------------- Percentage ----------------------------------------------------------------

Vertical AnalysisHorizontal Analysis

Particulars
2018

vs
2017

2017
vs

2016

2016
vs

2015

2015
vs

2014

2014
vs

2013

2013
vs

2012
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Analysis of Cash flows, Liquidity & Financing arrangements     
     
Cash flow from Operating Activities
     
The net cash generated from operations stood at Rs. 7.8 billion in 2018 against Rs. 2.2 billion of 2013, with the cumulative average 
growth rate of 29%. This is due to sustained profitability and favorable movement  in working capital related items.    
  
Cash flow from Investing Activities
     
The cash flows used in investing activities were Rs. 2.9 Billion in 2018 as compared to Rs. 1.2 Billion used in 2013 with cumulative 
average growth rate of 21%. Investment in fixed capital expenditures and short term investment were main constituents of cash outflow 
from investing activities.     
   
Cash flow from Financing Activities
     
There is no long term cash borrowings. The net cash flow from financing activities has increased from Rs. 0.46 billion to Rs. 1.9 billion 
comprising of only dividend payments.     
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Cashflow Analysis - Rupees in Billion

7

5

3

1

(1)

(3)

(5)
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Cash flow from investing activities Cash flow from financing activitiesCash flow from operating activities

Six Years Analysis of the Financial Statements
Statement of Cash Flows
Strategy to overcome liquidity problems
     
The Company has implemented a proactive cash management system to ensure smooth working capital management. Internal cash 
generation, secured through sales revenues and returns from diversified investments, are used to meet liquidity requirements of the 
Company. Controls on customer advances optimizes the revenue realization, whereas income streams from our strategic equity 
investments further augment cash flows. No reliance is placed on external borrowings, which ensures no financial cost.

Treasury management system ensures availability of an effective mechanism for investment of surplus funds on favorably effective 
rates, which contribute to the investment income, while also ensuring sufficient funds are available for operational requirements. 
        
Liquidity Arrangement and Financing Arrangement     
     
The Company believes in financing through cash generations from operations rather than long term financing. Accordingly, it takes 
no borrowing and has maintained "Debt Free" status since past seven years.      
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Share Price Sensitivity Analysis
The Company’s share price is interlinked with Company’s financial performance and has positive correlation with the factors influencing 
the Company’s performance.

In prevailing business scenario, management considers the following factors to which the performance and share price of the Company 
may be sensitive. 

Agriculture

About 20% of the country’s Gross Domestic Product (GDP) is 
based on agriculture and involves almost half of the labour force 
of the nation. Therefore, the performance of the Company is 
thoroughly reliant on the performance of this sector. Agricultural 
growth is contingent on crop acreage, weather conditions, 
availability of irrigation water & farm inputs, and support prices. 
These factors, when favorable, boost farmers’ earnings which 
result in rise in motorcycle sales.

Law and Order

Poor state of law and order situation in the Country disrupts 
business activities. Transportation strikes, sit-in protests, 
hindrance in supply chain and limitations on public’s use of 
motorcycles negatively affect the Company’s sales. However, 
actions taken against criminals and strict measures by law 
enforcement agencies help in alleviating security concerns which 
consequently uplift the Company’s performance.

Plant Operations

Stable plant operations lead to higher and better production 
efficiencies. Share price may be affected by commotions at 
production facilities that negatively affect the financial performance 
of the Company.

Capital and Money Markets

The Company’s short term investments amount to Rs 8.4 billion, 
which mainly comprise of those in open ended mutual funds. 
These funds largely invest in capital, money market, and equity 
instruments. Trends in these markets determine the Net Asset 
Value (NAV) of these funds and as a result, also affect the 
company’s financial performance.

Low Medium High

Interest Rates

The Company enjoys a strong liquidity position and debt free 
status since last 7 years. Funds approximating Rs 9.9 billion are 
held in bank savings account and term deposit receipts which 
generates treasury income. Therefore, any change in the interest 
rate leads to a change in income. Conversely, decline results in 
deteriorating returns on funds maintained.

Material Price Volatility

The Company uses various materials such as steel, aluminum, 
paints etc in production of motorcycles. Being manufacturing 
concern, purchasing of raw material forms a major chunk of the 
total cost incurred by the Company every year. Therefore any 
adverse movement in material prices can trim the gross profit 
which in turn may affect the share price. 

Energy Crisis

One of the most crucial factors for the survival of manufacturing 
segment in the Country is the availability of gas and electricity 
shaping its performance. Disrupted supply of gas and electricity 
forces businesses to resort to expensive alternatives like diesel 
generators, which then directly affect the Company’s financial 
well-being.

Atlas Honda Limited Market Performance Summary

Exchange Fluctuations

Due to the import of plant and machinery, raw material and 
related items, the Company has to bear currency exchange rate 
fluctuation risk. Hence, the devaluation of Pak rupee against US 
dollar and Japanese Yen directly affects the Company’s profit 
by inflating import cost.
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Statement of Value Addition and its Distribution

Value Addition      
Net sales including sales tax 99.03%   89,604,928   98.79%   74,582,982
Other operating income 0.97%   877,908   1.21%   916,333

 100.00%   90,482,836   100.00%   75,499,315
Bought in materials and services (Balancing) -70.90%   (64,148,358)  -71.37%   (53,882,890 )

Value Added 29.10%   26,334,478   28.63%   21,616,425
      
Value Distribution      
      
To Government      
Income tax, sales tax, custom & excise duties, 64.65%   17,025,928   63.26%  13,673,738
workers funds, EOBI & social security  contribution      
and local taxes      
      
To Employees      
Remuneration & benefits 14.03%  3,694,209   15.38%  3,325,580
      
To Society      
Donations 0.20%  51,649   0.31%  67,349
      
To Providers of capital      
Financial charges to providers of finance 0.00%   -         0.00%   -       
Dividends for shareholders 10.60%  2,791,979   8.85%  1,913,022
      
Retained for re-investment and future growth 10.52%  2,770,713   12.20%  2,636,736
      
Total Value Distributed 100.00%  26,334,478   100.00%  21,616,425

Year ended March 31

(Rupees in ‘000)

2018% 2017%

64.65%
Government 

2017: 63.26%

14.03%
Employees

2017: 15.38% 0.20%
Society

2017: 0.31%
10.60%

Providers of Capital

2017: 8.85%

10.52%
Retained

2017: 12.20%
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This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance (the Code) contained in Regulation No. 5.19 of 
the Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited for the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby a listed 
company is managed in compliance with best practices of corporate governance. This statement is presented in the format mentioned 
under the code 2012 as contained in Rule Book.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the Code in the following manner:

1. The Company encourages the representation of independent non-executive directors and directors representing minority interests 
on its Board of Directors. At present, the Board includes one independent director, three executive and four non-executive 
directors.

 The independent Director meets the criteria of independence under clause 1(b) of the CCG.

2. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in more than seven listed companies, including Atlas 
Honda Limited.

3. All the resident directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in payment of any loan to 
a banking company, DFI or NBFI or, being a member of stock exchange, has been declared as a defaulter by that stock exchange.

4. Following casual vacancies, occurring during the year, were duly filled with in seven days by the Directors:

a) Mr. Yasutaka Uda vacated the position on March 30, 2018 and Mr. Yukitoshi Fujisaka was appointed in his place on April 5,  
 2018

b) Mr. Susumu Mitsuishi vacated the position on March 30, 2018 and Mr. Hironobu Yoshimura was appointed in his place on  
 April 5, 2018

5. The Company has prepared a ‘Code of Conduct’ and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it 
throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

6. The Board has developed vision and mission statements, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the Company. A 
complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the date on which they were approved or amended has been 
maintained.

7. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, including appointment and 
determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the CEO and other executive Directors, have been 
taken by the Board.

8. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and in his absence, by a director elected by the Board for this 
purpose and the Board met at least once in every quarter. Written notices of the Board meetings, along with agenda and working 
papers, were circulated at least seven days before the meetings to all the directors. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately 
recorded and circulated.

Statement of Compliance with the Code of
Corporate Governance

Category  Names

Independent Director  Mr. Abid Naqvi
  
Executive Directors  Mr. Saquib H. Shirazi
  Mr. Yukitoshi Fujisaka 
  Mr. Hirofumi Yada
  
Non Executive Directors  Mr. Yusuf H. Shirazi
  Mr. Hironobu Yoshimura
  Mr. Sanaullah Qureshi
  Mr. Jawaid Iqbal Ahmed

9. The directors were apprised about the changes in the code, applicable laws and their duties and responsibilities to effectively 
manage the affairs of the Company for and on behalf of the shareholders.

10. Out of the eight, five Directors have either obtained certificate of Directors’ Training Program or are exempted from the requirement 
of Directors’ Training Program as per the clause 5.19.7 of the Code. While the remaining three Directors will undertake the 
Directors’ Training Program with in the stipulated time.

11. The Board has approved the appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration 
and terms and conditions of employment.

12. The Directors’ report for the year ended March 31, 2018 has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Code 
and fully describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

13. The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by CFO and CEO before approval of the Board.

14. The directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than that disclosed in the pattern 
of shareholding.

15. The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the Code.

16. The Board has already formed an Audit Committee. It comprises of three members of whom two are non-executive directors and 
one is an independent director. The chairman of the committee is a non-executive director.

 
17. The meetings of the Audit Committee were held at least once every quarter prior to the approval of interim and final results of 

the Company, as required by the Code. The terms of reference of the Committee have been prepared and advised to the 
Committee for compliance.

18. The Board has already formed Human Resource and Remuneration Committee. It comprises of three members of whom two 
are non-executive and one is executive director. The chairman of the committee is a non-executive director.

19. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function manned by suitably qualified and experienced personnel who are 
conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

20. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the quality control 
review program of the ICAP, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of 
the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines 
on Code of Ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

 
21. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in accordance 

with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

22. The ‘closed period’, prior to the announcement of interim/final results, and business decisions, which may materially affect the 
market price of Company’s securities, was determined and intimated to directors, employees and stock exchange.

23. Material/price sensitive information has been disseminated among all market participants at once through stock exchange.

24. The company has complied with the requirements relating to maintenance of register of persons having access to inside information 
by designated senior management officer in a timely manner and maintained proper record including basis for inclusion or 
exclusion of names of persons from the said list.

25. We confirm that all other material principles enshrined in the Code have also been complied with.

   On behalf of the Board
 

   Saquib H. Shirazi 
Karachi: April 30, 2018 Chief Executive Officer
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This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance (the Code) contained in Regulation No. 5.19 of 
the Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited for the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby a listed 
company is managed in compliance with best practices of corporate governance. This statement is presented in the format mentioned 
under the code 2012 as contained in Rule Book.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the Code in the following manner:

1. The Company encourages the representation of independent non-executive directors and directors representing minority interests 
on its Board of Directors. At present, the Board includes one independent director, three executive and four non-executive 
directors.

 The independent Director meets the criteria of independence under clause 1(b) of the CCG.

2. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in more than seven listed companies, including Atlas 
Honda Limited.

3. All the resident directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in payment of any loan to 
a banking company, DFI or NBFI or, being a member of stock exchange, has been declared as a defaulter by that stock exchange.

4. Following casual vacancies, occurring during the year, were duly filled with in seven days by the Directors:

a) Mr. Yasutaka Uda vacated the position on March 30, 2018 and Mr. Yukitoshi Fujisaka was appointed in his place on April 5,  
 2018

b) Mr. Susumu Mitsuishi vacated the position on March 30, 2018 and Mr. Hironobu Yoshimura was appointed in his place on  
 April 5, 2018

5. The Company has prepared a ‘Code of Conduct’ and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it 
throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

6. The Board has developed vision and mission statements, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the Company. A 
complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the date on which they were approved or amended has been 
maintained.

7. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, including appointment and 
determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the CEO and other executive Directors, have been 
taken by the Board.

8. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and in his absence, by a director elected by the Board for this 
purpose and the Board met at least once in every quarter. Written notices of the Board meetings, along with agenda and working 
papers, were circulated at least seven days before the meetings to all the directors. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately 
recorded and circulated.

9. The directors were apprised about the changes in the code, applicable laws and their duties and responsibilities to effectively 
manage the affairs of the Company for and on behalf of the shareholders.

10. Out of the eight, five Directors have either obtained certificate of Directors’ Training Program or are exempted from the requirement 
of Directors’ Training Program as per the clause 5.19.7 of the Code. While the remaining three Directors will undertake the 
Directors’ Training Program with in the stipulated time.

11. The Board has approved the appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration 
and terms and conditions of employment.

12. The Directors’ report for the year ended March 31, 2018 has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Code 
and fully describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

13. The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by CFO and CEO before approval of the Board.

14. The directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than that disclosed in the pattern 
of shareholding.

15. The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the Code.

16. The Board has already formed an Audit Committee. It comprises of three members of whom two are non-executive directors and 
one is an independent director. The chairman of the committee is a non-executive director.

 
17. The meetings of the Audit Committee were held at least once every quarter prior to the approval of interim and final results of 

the Company, as required by the Code. The terms of reference of the Committee have been prepared and advised to the 
Committee for compliance.

18. The Board has already formed Human Resource and Remuneration Committee. It comprises of three members of whom two 
are non-executive and one is executive director. The chairman of the committee is a non-executive director.

19. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function manned by suitably qualified and experienced personnel who are 
conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

20. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the quality control 
review program of the ICAP, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of 
the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines 
on Code of Ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

 
21. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in accordance 

with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

22. The ‘closed period’, prior to the announcement of interim/final results, and business decisions, which may materially affect the 
market price of Company’s securities, was determined and intimated to directors, employees and stock exchange.

23. Material/price sensitive information has been disseminated among all market participants at once through stock exchange.

24. The company has complied with the requirements relating to maintenance of register of persons having access to inside information 
by designated senior management officer in a timely manner and maintained proper record including basis for inclusion or 
exclusion of names of persons from the said list.

25. We confirm that all other material principles enshrined in the Code have also been complied with.

   On behalf of the Board
 

   Saquib H. Shirazi 
Karachi: April 30, 2018 Chief Executive Officer
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Karachi: April 30, 2018                                                        SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO.
Engagement Partner: Raheel Ahmed                         CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate Governance 
(the Code) prepared by the Board of Directors of Atlas Honda Limited (the Company) for the year ended March 31, 2018 to comply 
with the requirements of Listing Regulation no. 5.19 of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited where the Company is listed.  
       
The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to review, to the 
extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's 
compliance with the provisions of the Code and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the 
Code. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company 
to comply with the Code.
         
As a part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal control systems 
sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' 
statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the 
Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.         

The Code requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before 
the Board of Directors for their review and approval of its related party transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out 
on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm's length price 
and recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured compliance of 
this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the 
Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at 
arm's length price or not.
         
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not 
appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices contained in the Code as applicable 
to the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018.

Review Report to the Members on Statement of Compliance 
with the Code of Corporate Governance

SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

PA K I S TA N

Karachi Chambers.
Hasrat Mohani Road, Karachi.
Tel: +92 21 32412754, 32411474
Fax: +92 21 32424835
Email: khi@hccpk.com

Principal Office:
HM House,
7-Bank Square, Lahore.
Tel: +92 42 37235084-87 
Fax: +92 42 37235083
Email: lhr@hccpk.com
www.hccpk.com
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Auditors' Report to the Members
We have audited the annexed statement of financial position of Atlas Honda Limited as at March 31, 2018 and the related statement 
of profit & loss account and other comprehensive income, statement of cash flows and statement of changes in equity together with 
the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, 
to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company's management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and prepare and present 
the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.    
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are free of any material misstatement. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall 
presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due 
verification, we report that:     
    
(a) in our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017;  

(b) in our opinion: 
       

(i) the statement of financial position and statement of profit & loss account and other comprehensive income together with the 
notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017, and are in agreement with the books of 
account and are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied; 

   
(ii) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company's business; and    

 
(iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in accordance with the objects 

of the Company;
      

(c) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of financial position, 
statement of profit & loss account and other comprehensive income, statement of cash flows and statement of changes in equity 
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2017, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state 
of the Company's affairs as at March 31, 2018 and of the profit, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and 
     

(d) in our opinion, Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the 
Company and deposited in Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.    

  
Karachi: April 30, 2018  SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO.
Engagement Partner: Raheel Ahmed CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

PA K I S TA N

Karachi Chambers.
Hasrat Mohani Road, Karachi.
Tel: +92 21 32412754, 32411474
Fax: +92 21 32424835
Email: khi@hccpk.com

Principal Office:
HM House,
7-Bank Square, Lahore.
Tel: +92 42 37235084-87 
Fax: +92 42 37235083
Email: lhr@hccpk.com
www.hccpk.com

a member firm of International
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Statement of Financial Position 
As at March 31, 2018 
  Note 2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----
Assets

Non current assets       

Property, plant and equipment 6  7,976,101    6,961,919 
Intangible assets 7  44,905    37 
Long term investments 8  324,899    292,342 
Long term loans and advances 9  31,481    30,108 
Long term deposits   22,573    17,339   
    
   8,399,959    7,301,745 
Current assets      
 
Stores, spares and loose tools 10  650,160    539,104 
Stock-in-trade 11  2,599,530    2,123,831 
Trade debts 12  861,224    623,331 
Loans and advances 13  40,107    38,921 
Trade deposits and prepayments 14  137,663    120,562 
Accrued mark-up / interest  15,557    21,470 
Other receivables 15  15,528    6,627 
Taxation - net  725,750    732,706 
Short term investments 16  8,400,246    7,080,669 
Bank balances        17  9,981,615    7,053,784 
       
   23,427,380    18,341,005 
       
   31,827,339    25,642,750 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES      
 
Equity      
 
Share capital 18  1,034,066    1,034,066 
Reserves 19  14,966,655    12,223,467 
       
   16,000,721    13,257,533 
Liabilities      
 
Non current liabilities      
 
Compensated absences 20  241,681    228,443 
Deferred taxation 21  698,042    670,968 
       
   939,723    899,411 
Current liabilities      
 
Trade and other payables 22  14,823,292    11,430,802 
Unclaimed dividend  63,603    55,004 
       
   14,886,895    11,485,806 
       
   15,826,618    12,385,217 

Contingencies and commitments 24 
   31,827,339    25,642,750 
     

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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  Note 2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----

Sales 25  77,478,845    64,534,021 
     
Cost of sales 26  (69,188,101)   (57,754,987)
     
     
Gross profit  8,290,744    6,779,034 
     
Sales and marketing expenses 27  (1,852,057)   (1,630,773)
     
Administrative expenses 28  (634,594)   (602,343)
     
Other income 29  877,908    916,333 
     
Other operating expenses 30  (445,037)   (404,740)
     
Share of net profit of an Associate  50,607    61,084 
     
     
Operating profit  6,287,571    5,118,595 
     
Finance costs 31  (22,725)   (25,853)
     
     
Profit before taxation  6,264,846    5,092,742 
     
Income tax expense 32  (1,601,211)   (1,340,263)
     
     
Profit for the year  4,663,635    3,752,479 
     
Other comprehensive income:     
     
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss     
     
 Remeasurements of staff retirement benefit obligation  (10,607)   3,324 
     
 Income tax relating to this remeasurement  3,182    (997)
     
     
Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year - net of tax  (7,425)   2,327 
     
Total comprehensive income for the year  4,656,210    3,754,806 
     

   ---------- (Rupees) ---------
     
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 33  45.10    36.29 
     

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.     
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  Note 2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----

Cash Flows from Operating Activities    

Cash generated from operations 34  9,245,031    7,837,362 
Income taxes paid  (1,563,999)   (1,427,626)
Contribution made to gratuity funds  (25,492)   (25,355)
Compensated absences paid  (24,181)   (17,071)
Mark-up / interest received  533,117    361,088 
Workers' profit participation fund paid  (270,713)   (215,727)
Workers' welfare fund paid  (84,154)   (72,771)
Long term loans and advances - net   (1,373)   (2,081)
Long term deposits - net   (5,234)   (2,402)
     
Net cash generated from operating activities  7,803,002    6,435,417 
     
Cash Flows from Investing Activities     
     
Payments for property, plant and equipment  (2,368,886)   (2,036,972)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  444,748    57,669 
Payments for intangible assets   (54,866)   -       
Payments for investments  (15,781,555)   (8,171,694)
Proceeds from sale of investments  14,739,346    7,282,296 
Dividend received  50,465    225,143 
     
Net cash used in investing activities  (2,970,748)   (2,643,558)
     
Cash Used in Financing Activities     
     
Dividend paid  (1,904,423)   (1,493,095)
     
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  2,927,831    2,298,764 
     
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  7,053,784    4,755,020 
     
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 17  9,981,615    7,053,784 
     

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.     
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  Capital Reserves Revenue Reserves
    Gain on  Unappro-
  Share Share Sale of General priated 
  Capital Premium Land Reserve Profit Total
  --------------------------------- (Rupees in ’000) -----------------------------------

Balance as at  April 1, 2016   1,034,066    39,953    165    6,162,000    3,765,939    11,002,123 
            
Transfer to general reserve   -          -        -      830,000    (830,000)   -        
            
Transaction with owners             
   in their capacity as owners            
            
Final dividend for the year             
   ended March 31, 2016 at             
   the rate of Rs.14.50 per share   -          -        -      -          (1,499,396)   (1,499,396)
            
Total comprehensive income for             
   the year ended March 31, 2017            
            
Profit for the year   -          -        -      -          3,752,479    3,752,479 
            
Other comprehensive income    -          -        -      -          2,327    2,327 
            
     -          -        -      -          3,754,806    3,754,806 
            
Balance as at March 31, 2017   1,034,066    39,953    165    6,992,000    5,191,349    13,257,533 
            
Transfer to general reserve   -          -        -      1,000,000    (1,000,000)   -        
            
Transaction with owners             
   in their capacity as owners            
            
Final dividend for the year             
   ended March 31, 2017 at             
   the rate of Rs.18.50 per share   -          -        -      -          (1,913,022)   (1,913,022)
            
Total comprehensive income for             
   the year ended March 31, 2018            
            
Profit for the year   -          -        -      -          4,663,635    4,663,635 
            
Other comprehensive loss   -          -        -      -          (7,425)   (7,425)
            
     -          -        -      -          4,656,210    4,656,210 
            
Balance as at March 31, 2018   1,034,066    39,953    165    7,992,000    6,934,537    16,000,721 
            

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS
 
 Atlas Honda Limited (the Company) was incorporated as a public limited company on October 16, 1962 under the Companies 

Act, 1913 (now the Companies Act, 2017) and its shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered office 
is located at 1- McLeod Road, Lahore. The Company is principally engaged in progressive manufacturing and marketing of 
motorcycles and spare parts. The manufacturing and assembling facilities of the Company are located at Karachi and 
Sheikhupura, with branches, customer care centres, warranty & training centres and other offices located in Karachi, Hyderabad, 
Multan, Lahore, Faisalabad, Rahim Yar Khan and Islamabad.     

 The Company is a subsidiary of Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited, which holds 52.43% of issued, subscribed and paid-up 
capital of the Company as at March 31, 2018.         

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
          
2.1 Statement of compliance
         
 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 

Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise:     

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as 
notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

        
- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as notified 

under the Companies Act, 2017; and 
        
- Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.      

 Where provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provision of and directives 
issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.       

2.2 Basis of measurement
         
 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain financial instruments, 

which are carried at fair values and staff retirement benefit - gratuity which is carried at present value of defined benefit obligation 
net of fair value of plan assets.          

2.3 Functional and presentation currency
         
 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company and figures 

are rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees.        

2.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements         

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses.

          
 The estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable 

under the circumstances and are continually evaluated. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal 
the related actual results. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period 
of the revision and future periods. Judgements made by management in application of the approved accounting standards 
that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments in the next 
year are discussed in respective policy note. The areas involving significant estimates or judgements are:   
              
(i) Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets [notes 5.1 and 5.2];

 (ii) Provision for slow moving inventories [notes 5.9 and 5.10];       
              
(iii) Estimate of payables and receivables in respect of staff retirement benefit schemes [notes 5.15 and 22.7];  
              
(iv) Estimate of provision for warranty [note 5.20]; and        

 (v) Estimation of current and deferred tax [note 5.21].

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended March 31, 2018

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS       

 Capital expenditure 
        
 During the year, the Company incurred major capital expenditure as part of its plan for capacity expansion. This is reflected in 

operating fixed assets note 6. 
        
 New model 
        
 In May 2017, the Company launched its new model in the 150cc category named as CB 150F.

 For detail performance review of the Company, refer Directors' Report. 
     
4. NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTREPRETATIONS
      
4.1 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards effective in current year
    
 New and amended standards and interpretations mandatory for the first time for the financial year beginning April 1, 2017:

(a) IAS 7 Statement of cash flows
      
 The amendment requires disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities 

arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flow and non-cash changes.  
  

(b) IAS 12 Income taxes
      
 The amendment clarifies deferred tax treatment for debt instrument and also addresses questions regarding 

determination of future taxable profit for the recognition test of deferred tax.

 The other new standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the 
financial year beginning on April 1, 2017 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company's 
financial reporting and operations.          

4.2 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not 
been early adopted by the Company          

 The following new standards and amendments to approved accounting standards are not effective for the financial year 
beginning on April 1, 2017 and have not been early adopted by the Company:      

(a) IFRS 9  Financial instruments Effective date: January 1, 2018
           
 IASB has published the complete version of IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, which replaces the guidance in IAS 

39. This final version includes requirements on the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities; 
it also includes an expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment model currently being 
used. The standard not likely to have material impact on the Company’s financial statements.   
         

(b) IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers Effective date: January 1, 2018
           
 The IASB has issued a new standard for the recognition of revenue. This will replace IAS 18 which covers contracts 

for goods and services and IAS 11 which covers construction contracts. The new standard is based on the principle 
that revenue is recognised when control of a good or service transfers to a customer – so the notion of control 
replaces the existing notion of risks and rewards. The standard permits a modified retrospective approach for the 
adoption. Under this approach entities will recognise transitional adjustments in retained earnings on the date of 
initial application (e.g. April 1, 2019), i.e. without restating the comparative period. They will only need to apply the 
new rules to contracts that are not completed as of the date of initial application. The Company has yet to assess 
the full impact of this standard on its financial statements.      

(c) IFRS 16 Leases Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 IFRS 16 will affect primarily the accounting by lessees and will result in the recognition of almost all leases on 

statement of financial position. The standard removes the current distinction between operating and financing leases 
and requires recognition of an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals for 
virtually all lease contracts. An optional exemption exists for short-term and low-value leases. The accounting by 
lessors will not significantly change. Some differences may arise as a result of the new guidance on the definition 

of a lease. Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of 
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. This IFRS is under consideration of the relevant 
Committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. The Company has yet to assess the full impact 
of this standard on its financial statements.        
  

(d) IAS 12 Income taxes Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 This amendment as part of the annual improvement 2015-2017 cycle, clarifies that all income tax consequences 

of dividends (including payments on financial instruments classified as equity) are recognised consistently with the 
transactions that generated the distributable profits – i.e. in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity. 
The amendments are not likely to have material impact on the Company’s financial statements.   
          

(e) IAS 23 Borrowing costs Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 The amendment is part of the annual improvement 2015-2017 cycle. The amendment clarifies that the general 

borrowings pool used to calculate eligible borrowing costs exclude only borrowings that specifically finance qualifying 
assets that are still under development or construction. Borrowings that were intended to specifically finance 
qualifying assets that are now ready for their intended use or sale – or any non – qualifying assets – are included 
in that general pool. This amendment will be applied prospectively to borrowing costs incurred on or after the date 
an entity adopts the amendments. The amendments are not likely to have material impact on the Company’s financial 
statements.           
 

(f) IFRIC 22 Foreign currency transactions Effective date: January 1, 2018
           
 The interpretation clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves 

an advance payment or receipt. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date that the advance 
foreign currency was paid or received and the prepayment or deferred income recognised. The amendments are 
not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial statements.    
    

(g) IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatment Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 The interpretation clarifies the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatment under 

IAS 12. The interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current 
and deferred tax. The amendments are not expected to have material impact on the Company's financial statements. 
           

 There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the approved accounting standards that are not yet 
effective and are also not relevant to the Company and therefore, have not been presented here.    
         

5. SIGINIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES         
         

 The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These polices have 
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.      
        

5.1 Property, plant and equipment          
           

 Owned assets          
           
 The Company has adopted cost model for its property, plant and equipment. Property, plant and equipment except for freehold 

land and capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Freehold land 
is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset, 
including any borrowing cost (note 5.24). The cost of a self constructed asset includes cost of materials, labour and other 
overheads that are directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, costs of dismantling / 
removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is located. Items of property, plant and equipment individually costing 
Rs.25,000 or less are charged to the profit and loss account as and when purchased.

           
 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated upto the reporting date less accumulated impairment loss, if any. Capital 

work-in-progress is recognised as an operating fixed asset when it is made available for its intended use.   
        

 Where major components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for in the 
books of account as separate items of property, plant and equipment.      
           

 Subsequent costs including major renewals and improvements are included in the carrying amount of the asset or are recognised 
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the asset will 
flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised 
at the time of replacement. Normal repair and maintenance and day-to-day servicing are charged to the profit and loss account 
as and when incurred.          

         

 Depreciation is charged to the profit and loss account using reducing balance method except for dies and jigs, office equipment, 
computers and accessories and furniture & fixtures, without considering extra shifts. Depreciation on dies and jigs, office 
equipment, computers and accessories and furniture & fixtures is charged to the profit and loss account using straight line 
method. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use while no depreciation is 
charged for the month in which the asset is disposed-off.        
        

 The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment are reviewed periodically 
and altered if circumstances or expectations have changed significantly. Any change or adjustment in depreciation method, 
useful lives and residual values is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate under IAS 8, ‘Accounting policies, changes 
in accounting estimates and errors’ and is applied prospectively in the financial statements by adjusting the depreciation charge 
for the period in which the amendment or change has been made and for future periods.    
        

 Disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised when significant risk and rewards, incidental to the ownership 
of that asset, have been transferred to the buyer. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the carrying 
amount of that asset with the sales proceeds and are recognised within 'other income / other operating expenses' in the profit 
and loss account.          

          
 Leased assets          
           
 Lease that substantially transfers all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the Company is classified 

as finance lease. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and 
present value of minimum lease payments. Subsequent to the initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with 
the accounting policy applicable for owned assets.        
       

5.2 Intangible assets          
           
 These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any and represent cost of software licenses, 

SAP implementation & support cost and license fee of certain products / components that are being manufactured by the 
Company under technology transfer arrangements.         
     

 Costs associated with maintaining these assets are charged to the profit and loss account as and when incurred, however, 
costs that are directly attributable to the identifiable asset and have probable economic benefits exceeding one year, are 
recognised as intangible asset. Direct costs include purchase cost of the asset, salaries and other service benefits of staff 
deployed towards development of the asset and other related overheads. Expenditure incurred in respect of design, construction 
and testing of an intangible asset are also added to the carrying amount of that asset.      
    

 Expenditure which enhances or extends the performance of the asset beyond its original specifications is recognised as a 
capital improvement and added to the original cost of the asset.       
         

 All intangible assets are estimated to have definite useful lives and are amortised from the month the software / license is 
acquired, made available for use or extended support cost is incurred, using the straight line method over a period of 2 to 5 years. 
     

5.3 Impairment of non-financial assets          
      

 Non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to identify circumstances indicating occurrence of impairment loss or 
reversal of pervious impairment losses, if any. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying 
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and 
value in use. Reversal of impairment loss is restricted to the original cost of the asset.     
    

5.4 Investments in equity instruments of an Associate        
  

 Investment in an Associate is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment 
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the Company's share of profit 
or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.         
          

 The Company’s share of post acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the profit and loss account, and its share of post acquisition 
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income with the corresponding adjustment 
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Company's share of losses in an Associate equals or exceeds its interest 
in the Associate, the Company does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or 
made payments on behalf of the Associate.         
           

 The Company determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the Associate 
is impaired. If this is the case, the Company calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable 
amount of the Associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to share of profit / loss of an Associate in 
the profit and loss account.           

            

5.5 Financial assets          
           
5.5.1 Classification          
           
 The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, 

held to maturity and available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. 
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.     
     

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss        
  

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this 
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in short term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading 
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets.    
       

(b) Loans and receivables          
           
 Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 

market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period, 
in which case, these are classified as non-current assets.        
     

(c) Held to maturity financial assets          

 Held to maturity financial assets are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity with 
a positive intention and ability to hold till maturity.         
     

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets          
      

 Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the 
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the investment matures or management intends to dispose-off 
it within 12 months of the end of the reporting date.        
   

5.5.2 Recognition and measurement          
      

 Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date – the date on which the Company commits 
to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not 
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at 
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss account. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights 
to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially 
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held to maturity investments are subsequently carried at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method.        
     

 Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' category are 
presented in the profit and loss account within 'other income / other operating expenses' in the period in which they arise. 
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the profit and loss account as part of 
'other income' when the Company's right to receive payments is established.      
     

 Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in 'Other 
comprehensive income'.          

          
 When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in 

equity are included in the profit and loss account as 'gains / losses from investment securities'.    
     

 Interest on available-for-sale securities and held to maturity investments is calculated using the effective interest method is 
recognised in the profit and loss account as part of 'other income'. Dividend income from available-for-sale equity instruments 
is recognised in the profit and loss account as part of 'other income' when the Company's right to receive payments is established. 
       

 The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group 
of financial assets is impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured 
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset 
previously recognised in profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss account. Impairment losses 
recognised in profit and loss account on equity instruments are not reversed through the profit and loss account. Impairment 
testing of other receivables is described in note 5.11.        
      

5.6 Financial liabilities          
           
 Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less directly attributable transactions costs, if any, and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using effective interest method.       
       

 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing 
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of original liability and 
recognition of a new liability and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit and loss account. 
     

5.7 Off setting financial instruments          

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be 
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the 
counter party.          

   
5.8 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities        

  
 Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured 

at their fair values. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a 
hedging instrument, if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Company designates certain derivatives as either fair value 
hedge or cash flow hedge.          

    
(a) Fair value hedge           
           
 Fair value hedge represents a hedge of the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or a firm commitment. Changes in the 

fair value of a derivative that is designated and qualify as fair value hedge is recorded in the profit and loss account, together 
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. The carrying value of 
the hedged item is adjusted accordingly.          
  

(b) Cash flow hedge          
           
 Cash flow hedge represents a hedge of a highly probable forecast transaction. The effective portion of changes in the fair value 

of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income. The gain or 
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account. Amounts accumulated in equity 
are reclassified to the profit and loss account in the periods when the hedged item affects profit and loss account.   
   

5.9 Stores, spares and loose tools          

 Stores, spares and loose tools are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventory is based on weighted 
average cost. Items-in-transit are stated at cost accumulated upto the reporting date. The Company reviews the carrying 
amounts of stores, spares and loose tools on an on-going basis and provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change 
in usage pattern and physical form. Impairment is also made for slow moving items.     
   

5.10 Stock-in-trade          
           
 Stock-in-trade are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials and components represent invoice 

values plus other charges incurred thereon. Cost of inventory is based on weighted average cost. Cost in relation to work-in-process 
and finished goods represent direct cost of raw materials, wages and appropriate manufacturing overheads. Goods in transit 
are valued at cost accumulated upto the reporting date.        
        

 The Company reviews the carrying amount of stock-in-trade on an on-going basis and as appropriate, inventory is written down 
to its net realisable value or provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in usage pattern and physical form of 
related inventory.          

         
 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs necessary to be incurred in 

order to make the sale.           
         
5.11 Trade debts and other receivables          

 Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at original invoice amount which is the fair value of consideration to be 
received in future and subsequently measured at cost as reduced by appropriate provision for receivables considered to be 

doubtful. A provision is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts 
due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount of provision is charged to profit and loss. Trade and other 
receivables considered irrecoverable are written-off.         
    

 Exchange gains and losses arising in respect of trade and other receivables in foreign currency are added to the carrying 
amount of the receivables.           

           
5.12 Cash and cash equivalents          
           
 Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, 

cash and cash equivalents represent balances with banks.        
    

5.13 Non current assets held for sale          

 Non current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a 
sale transaction rather than continuing use and sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying 
amount and fair value less cost to sell.           
    

5.14 Share capital          
           
 Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value.       

     
5.15 Retirement and other service benefit obligations        

      
5.15.1 Defined contribution plans          
           
 A defined contribution plan is a post employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contribution into a separate 

entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligation for contribution to a defined contribution 
plan is recognised as an employee service benefit expense in the profit and loss account when it is due.   
   

 The Company operates defined contribution plans for its permanent employees excluding ex-patriates, through either one of 
the following ways:          

           
•  a recognised provident fund; or         
           
•  voluntary pension schemes managed by Atlas Asset Management Limited, a related party, under the Voluntary Pension 

System Rules, 2005, viz, Atlas Pension Fund and Atlas Pension Islamic Fund.     
  

 All the newly appointed employees are offered voluntary pension scheme only. However, those employees who are provident 
fund trust members, have the option to opt for either of two above-mentioned defined contribution plans.   
   

 Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 11% of the basic salary are made to the fund / scheme both by the Company and 
the employees. The fund is a separate legal entity and its assets are being held separately under the control of its Trustees. 
     

5.15.2 Defined benefit plans          
           
 Defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than the defined contribution plan. Defined benefit plans define 

an amount of gratuity that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age and 
years of service. The liability recognised in the statement of financial position is the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of the plan assets.       

 The Company has established separate funded gratuity schemes for its management and non-management staff who completes 
qualifying period of service. Contributions under the schemes are made on the basis of actuarial valuation using Projected Unit 
Credit Method, related details of which are given in note 22.7 to the financial statements.    
 

 The amount arising as a result of remeasurements are recognised in the statement of financial position immediately, with a 
charge or credit to other comprehensive income in the periods in which they occur. Past-service cost are recognised immediately 
in profit and loss account. 

           
5.15.3 Compensated absences          
           
 Employees’ entitlement to annual leaves is recognised when they accrue to the employees. A provision, based on actuarial 

valuations, is made for the estimated liability for annual leaves as a result of services rendered by employees up to the reporting 
date. Current Service cost, actuarial gains or losses and past service cost are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account. 
       

5.16 Trade and other payables          
           
 Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at their amortised cost, which approximate fair value of the consideration to 

be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.     
     

5.17 Obligation under finance lease          

 Total outstanding obligation under the lease arrangements less finance cost attributable to future periods is presented as liability. 
Finance cost under the lease arrangements is distributed over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of 
finance cost on the balance of principal liability outstanding at the end of each period.     
    

5.18 Operating leases / Ijarah          
           
 Operating leases / Ijarah in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor / Muj’ir 

(lessor) are classified as operating leases / Ijarah. Payments made during the year are charged to the profit and loss account 
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease / Ijarah.        
       

5.19 Provisions          
           
 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it 

is probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate. 
   

5.20 Warranty          
           
 The Company recognises the estimated liability to repair or replace damaged parts of products still under warranty at the 

reporting date on the basis of historical claim information. The Company offers 3 years’ warranty on all engine spare parts and 
six months warranty on all other spare parts of its motorcycles. The ratio of warranty claims filed during the year to previous 
year's sales is taken into account for determining the estimated liability.       
     

5.21 Taxation          
           
 The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit and loss account, except to 

the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.      
    

 Current           
           
 The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The 

charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in the previous years 
arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.       
     

 Deferred          
           
 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax bases 

of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.      
      

 Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date 
and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.   
      

 Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised 
only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be

 utilised.
        
5.22 Foreign currency transactions and translation         

 
 Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of 

transactions. The closing balance of non-monetary items is included at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction 
and monetary items are translated using the exchange rate prevailing on the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses 
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit and loss account.     
         

5.23 Revenue recognition          
           
 Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of 

revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is reduced 
for allowances such as taxes, duties, commission, sales returns and discounts. Revenue from different sources is recognised 
on the following basis:          

        
 -   Revenue from sales of motorcycles and spare parts is recognised when goods are dispatched and invoiced to customers. 

       
 -   Interest income on deposits with banks and other financial assets is recognised on accrual basis.   

       
 -   Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.     

        
5.24 Borrowing costs          
           
 Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred except where such costs are directly 

attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset in which case such costs are capitalised as part 
of the cost of that asset.           

      
5.25 Research and development costs          

      
 Research and development costs are recognised in profit and loss account as and when incurred.   

      
5.26 Earnings per share          
           
 The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss 

attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 
the period.          

       
5.27 Segment reporting          
           
 Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes by the Chief Operating Decision 

Maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. On the basis of its 
internal reporting structure, the Company considers itself to be a single reportable segment.    
    

5.28 Dividend and appropriation to reserves         
 

 Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the financial statements in the period in which these are approved.
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1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS
 
 Atlas Honda Limited (the Company) was incorporated as a public limited company on October 16, 1962 under the Companies 

Act, 1913 (now the Companies Act, 2017) and its shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered office 
is located at 1- McLeod Road, Lahore. The Company is principally engaged in progressive manufacturing and marketing of 
motorcycles and spare parts. The manufacturing and assembling facilities of the Company are located at Karachi and 
Sheikhupura, with branches, customer care centres, warranty & training centres and other offices located in Karachi, Hyderabad, 
Multan, Lahore, Faisalabad, Rahim Yar Khan and Islamabad.     

 The Company is a subsidiary of Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited, which holds 52.43% of issued, subscribed and paid-up 
capital of the Company as at March 31, 2018.         

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
          
2.1 Statement of compliance
         
 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 

Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise:     

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as 
notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

        
- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as notified 

under the Companies Act, 2017; and 
        
- Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.      

 Where provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provision of and directives 
issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.       

2.2 Basis of measurement
         
 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain financial instruments, 

which are carried at fair values and staff retirement benefit - gratuity which is carried at present value of defined benefit obligation 
net of fair value of plan assets.          

2.3 Functional and presentation currency
         
 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company and figures 

are rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees.        

2.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements         

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses.

          
 The estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable 

under the circumstances and are continually evaluated. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal 
the related actual results. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period 
of the revision and future periods. Judgements made by management in application of the approved accounting standards 
that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments in the next 
year are discussed in respective policy note. The areas involving significant estimates or judgements are:   
              
(i) Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets [notes 5.1 and 5.2];

 (ii) Provision for slow moving inventories [notes 5.9 and 5.10];       
              
(iii) Estimate of payables and receivables in respect of staff retirement benefit schemes [notes 5.15 and 22.7];  
              
(iv) Estimate of provision for warranty [note 5.20]; and        

 (v) Estimation of current and deferred tax [note 5.21].

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS       

 Capital expenditure 
        
 During the year, the Company incurred major capital expenditure as part of its plan for capacity expansion. This is reflected in 

operating fixed assets note 6. 
        
 New model 
        
 In May 2017, the Company launched its new model in the 150cc category named as CB 150F.

 For detail performance review of the Company, refer Directors' Report. 
     
4. NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTREPRETATIONS
      
4.1 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards effective in current year
    
 New and amended standards and interpretations mandatory for the first time for the financial year beginning April 1, 2017:

(a) IAS 7 Statement of cash flows
      
 The amendment requires disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities 

arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flow and non-cash changes.  
  

(b) IAS 12 Income taxes
      
 The amendment clarifies deferred tax treatment for debt instrument and also addresses questions regarding 

determination of future taxable profit for the recognition test of deferred tax.

 The other new standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the 
financial year beginning on April 1, 2017 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company's 
financial reporting and operations.          

4.2 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not 
been early adopted by the Company          

 The following new standards and amendments to approved accounting standards are not effective for the financial year 
beginning on April 1, 2017 and have not been early adopted by the Company:      

(a) IFRS 9  Financial instruments Effective date: January 1, 2018
           
 IASB has published the complete version of IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, which replaces the guidance in IAS 

39. This final version includes requirements on the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities; 
it also includes an expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment model currently being 
used. The standard not likely to have material impact on the Company’s financial statements.   
         

(b) IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers Effective date: January 1, 2018
           
 The IASB has issued a new standard for the recognition of revenue. This will replace IAS 18 which covers contracts 

for goods and services and IAS 11 which covers construction contracts. The new standard is based on the principle 
that revenue is recognised when control of a good or service transfers to a customer – so the notion of control 
replaces the existing notion of risks and rewards. The standard permits a modified retrospective approach for the 
adoption. Under this approach entities will recognise transitional adjustments in retained earnings on the date of 
initial application (e.g. April 1, 2019), i.e. without restating the comparative period. They will only need to apply the 
new rules to contracts that are not completed as of the date of initial application. The Company has yet to assess 
the full impact of this standard on its financial statements.      

(c) IFRS 16 Leases Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 IFRS 16 will affect primarily the accounting by lessees and will result in the recognition of almost all leases on 

statement of financial position. The standard removes the current distinction between operating and financing leases 
and requires recognition of an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals for 
virtually all lease contracts. An optional exemption exists for short-term and low-value leases. The accounting by 
lessors will not significantly change. Some differences may arise as a result of the new guidance on the definition 

of a lease. Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of 
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. This IFRS is under consideration of the relevant 
Committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. The Company has yet to assess the full impact 
of this standard on its financial statements.        
  

(d) IAS 12 Income taxes Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 This amendment as part of the annual improvement 2015-2017 cycle, clarifies that all income tax consequences 

of dividends (including payments on financial instruments classified as equity) are recognised consistently with the 
transactions that generated the distributable profits – i.e. in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity. 
The amendments are not likely to have material impact on the Company’s financial statements.   
          

(e) IAS 23 Borrowing costs Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 The amendment is part of the annual improvement 2015-2017 cycle. The amendment clarifies that the general 

borrowings pool used to calculate eligible borrowing costs exclude only borrowings that specifically finance qualifying 
assets that are still under development or construction. Borrowings that were intended to specifically finance 
qualifying assets that are now ready for their intended use or sale – or any non – qualifying assets – are included 
in that general pool. This amendment will be applied prospectively to borrowing costs incurred on or after the date 
an entity adopts the amendments. The amendments are not likely to have material impact on the Company’s financial 
statements.           
 

(f) IFRIC 22 Foreign currency transactions Effective date: January 1, 2018
           
 The interpretation clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves 

an advance payment or receipt. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date that the advance 
foreign currency was paid or received and the prepayment or deferred income recognised. The amendments are 
not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial statements.    
    

(g) IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatment Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 The interpretation clarifies the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatment under 

IAS 12. The interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current 
and deferred tax. The amendments are not expected to have material impact on the Company's financial statements. 
           

 There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the approved accounting standards that are not yet 
effective and are also not relevant to the Company and therefore, have not been presented here.    
         

5. SIGINIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES         
         

 The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These polices have 
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.      
        

5.1 Property, plant and equipment          
           

 Owned assets          
           
 The Company has adopted cost model for its property, plant and equipment. Property, plant and equipment except for freehold 

land and capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Freehold land 
is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset, 
including any borrowing cost (note 5.24). The cost of a self constructed asset includes cost of materials, labour and other 
overheads that are directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, costs of dismantling / 
removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is located. Items of property, plant and equipment individually costing 
Rs.25,000 or less are charged to the profit and loss account as and when purchased.

           
 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated upto the reporting date less accumulated impairment loss, if any. Capital 

work-in-progress is recognised as an operating fixed asset when it is made available for its intended use.   
        

 Where major components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for in the 
books of account as separate items of property, plant and equipment.      
           

 Subsequent costs including major renewals and improvements are included in the carrying amount of the asset or are recognised 
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the asset will 
flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised 
at the time of replacement. Normal repair and maintenance and day-to-day servicing are charged to the profit and loss account 
as and when incurred.          

         

 Depreciation is charged to the profit and loss account using reducing balance method except for dies and jigs, office equipment, 
computers and accessories and furniture & fixtures, without considering extra shifts. Depreciation on dies and jigs, office 
equipment, computers and accessories and furniture & fixtures is charged to the profit and loss account using straight line 
method. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use while no depreciation is 
charged for the month in which the asset is disposed-off.        
        

 The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment are reviewed periodically 
and altered if circumstances or expectations have changed significantly. Any change or adjustment in depreciation method, 
useful lives and residual values is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate under IAS 8, ‘Accounting policies, changes 
in accounting estimates and errors’ and is applied prospectively in the financial statements by adjusting the depreciation charge 
for the period in which the amendment or change has been made and for future periods.    
        

 Disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised when significant risk and rewards, incidental to the ownership 
of that asset, have been transferred to the buyer. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the carrying 
amount of that asset with the sales proceeds and are recognised within 'other income / other operating expenses' in the profit 
and loss account.          

          
 Leased assets          
           
 Lease that substantially transfers all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the Company is classified 

as finance lease. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and 
present value of minimum lease payments. Subsequent to the initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with 
the accounting policy applicable for owned assets.        
       

5.2 Intangible assets          
           
 These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any and represent cost of software licenses, 

SAP implementation & support cost and license fee of certain products / components that are being manufactured by the 
Company under technology transfer arrangements.         
     

 Costs associated with maintaining these assets are charged to the profit and loss account as and when incurred, however, 
costs that are directly attributable to the identifiable asset and have probable economic benefits exceeding one year, are 
recognised as intangible asset. Direct costs include purchase cost of the asset, salaries and other service benefits of staff 
deployed towards development of the asset and other related overheads. Expenditure incurred in respect of design, construction 
and testing of an intangible asset are also added to the carrying amount of that asset.      
    

 Expenditure which enhances or extends the performance of the asset beyond its original specifications is recognised as a 
capital improvement and added to the original cost of the asset.       
         

 All intangible assets are estimated to have definite useful lives and are amortised from the month the software / license is 
acquired, made available for use or extended support cost is incurred, using the straight line method over a period of 2 to 5 years. 
     

5.3 Impairment of non-financial assets          
      

 Non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to identify circumstances indicating occurrence of impairment loss or 
reversal of pervious impairment losses, if any. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying 
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and 
value in use. Reversal of impairment loss is restricted to the original cost of the asset.     
    

5.4 Investments in equity instruments of an Associate        
  

 Investment in an Associate is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment 
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the Company's share of profit 
or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.         
          

 The Company’s share of post acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the profit and loss account, and its share of post acquisition 
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income with the corresponding adjustment 
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Company's share of losses in an Associate equals or exceeds its interest 
in the Associate, the Company does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or 
made payments on behalf of the Associate.         
           

 The Company determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the Associate 
is impaired. If this is the case, the Company calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable 
amount of the Associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to share of profit / loss of an Associate in 
the profit and loss account.           

            

5.5 Financial assets          
           
5.5.1 Classification          
           
 The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, 

held to maturity and available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. 
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.     
     

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss        
  

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this 
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in short term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading 
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets.    
       

(b) Loans and receivables          
           
 Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 

market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period, 
in which case, these are classified as non-current assets.        
     

(c) Held to maturity financial assets          

 Held to maturity financial assets are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity with 
a positive intention and ability to hold till maturity.         
     

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets          
      

 Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the 
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the investment matures or management intends to dispose-off 
it within 12 months of the end of the reporting date.        
   

5.5.2 Recognition and measurement          
      

 Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date – the date on which the Company commits 
to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not 
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at 
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss account. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights 
to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially 
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held to maturity investments are subsequently carried at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method.        
     

 Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' category are 
presented in the profit and loss account within 'other income / other operating expenses' in the period in which they arise. 
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the profit and loss account as part of 
'other income' when the Company's right to receive payments is established.      
     

 Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in 'Other 
comprehensive income'.          

          
 When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in 

equity are included in the profit and loss account as 'gains / losses from investment securities'.    
     

 Interest on available-for-sale securities and held to maturity investments is calculated using the effective interest method is 
recognised in the profit and loss account as part of 'other income'. Dividend income from available-for-sale equity instruments 
is recognised in the profit and loss account as part of 'other income' when the Company's right to receive payments is established. 
       

 The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group 
of financial assets is impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured 
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset 
previously recognised in profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss account. Impairment losses 
recognised in profit and loss account on equity instruments are not reversed through the profit and loss account. Impairment 
testing of other receivables is described in note 5.11.        
      

5.6 Financial liabilities          
           
 Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less directly attributable transactions costs, if any, and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using effective interest method.       
       

 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing 
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of original liability and 
recognition of a new liability and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit and loss account. 
     

5.7 Off setting financial instruments          

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be 
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the 
counter party.          

   
5.8 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities        

  
 Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured 

at their fair values. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a 
hedging instrument, if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Company designates certain derivatives as either fair value 
hedge or cash flow hedge.          

    
(a) Fair value hedge           
           
 Fair value hedge represents a hedge of the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or a firm commitment. Changes in the 

fair value of a derivative that is designated and qualify as fair value hedge is recorded in the profit and loss account, together 
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. The carrying value of 
the hedged item is adjusted accordingly.          
  

(b) Cash flow hedge          
           
 Cash flow hedge represents a hedge of a highly probable forecast transaction. The effective portion of changes in the fair value 

of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income. The gain or 
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account. Amounts accumulated in equity 
are reclassified to the profit and loss account in the periods when the hedged item affects profit and loss account.   
   

5.9 Stores, spares and loose tools          

 Stores, spares and loose tools are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventory is based on weighted 
average cost. Items-in-transit are stated at cost accumulated upto the reporting date. The Company reviews the carrying 
amounts of stores, spares and loose tools on an on-going basis and provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change 
in usage pattern and physical form. Impairment is also made for slow moving items.     
   

5.10 Stock-in-trade          
           
 Stock-in-trade are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials and components represent invoice 

values plus other charges incurred thereon. Cost of inventory is based on weighted average cost. Cost in relation to work-in-process 
and finished goods represent direct cost of raw materials, wages and appropriate manufacturing overheads. Goods in transit 
are valued at cost accumulated upto the reporting date.        
        

 The Company reviews the carrying amount of stock-in-trade on an on-going basis and as appropriate, inventory is written down 
to its net realisable value or provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in usage pattern and physical form of 
related inventory.          

         
 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs necessary to be incurred in 

order to make the sale.           
         
5.11 Trade debts and other receivables          

 Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at original invoice amount which is the fair value of consideration to be 
received in future and subsequently measured at cost as reduced by appropriate provision for receivables considered to be 

doubtful. A provision is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts 
due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount of provision is charged to profit and loss. Trade and other 
receivables considered irrecoverable are written-off.         
    

 Exchange gains and losses arising in respect of trade and other receivables in foreign currency are added to the carrying 
amount of the receivables.           

           
5.12 Cash and cash equivalents          
           
 Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, 

cash and cash equivalents represent balances with banks.        
    

5.13 Non current assets held for sale          

 Non current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a 
sale transaction rather than continuing use and sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying 
amount and fair value less cost to sell.           
    

5.14 Share capital          
           
 Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value.       

     
5.15 Retirement and other service benefit obligations        

      
5.15.1 Defined contribution plans          
           
 A defined contribution plan is a post employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contribution into a separate 

entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligation for contribution to a defined contribution 
plan is recognised as an employee service benefit expense in the profit and loss account when it is due.   
   

 The Company operates defined contribution plans for its permanent employees excluding ex-patriates, through either one of 
the following ways:          

           
•  a recognised provident fund; or         
           
•  voluntary pension schemes managed by Atlas Asset Management Limited, a related party, under the Voluntary Pension 

System Rules, 2005, viz, Atlas Pension Fund and Atlas Pension Islamic Fund.     
  

 All the newly appointed employees are offered voluntary pension scheme only. However, those employees who are provident 
fund trust members, have the option to opt for either of two above-mentioned defined contribution plans.   
   

 Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 11% of the basic salary are made to the fund / scheme both by the Company and 
the employees. The fund is a separate legal entity and its assets are being held separately under the control of its Trustees. 
     

5.15.2 Defined benefit plans          
           
 Defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than the defined contribution plan. Defined benefit plans define 

an amount of gratuity that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age and 
years of service. The liability recognised in the statement of financial position is the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of the plan assets.       

 The Company has established separate funded gratuity schemes for its management and non-management staff who completes 
qualifying period of service. Contributions under the schemes are made on the basis of actuarial valuation using Projected Unit 
Credit Method, related details of which are given in note 22.7 to the financial statements.    
 

 The amount arising as a result of remeasurements are recognised in the statement of financial position immediately, with a 
charge or credit to other comprehensive income in the periods in which they occur. Past-service cost are recognised immediately 
in profit and loss account. 

           
5.15.3 Compensated absences          
           
 Employees’ entitlement to annual leaves is recognised when they accrue to the employees. A provision, based on actuarial 

valuations, is made for the estimated liability for annual leaves as a result of services rendered by employees up to the reporting 
date. Current Service cost, actuarial gains or losses and past service cost are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account. 
       

5.16 Trade and other payables          
           
 Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at their amortised cost, which approximate fair value of the consideration to 

be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.     
     

5.17 Obligation under finance lease          

 Total outstanding obligation under the lease arrangements less finance cost attributable to future periods is presented as liability. 
Finance cost under the lease arrangements is distributed over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of 
finance cost on the balance of principal liability outstanding at the end of each period.     
    

5.18 Operating leases / Ijarah          
           
 Operating leases / Ijarah in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor / Muj’ir 

(lessor) are classified as operating leases / Ijarah. Payments made during the year are charged to the profit and loss account 
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease / Ijarah.        
       

5.19 Provisions          
           
 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it 

is probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate. 
   

5.20 Warranty          
           
 The Company recognises the estimated liability to repair or replace damaged parts of products still under warranty at the 

reporting date on the basis of historical claim information. The Company offers 3 years’ warranty on all engine spare parts and 
six months warranty on all other spare parts of its motorcycles. The ratio of warranty claims filed during the year to previous 
year's sales is taken into account for determining the estimated liability.       
     

5.21 Taxation          
           
 The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit and loss account, except to 

the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.      
    

 Current           
           
 The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The 

charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in the previous years 
arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.       
     

 Deferred          
           
 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax bases 

of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.      
      

 Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date 
and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.   
      

 Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised 
only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be

 utilised.
        
5.22 Foreign currency transactions and translation         

 
 Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of 

transactions. The closing balance of non-monetary items is included at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction 
and monetary items are translated using the exchange rate prevailing on the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses 
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit and loss account.     
         

5.23 Revenue recognition          
           
 Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of 

revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is reduced 
for allowances such as taxes, duties, commission, sales returns and discounts. Revenue from different sources is recognised 
on the following basis:          

        
 -   Revenue from sales of motorcycles and spare parts is recognised when goods are dispatched and invoiced to customers. 

       
 -   Interest income on deposits with banks and other financial assets is recognised on accrual basis.   

       
 -   Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.     

        
5.24 Borrowing costs          
           
 Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred except where such costs are directly 

attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset in which case such costs are capitalised as part 
of the cost of that asset.           

      
5.25 Research and development costs          

      
 Research and development costs are recognised in profit and loss account as and when incurred.   

      
5.26 Earnings per share          
           
 The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss 

attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 
the period.          

       
5.27 Segment reporting          
           
 Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes by the Chief Operating Decision 

Maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. On the basis of its 
internal reporting structure, the Company considers itself to be a single reportable segment.    
    

5.28 Dividend and appropriation to reserves         
 

 Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the financial statements in the period in which these are approved.
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1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS
 
 Atlas Honda Limited (the Company) was incorporated as a public limited company on October 16, 1962 under the Companies 

Act, 1913 (now the Companies Act, 2017) and its shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered office 
is located at 1- McLeod Road, Lahore. The Company is principally engaged in progressive manufacturing and marketing of 
motorcycles and spare parts. The manufacturing and assembling facilities of the Company are located at Karachi and 
Sheikhupura, with branches, customer care centres, warranty & training centres and other offices located in Karachi, Hyderabad, 
Multan, Lahore, Faisalabad, Rahim Yar Khan and Islamabad.     

 The Company is a subsidiary of Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited, which holds 52.43% of issued, subscribed and paid-up 
capital of the Company as at March 31, 2018.         

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
          
2.1 Statement of compliance
         
 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 

Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise:     

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as 
notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

        
- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as notified 

under the Companies Act, 2017; and 
        
- Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.      

 Where provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provision of and directives 
issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.       

2.2 Basis of measurement
         
 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain financial instruments, 

which are carried at fair values and staff retirement benefit - gratuity which is carried at present value of defined benefit obligation 
net of fair value of plan assets.          

2.3 Functional and presentation currency
         
 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company and figures 

are rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees.        

2.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements         

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses.

          
 The estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable 

under the circumstances and are continually evaluated. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal 
the related actual results. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period 
of the revision and future periods. Judgements made by management in application of the approved accounting standards 
that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments in the next 
year are discussed in respective policy note. The areas involving significant estimates or judgements are:   
              
(i) Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets [notes 5.1 and 5.2];

 (ii) Provision for slow moving inventories [notes 5.9 and 5.10];       
              
(iii) Estimate of payables and receivables in respect of staff retirement benefit schemes [notes 5.15 and 22.7];  
              
(iv) Estimate of provision for warranty [note 5.20]; and        

 (v) Estimation of current and deferred tax [note 5.21].

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS       

 Capital expenditure 
        
 During the year, the Company incurred major capital expenditure as part of its plan for capacity expansion. This is reflected in 

operating fixed assets note 6. 
        
 New model 
        
 In May 2017, the Company launched its new model in the 150cc category named as CB 150F.

 For detail performance review of the Company, refer Directors' Report. 
     
4. NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTREPRETATIONS
      
4.1 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards effective in current year
    
 New and amended standards and interpretations mandatory for the first time for the financial year beginning April 1, 2017:

(a) IAS 7 Statement of cash flows
      
 The amendment requires disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities 

arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flow and non-cash changes.  
  

(b) IAS 12 Income taxes
      
 The amendment clarifies deferred tax treatment for debt instrument and also addresses questions regarding 

determination of future taxable profit for the recognition test of deferred tax.

 The other new standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the 
financial year beginning on April 1, 2017 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company's 
financial reporting and operations.          

4.2 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not 
been early adopted by the Company          

 The following new standards and amendments to approved accounting standards are not effective for the financial year 
beginning on April 1, 2017 and have not been early adopted by the Company:      

(a) IFRS 9  Financial instruments Effective date: January 1, 2018
           
 IASB has published the complete version of IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, which replaces the guidance in IAS 

39. This final version includes requirements on the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities; 
it also includes an expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment model currently being 
used. The standard not likely to have material impact on the Company’s financial statements.   
         

(b) IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers Effective date: January 1, 2018
           
 The IASB has issued a new standard for the recognition of revenue. This will replace IAS 18 which covers contracts 

for goods and services and IAS 11 which covers construction contracts. The new standard is based on the principle 
that revenue is recognised when control of a good or service transfers to a customer – so the notion of control 
replaces the existing notion of risks and rewards. The standard permits a modified retrospective approach for the 
adoption. Under this approach entities will recognise transitional adjustments in retained earnings on the date of 
initial application (e.g. April 1, 2019), i.e. without restating the comparative period. They will only need to apply the 
new rules to contracts that are not completed as of the date of initial application. The Company has yet to assess 
the full impact of this standard on its financial statements.      

(c) IFRS 16 Leases Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 IFRS 16 will affect primarily the accounting by lessees and will result in the recognition of almost all leases on 

statement of financial position. The standard removes the current distinction between operating and financing leases 
and requires recognition of an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals for 
virtually all lease contracts. An optional exemption exists for short-term and low-value leases. The accounting by 
lessors will not significantly change. Some differences may arise as a result of the new guidance on the definition 

of a lease. Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of 
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. This IFRS is under consideration of the relevant 
Committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. The Company has yet to assess the full impact 
of this standard on its financial statements.        
  

(d) IAS 12 Income taxes Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 This amendment as part of the annual improvement 2015-2017 cycle, clarifies that all income tax consequences 

of dividends (including payments on financial instruments classified as equity) are recognised consistently with the 
transactions that generated the distributable profits – i.e. in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity. 
The amendments are not likely to have material impact on the Company’s financial statements.   
          

(e) IAS 23 Borrowing costs Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 The amendment is part of the annual improvement 2015-2017 cycle. The amendment clarifies that the general 

borrowings pool used to calculate eligible borrowing costs exclude only borrowings that specifically finance qualifying 
assets that are still under development or construction. Borrowings that were intended to specifically finance 
qualifying assets that are now ready for their intended use or sale – or any non – qualifying assets – are included 
in that general pool. This amendment will be applied prospectively to borrowing costs incurred on or after the date 
an entity adopts the amendments. The amendments are not likely to have material impact on the Company’s financial 
statements.           
 

(f) IFRIC 22 Foreign currency transactions Effective date: January 1, 2018
           
 The interpretation clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves 

an advance payment or receipt. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date that the advance 
foreign currency was paid or received and the prepayment or deferred income recognised. The amendments are 
not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial statements.    
    

(g) IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatment Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 The interpretation clarifies the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatment under 

IAS 12. The interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current 
and deferred tax. The amendments are not expected to have material impact on the Company's financial statements. 
           

 There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the approved accounting standards that are not yet 
effective and are also not relevant to the Company and therefore, have not been presented here.    
         

5. SIGINIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES         
         

 The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These polices have 
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.      
        

5.1 Property, plant and equipment          
           

 Owned assets          
           
 The Company has adopted cost model for its property, plant and equipment. Property, plant and equipment except for freehold 

land and capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Freehold land 
is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset, 
including any borrowing cost (note 5.24). The cost of a self constructed asset includes cost of materials, labour and other 
overheads that are directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, costs of dismantling / 
removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is located. Items of property, plant and equipment individually costing 
Rs.25,000 or less are charged to the profit and loss account as and when purchased.

           
 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated upto the reporting date less accumulated impairment loss, if any. Capital 

work-in-progress is recognised as an operating fixed asset when it is made available for its intended use.   
        

 Where major components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for in the 
books of account as separate items of property, plant and equipment.      
           

 Subsequent costs including major renewals and improvements are included in the carrying amount of the asset or are recognised 
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the asset will 
flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised 
at the time of replacement. Normal repair and maintenance and day-to-day servicing are charged to the profit and loss account 
as and when incurred.          

         

 Depreciation is charged to the profit and loss account using reducing balance method except for dies and jigs, office equipment, 
computers and accessories and furniture & fixtures, without considering extra shifts. Depreciation on dies and jigs, office 
equipment, computers and accessories and furniture & fixtures is charged to the profit and loss account using straight line 
method. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use while no depreciation is 
charged for the month in which the asset is disposed-off.        
        

 The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment are reviewed periodically 
and altered if circumstances or expectations have changed significantly. Any change or adjustment in depreciation method, 
useful lives and residual values is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate under IAS 8, ‘Accounting policies, changes 
in accounting estimates and errors’ and is applied prospectively in the financial statements by adjusting the depreciation charge 
for the period in which the amendment or change has been made and for future periods.    
        

 Disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised when significant risk and rewards, incidental to the ownership 
of that asset, have been transferred to the buyer. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the carrying 
amount of that asset with the sales proceeds and are recognised within 'other income / other operating expenses' in the profit 
and loss account.          

          
 Leased assets          
           
 Lease that substantially transfers all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the Company is classified 

as finance lease. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and 
present value of minimum lease payments. Subsequent to the initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with 
the accounting policy applicable for owned assets.        
       

5.2 Intangible assets          
           
 These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any and represent cost of software licenses, 

SAP implementation & support cost and license fee of certain products / components that are being manufactured by the 
Company under technology transfer arrangements.         
     

 Costs associated with maintaining these assets are charged to the profit and loss account as and when incurred, however, 
costs that are directly attributable to the identifiable asset and have probable economic benefits exceeding one year, are 
recognised as intangible asset. Direct costs include purchase cost of the asset, salaries and other service benefits of staff 
deployed towards development of the asset and other related overheads. Expenditure incurred in respect of design, construction 
and testing of an intangible asset are also added to the carrying amount of that asset.      
    

 Expenditure which enhances or extends the performance of the asset beyond its original specifications is recognised as a 
capital improvement and added to the original cost of the asset.       
         

 All intangible assets are estimated to have definite useful lives and are amortised from the month the software / license is 
acquired, made available for use or extended support cost is incurred, using the straight line method over a period of 2 to 5 years. 
     

5.3 Impairment of non-financial assets          
      

 Non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to identify circumstances indicating occurrence of impairment loss or 
reversal of pervious impairment losses, if any. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying 
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and 
value in use. Reversal of impairment loss is restricted to the original cost of the asset.     
    

5.4 Investments in equity instruments of an Associate        
  

 Investment in an Associate is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment 
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the Company's share of profit 
or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.         
          

 The Company’s share of post acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the profit and loss account, and its share of post acquisition 
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income with the corresponding adjustment 
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Company's share of losses in an Associate equals or exceeds its interest 
in the Associate, the Company does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or 
made payments on behalf of the Associate.         
           

 The Company determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the Associate 
is impaired. If this is the case, the Company calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable 
amount of the Associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to share of profit / loss of an Associate in 
the profit and loss account.           

            

5.5 Financial assets          
           
5.5.1 Classification          
           
 The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, 

held to maturity and available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. 
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.     
     

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss        
  

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this 
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in short term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading 
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets.    
       

(b) Loans and receivables          
           
 Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 

market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period, 
in which case, these are classified as non-current assets.        
     

(c) Held to maturity financial assets          

 Held to maturity financial assets are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity with 
a positive intention and ability to hold till maturity.         
     

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets          
      

 Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the 
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the investment matures or management intends to dispose-off 
it within 12 months of the end of the reporting date.        
   

5.5.2 Recognition and measurement          
      

 Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date – the date on which the Company commits 
to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not 
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at 
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss account. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights 
to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially 
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held to maturity investments are subsequently carried at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method.        
     

 Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' category are 
presented in the profit and loss account within 'other income / other operating expenses' in the period in which they arise. 
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the profit and loss account as part of 
'other income' when the Company's right to receive payments is established.      
     

 Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in 'Other 
comprehensive income'.          

          
 When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in 

equity are included in the profit and loss account as 'gains / losses from investment securities'.    
     

 Interest on available-for-sale securities and held to maturity investments is calculated using the effective interest method is 
recognised in the profit and loss account as part of 'other income'. Dividend income from available-for-sale equity instruments 
is recognised in the profit and loss account as part of 'other income' when the Company's right to receive payments is established. 
       

 The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group 
of financial assets is impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured 
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset 
previously recognised in profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss account. Impairment losses 
recognised in profit and loss account on equity instruments are not reversed through the profit and loss account. Impairment 
testing of other receivables is described in note 5.11.        
      

5.6 Financial liabilities          
           
 Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less directly attributable transactions costs, if any, and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using effective interest method.       
       

 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing 
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of original liability and 
recognition of a new liability and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit and loss account. 
     

5.7 Off setting financial instruments          

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be 
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the 
counter party.          

   
5.8 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities        

  
 Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured 

at their fair values. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a 
hedging instrument, if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Company designates certain derivatives as either fair value 
hedge or cash flow hedge.          

    
(a) Fair value hedge           
           
 Fair value hedge represents a hedge of the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or a firm commitment. Changes in the 

fair value of a derivative that is designated and qualify as fair value hedge is recorded in the profit and loss account, together 
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. The carrying value of 
the hedged item is adjusted accordingly.          
  

(b) Cash flow hedge          
           
 Cash flow hedge represents a hedge of a highly probable forecast transaction. The effective portion of changes in the fair value 

of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income. The gain or 
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account. Amounts accumulated in equity 
are reclassified to the profit and loss account in the periods when the hedged item affects profit and loss account.   
   

5.9 Stores, spares and loose tools          

 Stores, spares and loose tools are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventory is based on weighted 
average cost. Items-in-transit are stated at cost accumulated upto the reporting date. The Company reviews the carrying 
amounts of stores, spares and loose tools on an on-going basis and provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change 
in usage pattern and physical form. Impairment is also made for slow moving items.     
   

5.10 Stock-in-trade          
           
 Stock-in-trade are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials and components represent invoice 

values plus other charges incurred thereon. Cost of inventory is based on weighted average cost. Cost in relation to work-in-process 
and finished goods represent direct cost of raw materials, wages and appropriate manufacturing overheads. Goods in transit 
are valued at cost accumulated upto the reporting date.        
        

 The Company reviews the carrying amount of stock-in-trade on an on-going basis and as appropriate, inventory is written down 
to its net realisable value or provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in usage pattern and physical form of 
related inventory.          

         
 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs necessary to be incurred in 

order to make the sale.           
         
5.11 Trade debts and other receivables          

 Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at original invoice amount which is the fair value of consideration to be 
received in future and subsequently measured at cost as reduced by appropriate provision for receivables considered to be 

doubtful. A provision is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts 
due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount of provision is charged to profit and loss. Trade and other 
receivables considered irrecoverable are written-off.         
    

 Exchange gains and losses arising in respect of trade and other receivables in foreign currency are added to the carrying 
amount of the receivables.           

           
5.12 Cash and cash equivalents          
           
 Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, 

cash and cash equivalents represent balances with banks.        
    

5.13 Non current assets held for sale          

 Non current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a 
sale transaction rather than continuing use and sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying 
amount and fair value less cost to sell.           
    

5.14 Share capital          
           
 Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value.       

     
5.15 Retirement and other service benefit obligations        

      
5.15.1 Defined contribution plans          
           
 A defined contribution plan is a post employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contribution into a separate 

entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligation for contribution to a defined contribution 
plan is recognised as an employee service benefit expense in the profit and loss account when it is due.   
   

 The Company operates defined contribution plans for its permanent employees excluding ex-patriates, through either one of 
the following ways:          

           
•  a recognised provident fund; or         
           
•  voluntary pension schemes managed by Atlas Asset Management Limited, a related party, under the Voluntary Pension 

System Rules, 2005, viz, Atlas Pension Fund and Atlas Pension Islamic Fund.     
  

 All the newly appointed employees are offered voluntary pension scheme only. However, those employees who are provident 
fund trust members, have the option to opt for either of two above-mentioned defined contribution plans.   
   

 Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 11% of the basic salary are made to the fund / scheme both by the Company and 
the employees. The fund is a separate legal entity and its assets are being held separately under the control of its Trustees. 
     

5.15.2 Defined benefit plans          
           
 Defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than the defined contribution plan. Defined benefit plans define 

an amount of gratuity that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age and 
years of service. The liability recognised in the statement of financial position is the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of the plan assets.       

 The Company has established separate funded gratuity schemes for its management and non-management staff who completes 
qualifying period of service. Contributions under the schemes are made on the basis of actuarial valuation using Projected Unit 
Credit Method, related details of which are given in note 22.7 to the financial statements.    
 

 The amount arising as a result of remeasurements are recognised in the statement of financial position immediately, with a 
charge or credit to other comprehensive income in the periods in which they occur. Past-service cost are recognised immediately 
in profit and loss account. 

           
5.15.3 Compensated absences          
           
 Employees’ entitlement to annual leaves is recognised when they accrue to the employees. A provision, based on actuarial 

valuations, is made for the estimated liability for annual leaves as a result of services rendered by employees up to the reporting 
date. Current Service cost, actuarial gains or losses and past service cost are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account. 
       

5.16 Trade and other payables          
           
 Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at their amortised cost, which approximate fair value of the consideration to 

be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.     
     

5.17 Obligation under finance lease          

 Total outstanding obligation under the lease arrangements less finance cost attributable to future periods is presented as liability. 
Finance cost under the lease arrangements is distributed over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of 
finance cost on the balance of principal liability outstanding at the end of each period.     
    

5.18 Operating leases / Ijarah          
           
 Operating leases / Ijarah in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor / Muj’ir 

(lessor) are classified as operating leases / Ijarah. Payments made during the year are charged to the profit and loss account 
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease / Ijarah.        
       

5.19 Provisions          
           
 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it 

is probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate. 
   

5.20 Warranty          
           
 The Company recognises the estimated liability to repair or replace damaged parts of products still under warranty at the 

reporting date on the basis of historical claim information. The Company offers 3 years’ warranty on all engine spare parts and 
six months warranty on all other spare parts of its motorcycles. The ratio of warranty claims filed during the year to previous 
year's sales is taken into account for determining the estimated liability.       
     

5.21 Taxation          
           
 The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit and loss account, except to 

the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.      
    

 Current           
           
 The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The 

charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in the previous years 
arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.       
     

 Deferred          
           
 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax bases 

of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.      
      

 Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date 
and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.   
      

 Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised 
only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be

 utilised.
        
5.22 Foreign currency transactions and translation         

 
 Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of 

transactions. The closing balance of non-monetary items is included at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction 
and monetary items are translated using the exchange rate prevailing on the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses 
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit and loss account.     
         

5.23 Revenue recognition          
           
 Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of 

revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is reduced 
for allowances such as taxes, duties, commission, sales returns and discounts. Revenue from different sources is recognised 
on the following basis:          

        
 -   Revenue from sales of motorcycles and spare parts is recognised when goods are dispatched and invoiced to customers. 

       
 -   Interest income on deposits with banks and other financial assets is recognised on accrual basis.   

       
 -   Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.     

        
5.24 Borrowing costs          
           
 Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred except where such costs are directly 

attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset in which case such costs are capitalised as part 
of the cost of that asset.           

      
5.25 Research and development costs          

      
 Research and development costs are recognised in profit and loss account as and when incurred.   

      
5.26 Earnings per share          
           
 The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss 

attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 
the period.          

       
5.27 Segment reporting          
           
 Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes by the Chief Operating Decision 

Maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. On the basis of its 
internal reporting structure, the Company considers itself to be a single reportable segment.    
    

5.28 Dividend and appropriation to reserves         
 

 Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the financial statements in the period in which these are approved.
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1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS
 
 Atlas Honda Limited (the Company) was incorporated as a public limited company on October 16, 1962 under the Companies 

Act, 1913 (now the Companies Act, 2017) and its shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered office 
is located at 1- McLeod Road, Lahore. The Company is principally engaged in progressive manufacturing and marketing of 
motorcycles and spare parts. The manufacturing and assembling facilities of the Company are located at Karachi and 
Sheikhupura, with branches, customer care centres, warranty & training centres and other offices located in Karachi, Hyderabad, 
Multan, Lahore, Faisalabad, Rahim Yar Khan and Islamabad.     

 The Company is a subsidiary of Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited, which holds 52.43% of issued, subscribed and paid-up 
capital of the Company as at March 31, 2018.         

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
          
2.1 Statement of compliance
         
 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 

Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise:     

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as 
notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

        
- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as notified 

under the Companies Act, 2017; and 
        
- Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.      

 Where provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provision of and directives 
issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.       

2.2 Basis of measurement
         
 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain financial instruments, 

which are carried at fair values and staff retirement benefit - gratuity which is carried at present value of defined benefit obligation 
net of fair value of plan assets.          

2.3 Functional and presentation currency
         
 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company and figures 

are rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees.        

2.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements         

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses.

          
 The estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable 

under the circumstances and are continually evaluated. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal 
the related actual results. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period 
of the revision and future periods. Judgements made by management in application of the approved accounting standards 
that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments in the next 
year are discussed in respective policy note. The areas involving significant estimates or judgements are:   
              
(i) Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets [notes 5.1 and 5.2];

 (ii) Provision for slow moving inventories [notes 5.9 and 5.10];       
              
(iii) Estimate of payables and receivables in respect of staff retirement benefit schemes [notes 5.15 and 22.7];  
              
(iv) Estimate of provision for warranty [note 5.20]; and        

 (v) Estimation of current and deferred tax [note 5.21].

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS       

 Capital expenditure 
        
 During the year, the Company incurred major capital expenditure as part of its plan for capacity expansion. This is reflected in 

operating fixed assets note 6. 
        
 New model 
        
 In May 2017, the Company launched its new model in the 150cc category named as CB 150F.

 For detail performance review of the Company, refer Directors' Report. 
     
4. NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTREPRETATIONS
      
4.1 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards effective in current year
    
 New and amended standards and interpretations mandatory for the first time for the financial year beginning April 1, 2017:

(a) IAS 7 Statement of cash flows
      
 The amendment requires disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities 

arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flow and non-cash changes.  
  

(b) IAS 12 Income taxes
      
 The amendment clarifies deferred tax treatment for debt instrument and also addresses questions regarding 

determination of future taxable profit for the recognition test of deferred tax.

 The other new standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the 
financial year beginning on April 1, 2017 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company's 
financial reporting and operations.          

4.2 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not 
been early adopted by the Company          

 The following new standards and amendments to approved accounting standards are not effective for the financial year 
beginning on April 1, 2017 and have not been early adopted by the Company:      

(a) IFRS 9  Financial instruments Effective date: January 1, 2018
           
 IASB has published the complete version of IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, which replaces the guidance in IAS 

39. This final version includes requirements on the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities; 
it also includes an expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment model currently being 
used. The standard not likely to have material impact on the Company’s financial statements.   
         

(b) IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers Effective date: January 1, 2018
           
 The IASB has issued a new standard for the recognition of revenue. This will replace IAS 18 which covers contracts 

for goods and services and IAS 11 which covers construction contracts. The new standard is based on the principle 
that revenue is recognised when control of a good or service transfers to a customer – so the notion of control 
replaces the existing notion of risks and rewards. The standard permits a modified retrospective approach for the 
adoption. Under this approach entities will recognise transitional adjustments in retained earnings on the date of 
initial application (e.g. April 1, 2019), i.e. without restating the comparative period. They will only need to apply the 
new rules to contracts that are not completed as of the date of initial application. The Company has yet to assess 
the full impact of this standard on its financial statements.      

(c) IFRS 16 Leases Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 IFRS 16 will affect primarily the accounting by lessees and will result in the recognition of almost all leases on 

statement of financial position. The standard removes the current distinction between operating and financing leases 
and requires recognition of an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals for 
virtually all lease contracts. An optional exemption exists for short-term and low-value leases. The accounting by 
lessors will not significantly change. Some differences may arise as a result of the new guidance on the definition 

of a lease. Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of 
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. This IFRS is under consideration of the relevant 
Committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. The Company has yet to assess the full impact 
of this standard on its financial statements.        
  

(d) IAS 12 Income taxes Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 This amendment as part of the annual improvement 2015-2017 cycle, clarifies that all income tax consequences 

of dividends (including payments on financial instruments classified as equity) are recognised consistently with the 
transactions that generated the distributable profits – i.e. in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity. 
The amendments are not likely to have material impact on the Company’s financial statements.   
          

(e) IAS 23 Borrowing costs Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 The amendment is part of the annual improvement 2015-2017 cycle. The amendment clarifies that the general 

borrowings pool used to calculate eligible borrowing costs exclude only borrowings that specifically finance qualifying 
assets that are still under development or construction. Borrowings that were intended to specifically finance 
qualifying assets that are now ready for their intended use or sale – or any non – qualifying assets – are included 
in that general pool. This amendment will be applied prospectively to borrowing costs incurred on or after the date 
an entity adopts the amendments. The amendments are not likely to have material impact on the Company’s financial 
statements.           
 

(f) IFRIC 22 Foreign currency transactions Effective date: January 1, 2018
           
 The interpretation clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves 

an advance payment or receipt. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date that the advance 
foreign currency was paid or received and the prepayment or deferred income recognised. The amendments are 
not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial statements.    
    

(g) IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatment Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 The interpretation clarifies the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatment under 

IAS 12. The interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current 
and deferred tax. The amendments are not expected to have material impact on the Company's financial statements. 
           

 There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the approved accounting standards that are not yet 
effective and are also not relevant to the Company and therefore, have not been presented here.    
         

5. SIGINIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES         
         

 The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These polices have 
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.      
        

5.1 Property, plant and equipment          
           

 Owned assets          
           
 The Company has adopted cost model for its property, plant and equipment. Property, plant and equipment except for freehold 

land and capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Freehold land 
is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset, 
including any borrowing cost (note 5.24). The cost of a self constructed asset includes cost of materials, labour and other 
overheads that are directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, costs of dismantling / 
removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is located. Items of property, plant and equipment individually costing 
Rs.25,000 or less are charged to the profit and loss account as and when purchased.

           
 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated upto the reporting date less accumulated impairment loss, if any. Capital 

work-in-progress is recognised as an operating fixed asset when it is made available for its intended use.   
        

 Where major components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for in the 
books of account as separate items of property, plant and equipment.      
           

 Subsequent costs including major renewals and improvements are included in the carrying amount of the asset or are recognised 
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the asset will 
flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised 
at the time of replacement. Normal repair and maintenance and day-to-day servicing are charged to the profit and loss account 
as and when incurred.          

         

 Depreciation is charged to the profit and loss account using reducing balance method except for dies and jigs, office equipment, 
computers and accessories and furniture & fixtures, without considering extra shifts. Depreciation on dies and jigs, office 
equipment, computers and accessories and furniture & fixtures is charged to the profit and loss account using straight line 
method. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use while no depreciation is 
charged for the month in which the asset is disposed-off.        
        

 The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment are reviewed periodically 
and altered if circumstances or expectations have changed significantly. Any change or adjustment in depreciation method, 
useful lives and residual values is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate under IAS 8, ‘Accounting policies, changes 
in accounting estimates and errors’ and is applied prospectively in the financial statements by adjusting the depreciation charge 
for the period in which the amendment or change has been made and for future periods.    
        

 Disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised when significant risk and rewards, incidental to the ownership 
of that asset, have been transferred to the buyer. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the carrying 
amount of that asset with the sales proceeds and are recognised within 'other income / other operating expenses' in the profit 
and loss account.          

          
 Leased assets          
           
 Lease that substantially transfers all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the Company is classified 

as finance lease. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and 
present value of minimum lease payments. Subsequent to the initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with 
the accounting policy applicable for owned assets.        
       

5.2 Intangible assets          
           
 These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any and represent cost of software licenses, 

SAP implementation & support cost and license fee of certain products / components that are being manufactured by the 
Company under technology transfer arrangements.         
     

 Costs associated with maintaining these assets are charged to the profit and loss account as and when incurred, however, 
costs that are directly attributable to the identifiable asset and have probable economic benefits exceeding one year, are 
recognised as intangible asset. Direct costs include purchase cost of the asset, salaries and other service benefits of staff 
deployed towards development of the asset and other related overheads. Expenditure incurred in respect of design, construction 
and testing of an intangible asset are also added to the carrying amount of that asset.      
    

 Expenditure which enhances or extends the performance of the asset beyond its original specifications is recognised as a 
capital improvement and added to the original cost of the asset.       
         

 All intangible assets are estimated to have definite useful lives and are amortised from the month the software / license is 
acquired, made available for use or extended support cost is incurred, using the straight line method over a period of 2 to 5 years. 
     

5.3 Impairment of non-financial assets          
      

 Non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to identify circumstances indicating occurrence of impairment loss or 
reversal of pervious impairment losses, if any. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying 
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and 
value in use. Reversal of impairment loss is restricted to the original cost of the asset.     
    

5.4 Investments in equity instruments of an Associate        
  

 Investment in an Associate is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment 
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the Company's share of profit 
or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.         
          

 The Company’s share of post acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the profit and loss account, and its share of post acquisition 
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income with the corresponding adjustment 
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Company's share of losses in an Associate equals or exceeds its interest 
in the Associate, the Company does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or 
made payments on behalf of the Associate.         
           

 The Company determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the Associate 
is impaired. If this is the case, the Company calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable 
amount of the Associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to share of profit / loss of an Associate in 
the profit and loss account.           

            

5.5 Financial assets          
           
5.5.1 Classification          
           
 The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, 

held to maturity and available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. 
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.     
     

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss        
  

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this 
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in short term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading 
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets.    
       

(b) Loans and receivables          
           
 Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 

market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period, 
in which case, these are classified as non-current assets.        
     

(c) Held to maturity financial assets          

 Held to maturity financial assets are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity with 
a positive intention and ability to hold till maturity.         
     

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets          
      

 Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the 
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the investment matures or management intends to dispose-off 
it within 12 months of the end of the reporting date.        
   

5.5.2 Recognition and measurement          
      

 Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date – the date on which the Company commits 
to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not 
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at 
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss account. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights 
to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially 
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held to maturity investments are subsequently carried at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method.        
     

 Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' category are 
presented in the profit and loss account within 'other income / other operating expenses' in the period in which they arise. 
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the profit and loss account as part of 
'other income' when the Company's right to receive payments is established.      
     

 Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in 'Other 
comprehensive income'.          

          
 When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in 

equity are included in the profit and loss account as 'gains / losses from investment securities'.    
     

 Interest on available-for-sale securities and held to maturity investments is calculated using the effective interest method is 
recognised in the profit and loss account as part of 'other income'. Dividend income from available-for-sale equity instruments 
is recognised in the profit and loss account as part of 'other income' when the Company's right to receive payments is established. 
       

 The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group 
of financial assets is impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured 
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset 
previously recognised in profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss account. Impairment losses 
recognised in profit and loss account on equity instruments are not reversed through the profit and loss account. Impairment 
testing of other receivables is described in note 5.11.        
      

5.6 Financial liabilities          
           
 Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less directly attributable transactions costs, if any, and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using effective interest method.       
       

 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing 
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of original liability and 
recognition of a new liability and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit and loss account. 
     

5.7 Off setting financial instruments          

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be 
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the 
counter party.          

   
5.8 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities        

  
 Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured 

at their fair values. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a 
hedging instrument, if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Company designates certain derivatives as either fair value 
hedge or cash flow hedge.          

    
(a) Fair value hedge           
           
 Fair value hedge represents a hedge of the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or a firm commitment. Changes in the 

fair value of a derivative that is designated and qualify as fair value hedge is recorded in the profit and loss account, together 
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. The carrying value of 
the hedged item is adjusted accordingly.          
  

(b) Cash flow hedge          
           
 Cash flow hedge represents a hedge of a highly probable forecast transaction. The effective portion of changes in the fair value 

of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income. The gain or 
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account. Amounts accumulated in equity 
are reclassified to the profit and loss account in the periods when the hedged item affects profit and loss account.   
   

5.9 Stores, spares and loose tools          

 Stores, spares and loose tools are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventory is based on weighted 
average cost. Items-in-transit are stated at cost accumulated upto the reporting date. The Company reviews the carrying 
amounts of stores, spares and loose tools on an on-going basis and provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change 
in usage pattern and physical form. Impairment is also made for slow moving items.     
   

5.10 Stock-in-trade          
           
 Stock-in-trade are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials and components represent invoice 

values plus other charges incurred thereon. Cost of inventory is based on weighted average cost. Cost in relation to work-in-process 
and finished goods represent direct cost of raw materials, wages and appropriate manufacturing overheads. Goods in transit 
are valued at cost accumulated upto the reporting date.        
        

 The Company reviews the carrying amount of stock-in-trade on an on-going basis and as appropriate, inventory is written down 
to its net realisable value or provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in usage pattern and physical form of 
related inventory.          

         
 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs necessary to be incurred in 

order to make the sale.           
         
5.11 Trade debts and other receivables          

 Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at original invoice amount which is the fair value of consideration to be 
received in future and subsequently measured at cost as reduced by appropriate provision for receivables considered to be 

doubtful. A provision is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts 
due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount of provision is charged to profit and loss. Trade and other 
receivables considered irrecoverable are written-off.         
    

 Exchange gains and losses arising in respect of trade and other receivables in foreign currency are added to the carrying 
amount of the receivables.           

           
5.12 Cash and cash equivalents          
           
 Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, 

cash and cash equivalents represent balances with banks.        
    

5.13 Non current assets held for sale          

 Non current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a 
sale transaction rather than continuing use and sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying 
amount and fair value less cost to sell.           
    

5.14 Share capital          
           
 Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value.       

     
5.15 Retirement and other service benefit obligations        

      
5.15.1 Defined contribution plans          
           
 A defined contribution plan is a post employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contribution into a separate 

entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligation for contribution to a defined contribution 
plan is recognised as an employee service benefit expense in the profit and loss account when it is due.   
   

 The Company operates defined contribution plans for its permanent employees excluding ex-patriates, through either one of 
the following ways:          

           
•  a recognised provident fund; or         
           
•  voluntary pension schemes managed by Atlas Asset Management Limited, a related party, under the Voluntary Pension 

System Rules, 2005, viz, Atlas Pension Fund and Atlas Pension Islamic Fund.     
  

 All the newly appointed employees are offered voluntary pension scheme only. However, those employees who are provident 
fund trust members, have the option to opt for either of two above-mentioned defined contribution plans.   
   

 Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 11% of the basic salary are made to the fund / scheme both by the Company and 
the employees. The fund is a separate legal entity and its assets are being held separately under the control of its Trustees. 
     

5.15.2 Defined benefit plans          
           
 Defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than the defined contribution plan. Defined benefit plans define 

an amount of gratuity that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age and 
years of service. The liability recognised in the statement of financial position is the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of the plan assets.       

 The Company has established separate funded gratuity schemes for its management and non-management staff who completes 
qualifying period of service. Contributions under the schemes are made on the basis of actuarial valuation using Projected Unit 
Credit Method, related details of which are given in note 22.7 to the financial statements.    
 

 The amount arising as a result of remeasurements are recognised in the statement of financial position immediately, with a 
charge or credit to other comprehensive income in the periods in which they occur. Past-service cost are recognised immediately 
in profit and loss account. 

           
5.15.3 Compensated absences          
           
 Employees’ entitlement to annual leaves is recognised when they accrue to the employees. A provision, based on actuarial 

valuations, is made for the estimated liability for annual leaves as a result of services rendered by employees up to the reporting 
date. Current Service cost, actuarial gains or losses and past service cost are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account. 
       

5.16 Trade and other payables          
           
 Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at their amortised cost, which approximate fair value of the consideration to 

be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.     
     

5.17 Obligation under finance lease          

 Total outstanding obligation under the lease arrangements less finance cost attributable to future periods is presented as liability. 
Finance cost under the lease arrangements is distributed over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of 
finance cost on the balance of principal liability outstanding at the end of each period.     
    

5.18 Operating leases / Ijarah          
           
 Operating leases / Ijarah in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor / Muj’ir 

(lessor) are classified as operating leases / Ijarah. Payments made during the year are charged to the profit and loss account 
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease / Ijarah.        
       

5.19 Provisions          
           
 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it 

is probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate. 
   

5.20 Warranty          
           
 The Company recognises the estimated liability to repair or replace damaged parts of products still under warranty at the 

reporting date on the basis of historical claim information. The Company offers 3 years’ warranty on all engine spare parts and 
six months warranty on all other spare parts of its motorcycles. The ratio of warranty claims filed during the year to previous 
year's sales is taken into account for determining the estimated liability.       
     

5.21 Taxation          
           
 The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit and loss account, except to 

the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.      
    

 Current           
           
 The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The 

charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in the previous years 
arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.       
     

 Deferred          
           
 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax bases 

of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.      
      

 Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date 
and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.   
      

 Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised 
only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be

 utilised.
        
5.22 Foreign currency transactions and translation         

 
 Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of 

transactions. The closing balance of non-monetary items is included at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction 
and monetary items are translated using the exchange rate prevailing on the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses 
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit and loss account.     
         

5.23 Revenue recognition          
           
 Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of 

revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is reduced 
for allowances such as taxes, duties, commission, sales returns and discounts. Revenue from different sources is recognised 
on the following basis:          

        
 -   Revenue from sales of motorcycles and spare parts is recognised when goods are dispatched and invoiced to customers. 

       
 -   Interest income on deposits with banks and other financial assets is recognised on accrual basis.   

       
 -   Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.     

        
5.24 Borrowing costs          
           
 Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred except where such costs are directly 

attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset in which case such costs are capitalised as part 
of the cost of that asset.           

      
5.25 Research and development costs          

      
 Research and development costs are recognised in profit and loss account as and when incurred.   

      
5.26 Earnings per share          
           
 The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss 

attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 
the period.          

       
5.27 Segment reporting          
           
 Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes by the Chief Operating Decision 

Maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. On the basis of its 
internal reporting structure, the Company considers itself to be a single reportable segment.    
    

5.28 Dividend and appropriation to reserves         
 

 Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the financial statements in the period in which these are approved.

83Atlas Honda Limited

Company Overview Message for Stakeholders Financial Highlights Financial Statements Other Information



1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS
 
 Atlas Honda Limited (the Company) was incorporated as a public limited company on October 16, 1962 under the Companies 

Act, 1913 (now the Companies Act, 2017) and its shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered office 
is located at 1- McLeod Road, Lahore. The Company is principally engaged in progressive manufacturing and marketing of 
motorcycles and spare parts. The manufacturing and assembling facilities of the Company are located at Karachi and 
Sheikhupura, with branches, customer care centres, warranty & training centres and other offices located in Karachi, Hyderabad, 
Multan, Lahore, Faisalabad, Rahim Yar Khan and Islamabad.     

 The Company is a subsidiary of Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited, which holds 52.43% of issued, subscribed and paid-up 
capital of the Company as at March 31, 2018.         

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
          
2.1 Statement of compliance
         
 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 

Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise:     

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as 
notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

        
- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as notified 

under the Companies Act, 2017; and 
        
- Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.      

 Where provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provision of and directives 
issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.       

2.2 Basis of measurement
         
 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain financial instruments, 

which are carried at fair values and staff retirement benefit - gratuity which is carried at present value of defined benefit obligation 
net of fair value of plan assets.          

2.3 Functional and presentation currency
         
 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company and figures 

are rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees.        

2.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements         

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses.

          
 The estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable 

under the circumstances and are continually evaluated. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal 
the related actual results. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period 
of the revision and future periods. Judgements made by management in application of the approved accounting standards 
that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments in the next 
year are discussed in respective policy note. The areas involving significant estimates or judgements are:   
              
(i) Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets [notes 5.1 and 5.2];

 (ii) Provision for slow moving inventories [notes 5.9 and 5.10];       
              
(iii) Estimate of payables and receivables in respect of staff retirement benefit schemes [notes 5.15 and 22.7];  
              
(iv) Estimate of provision for warranty [note 5.20]; and        

 (v) Estimation of current and deferred tax [note 5.21].

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS       

 Capital expenditure 
        
 During the year, the Company incurred major capital expenditure as part of its plan for capacity expansion. This is reflected in 

operating fixed assets note 6. 
        
 New model 
        
 In May 2017, the Company launched its new model in the 150cc category named as CB 150F.

 For detail performance review of the Company, refer Directors' Report. 
     
4. NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTREPRETATIONS
      
4.1 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards effective in current year
    
 New and amended standards and interpretations mandatory for the first time for the financial year beginning April 1, 2017:

(a) IAS 7 Statement of cash flows
      
 The amendment requires disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities 

arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flow and non-cash changes.  
  

(b) IAS 12 Income taxes
      
 The amendment clarifies deferred tax treatment for debt instrument and also addresses questions regarding 

determination of future taxable profit for the recognition test of deferred tax.

 The other new standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the 
financial year beginning on April 1, 2017 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company's 
financial reporting and operations.          

4.2 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not 
been early adopted by the Company          

 The following new standards and amendments to approved accounting standards are not effective for the financial year 
beginning on April 1, 2017 and have not been early adopted by the Company:      

(a) IFRS 9  Financial instruments Effective date: January 1, 2018
           
 IASB has published the complete version of IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, which replaces the guidance in IAS 

39. This final version includes requirements on the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities; 
it also includes an expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment model currently being 
used. The standard not likely to have material impact on the Company’s financial statements.   
         

(b) IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers Effective date: January 1, 2018
           
 The IASB has issued a new standard for the recognition of revenue. This will replace IAS 18 which covers contracts 

for goods and services and IAS 11 which covers construction contracts. The new standard is based on the principle 
that revenue is recognised when control of a good or service transfers to a customer – so the notion of control 
replaces the existing notion of risks and rewards. The standard permits a modified retrospective approach for the 
adoption. Under this approach entities will recognise transitional adjustments in retained earnings on the date of 
initial application (e.g. April 1, 2019), i.e. without restating the comparative period. They will only need to apply the 
new rules to contracts that are not completed as of the date of initial application. The Company has yet to assess 
the full impact of this standard on its financial statements.      

(c) IFRS 16 Leases Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 IFRS 16 will affect primarily the accounting by lessees and will result in the recognition of almost all leases on 

statement of financial position. The standard removes the current distinction between operating and financing leases 
and requires recognition of an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals for 
virtually all lease contracts. An optional exemption exists for short-term and low-value leases. The accounting by 
lessors will not significantly change. Some differences may arise as a result of the new guidance on the definition 

of a lease. Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of 
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. This IFRS is under consideration of the relevant 
Committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. The Company has yet to assess the full impact 
of this standard on its financial statements.        
  

(d) IAS 12 Income taxes Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 This amendment as part of the annual improvement 2015-2017 cycle, clarifies that all income tax consequences 

of dividends (including payments on financial instruments classified as equity) are recognised consistently with the 
transactions that generated the distributable profits – i.e. in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity. 
The amendments are not likely to have material impact on the Company’s financial statements.   
          

(e) IAS 23 Borrowing costs Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 The amendment is part of the annual improvement 2015-2017 cycle. The amendment clarifies that the general 

borrowings pool used to calculate eligible borrowing costs exclude only borrowings that specifically finance qualifying 
assets that are still under development or construction. Borrowings that were intended to specifically finance 
qualifying assets that are now ready for their intended use or sale – or any non – qualifying assets – are included 
in that general pool. This amendment will be applied prospectively to borrowing costs incurred on or after the date 
an entity adopts the amendments. The amendments are not likely to have material impact on the Company’s financial 
statements.           
 

(f) IFRIC 22 Foreign currency transactions Effective date: January 1, 2018
           
 The interpretation clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves 

an advance payment or receipt. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date that the advance 
foreign currency was paid or received and the prepayment or deferred income recognised. The amendments are 
not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial statements.    
    

(g) IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatment Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 The interpretation clarifies the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatment under 

IAS 12. The interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current 
and deferred tax. The amendments are not expected to have material impact on the Company's financial statements. 
           

 There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the approved accounting standards that are not yet 
effective and are also not relevant to the Company and therefore, have not been presented here.    
         

5. SIGINIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES         
         

 The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These polices have 
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.      
        

5.1 Property, plant and equipment          
           

 Owned assets          
           
 The Company has adopted cost model for its property, plant and equipment. Property, plant and equipment except for freehold 

land and capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Freehold land 
is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset, 
including any borrowing cost (note 5.24). The cost of a self constructed asset includes cost of materials, labour and other 
overheads that are directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, costs of dismantling / 
removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is located. Items of property, plant and equipment individually costing 
Rs.25,000 or less are charged to the profit and loss account as and when purchased.

           
 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated upto the reporting date less accumulated impairment loss, if any. Capital 

work-in-progress is recognised as an operating fixed asset when it is made available for its intended use.   
        

 Where major components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for in the 
books of account as separate items of property, plant and equipment.      
           

 Subsequent costs including major renewals and improvements are included in the carrying amount of the asset or are recognised 
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the asset will 
flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised 
at the time of replacement. Normal repair and maintenance and day-to-day servicing are charged to the profit and loss account 
as and when incurred.          

         

 Depreciation is charged to the profit and loss account using reducing balance method except for dies and jigs, office equipment, 
computers and accessories and furniture & fixtures, without considering extra shifts. Depreciation on dies and jigs, office 
equipment, computers and accessories and furniture & fixtures is charged to the profit and loss account using straight line 
method. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use while no depreciation is 
charged for the month in which the asset is disposed-off.        
        

 The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment are reviewed periodically 
and altered if circumstances or expectations have changed significantly. Any change or adjustment in depreciation method, 
useful lives and residual values is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate under IAS 8, ‘Accounting policies, changes 
in accounting estimates and errors’ and is applied prospectively in the financial statements by adjusting the depreciation charge 
for the period in which the amendment or change has been made and for future periods.    
        

 Disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised when significant risk and rewards, incidental to the ownership 
of that asset, have been transferred to the buyer. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the carrying 
amount of that asset with the sales proceeds and are recognised within 'other income / other operating expenses' in the profit 
and loss account.          

          
 Leased assets          
           
 Lease that substantially transfers all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the Company is classified 

as finance lease. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and 
present value of minimum lease payments. Subsequent to the initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with 
the accounting policy applicable for owned assets.        
       

5.2 Intangible assets          
           
 These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any and represent cost of software licenses, 

SAP implementation & support cost and license fee of certain products / components that are being manufactured by the 
Company under technology transfer arrangements.         
     

 Costs associated with maintaining these assets are charged to the profit and loss account as and when incurred, however, 
costs that are directly attributable to the identifiable asset and have probable economic benefits exceeding one year, are 
recognised as intangible asset. Direct costs include purchase cost of the asset, salaries and other service benefits of staff 
deployed towards development of the asset and other related overheads. Expenditure incurred in respect of design, construction 
and testing of an intangible asset are also added to the carrying amount of that asset.      
    

 Expenditure which enhances or extends the performance of the asset beyond its original specifications is recognised as a 
capital improvement and added to the original cost of the asset.       
         

 All intangible assets are estimated to have definite useful lives and are amortised from the month the software / license is 
acquired, made available for use or extended support cost is incurred, using the straight line method over a period of 2 to 5 years. 
     

5.3 Impairment of non-financial assets          
      

 Non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to identify circumstances indicating occurrence of impairment loss or 
reversal of pervious impairment losses, if any. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying 
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and 
value in use. Reversal of impairment loss is restricted to the original cost of the asset.     
    

5.4 Investments in equity instruments of an Associate        
  

 Investment in an Associate is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment 
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the Company's share of profit 
or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.         
          

 The Company’s share of post acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the profit and loss account, and its share of post acquisition 
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income with the corresponding adjustment 
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Company's share of losses in an Associate equals or exceeds its interest 
in the Associate, the Company does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or 
made payments on behalf of the Associate.         
           

 The Company determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the Associate 
is impaired. If this is the case, the Company calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable 
amount of the Associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to share of profit / loss of an Associate in 
the profit and loss account.           

            

5.5 Financial assets          
           
5.5.1 Classification          
           
 The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, 

held to maturity and available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. 
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.     
     

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss        
  

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this 
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in short term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading 
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets.    
       

(b) Loans and receivables          
           
 Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 

market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period, 
in which case, these are classified as non-current assets.        
     

(c) Held to maturity financial assets          

 Held to maturity financial assets are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity with 
a positive intention and ability to hold till maturity.         
     

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets          
      

 Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the 
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the investment matures or management intends to dispose-off 
it within 12 months of the end of the reporting date.        
   

5.5.2 Recognition and measurement          
      

 Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date – the date on which the Company commits 
to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not 
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at 
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss account. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights 
to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially 
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held to maturity investments are subsequently carried at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method.        
     

 Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' category are 
presented in the profit and loss account within 'other income / other operating expenses' in the period in which they arise. 
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the profit and loss account as part of 
'other income' when the Company's right to receive payments is established.      
     

 Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in 'Other 
comprehensive income'.          

          
 When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in 

equity are included in the profit and loss account as 'gains / losses from investment securities'.    
     

 Interest on available-for-sale securities and held to maturity investments is calculated using the effective interest method is 
recognised in the profit and loss account as part of 'other income'. Dividend income from available-for-sale equity instruments 
is recognised in the profit and loss account as part of 'other income' when the Company's right to receive payments is established. 
       

 The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group 
of financial assets is impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured 
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset 
previously recognised in profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss account. Impairment losses 
recognised in profit and loss account on equity instruments are not reversed through the profit and loss account. Impairment 
testing of other receivables is described in note 5.11.        
      

5.6 Financial liabilities          
           
 Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less directly attributable transactions costs, if any, and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using effective interest method.       
       

 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing 
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of original liability and 
recognition of a new liability and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit and loss account. 
     

5.7 Off setting financial instruments          

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be 
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the 
counter party.          

   
5.8 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities        

  
 Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured 

at their fair values. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a 
hedging instrument, if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Company designates certain derivatives as either fair value 
hedge or cash flow hedge.          

    
(a) Fair value hedge           
           
 Fair value hedge represents a hedge of the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or a firm commitment. Changes in the 

fair value of a derivative that is designated and qualify as fair value hedge is recorded in the profit and loss account, together 
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. The carrying value of 
the hedged item is adjusted accordingly.          
  

(b) Cash flow hedge          
           
 Cash flow hedge represents a hedge of a highly probable forecast transaction. The effective portion of changes in the fair value 

of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income. The gain or 
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account. Amounts accumulated in equity 
are reclassified to the profit and loss account in the periods when the hedged item affects profit and loss account.   
   

5.9 Stores, spares and loose tools          

 Stores, spares and loose tools are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventory is based on weighted 
average cost. Items-in-transit are stated at cost accumulated upto the reporting date. The Company reviews the carrying 
amounts of stores, spares and loose tools on an on-going basis and provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change 
in usage pattern and physical form. Impairment is also made for slow moving items.     
   

5.10 Stock-in-trade          
           
 Stock-in-trade are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials and components represent invoice 

values plus other charges incurred thereon. Cost of inventory is based on weighted average cost. Cost in relation to work-in-process 
and finished goods represent direct cost of raw materials, wages and appropriate manufacturing overheads. Goods in transit 
are valued at cost accumulated upto the reporting date.        
        

 The Company reviews the carrying amount of stock-in-trade on an on-going basis and as appropriate, inventory is written down 
to its net realisable value or provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in usage pattern and physical form of 
related inventory.          

         
 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs necessary to be incurred in 

order to make the sale.           
         
5.11 Trade debts and other receivables          

 Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at original invoice amount which is the fair value of consideration to be 
received in future and subsequently measured at cost as reduced by appropriate provision for receivables considered to be 

doubtful. A provision is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts 
due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount of provision is charged to profit and loss. Trade and other 
receivables considered irrecoverable are written-off.         
    

 Exchange gains and losses arising in respect of trade and other receivables in foreign currency are added to the carrying 
amount of the receivables.           

           
5.12 Cash and cash equivalents          
           
 Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, 

cash and cash equivalents represent balances with banks.        
    

5.13 Non current assets held for sale          

 Non current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a 
sale transaction rather than continuing use and sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying 
amount and fair value less cost to sell.           
    

5.14 Share capital          
           
 Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value.       

     
5.15 Retirement and other service benefit obligations        

      
5.15.1 Defined contribution plans          
           
 A defined contribution plan is a post employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contribution into a separate 

entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligation for contribution to a defined contribution 
plan is recognised as an employee service benefit expense in the profit and loss account when it is due.   
   

 The Company operates defined contribution plans for its permanent employees excluding ex-patriates, through either one of 
the following ways:          

           
•  a recognised provident fund; or         
           
•  voluntary pension schemes managed by Atlas Asset Management Limited, a related party, under the Voluntary Pension 

System Rules, 2005, viz, Atlas Pension Fund and Atlas Pension Islamic Fund.     
  

 All the newly appointed employees are offered voluntary pension scheme only. However, those employees who are provident 
fund trust members, have the option to opt for either of two above-mentioned defined contribution plans.   
   

 Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 11% of the basic salary are made to the fund / scheme both by the Company and 
the employees. The fund is a separate legal entity and its assets are being held separately under the control of its Trustees. 
     

5.15.2 Defined benefit plans          
           
 Defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than the defined contribution plan. Defined benefit plans define 

an amount of gratuity that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age and 
years of service. The liability recognised in the statement of financial position is the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of the plan assets.       

 The Company has established separate funded gratuity schemes for its management and non-management staff who completes 
qualifying period of service. Contributions under the schemes are made on the basis of actuarial valuation using Projected Unit 
Credit Method, related details of which are given in note 22.7 to the financial statements.    
 

 The amount arising as a result of remeasurements are recognised in the statement of financial position immediately, with a 
charge or credit to other comprehensive income in the periods in which they occur. Past-service cost are recognised immediately 
in profit and loss account. 

           
5.15.3 Compensated absences          
           
 Employees’ entitlement to annual leaves is recognised when they accrue to the employees. A provision, based on actuarial 

valuations, is made for the estimated liability for annual leaves as a result of services rendered by employees up to the reporting 
date. Current Service cost, actuarial gains or losses and past service cost are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account. 
       

5.16 Trade and other payables          
           
 Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at their amortised cost, which approximate fair value of the consideration to 

be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.     
     

5.17 Obligation under finance lease          

 Total outstanding obligation under the lease arrangements less finance cost attributable to future periods is presented as liability. 
Finance cost under the lease arrangements is distributed over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of 
finance cost on the balance of principal liability outstanding at the end of each period.     
    

5.18 Operating leases / Ijarah          
           
 Operating leases / Ijarah in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor / Muj’ir 

(lessor) are classified as operating leases / Ijarah. Payments made during the year are charged to the profit and loss account 
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease / Ijarah.        
       

5.19 Provisions          
           
 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it 

is probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate. 
   

5.20 Warranty          
           
 The Company recognises the estimated liability to repair or replace damaged parts of products still under warranty at the 

reporting date on the basis of historical claim information. The Company offers 3 years’ warranty on all engine spare parts and 
six months warranty on all other spare parts of its motorcycles. The ratio of warranty claims filed during the year to previous 
year's sales is taken into account for determining the estimated liability.       
     

5.21 Taxation          
           
 The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit and loss account, except to 

the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.      
    

 Current           
           
 The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The 

charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in the previous years 
arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.       
     

 Deferred          
           
 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax bases 

of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.      
      

 Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date 
and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.   
      

 Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised 
only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be

 utilised.
        
5.22 Foreign currency transactions and translation         

 
 Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of 

transactions. The closing balance of non-monetary items is included at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction 
and monetary items are translated using the exchange rate prevailing on the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses 
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit and loss account.     
         

5.23 Revenue recognition          
           
 Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of 

revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is reduced 
for allowances such as taxes, duties, commission, sales returns and discounts. Revenue from different sources is recognised 
on the following basis:          

        
 -   Revenue from sales of motorcycles and spare parts is recognised when goods are dispatched and invoiced to customers. 

       
 -   Interest income on deposits with banks and other financial assets is recognised on accrual basis.   

       
 -   Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.     

        
5.24 Borrowing costs          
           
 Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred except where such costs are directly 

attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset in which case such costs are capitalised as part 
of the cost of that asset.           

      
5.25 Research and development costs          

      
 Research and development costs are recognised in profit and loss account as and when incurred.   

      
5.26 Earnings per share          
           
 The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss 

attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 
the period.          

       
5.27 Segment reporting          
           
 Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes by the Chief Operating Decision 

Maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. On the basis of its 
internal reporting structure, the Company considers itself to be a single reportable segment.    
    

5.28 Dividend and appropriation to reserves         
 

 Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the financial statements in the period in which these are approved.
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1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS
 
 Atlas Honda Limited (the Company) was incorporated as a public limited company on October 16, 1962 under the Companies 

Act, 1913 (now the Companies Act, 2017) and its shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered office 
is located at 1- McLeod Road, Lahore. The Company is principally engaged in progressive manufacturing and marketing of 
motorcycles and spare parts. The manufacturing and assembling facilities of the Company are located at Karachi and 
Sheikhupura, with branches, customer care centres, warranty & training centres and other offices located in Karachi, Hyderabad, 
Multan, Lahore, Faisalabad, Rahim Yar Khan and Islamabad.     

 The Company is a subsidiary of Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited, which holds 52.43% of issued, subscribed and paid-up 
capital of the Company as at March 31, 2018.         

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
          
2.1 Statement of compliance
         
 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 

Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise:     

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as 
notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

        
- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as notified 

under the Companies Act, 2017; and 
        
- Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.      

 Where provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provision of and directives 
issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.       

2.2 Basis of measurement
         
 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain financial instruments, 

which are carried at fair values and staff retirement benefit - gratuity which is carried at present value of defined benefit obligation 
net of fair value of plan assets.          

2.3 Functional and presentation currency
         
 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company and figures 

are rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees.        

2.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements         

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses.

          
 The estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable 

under the circumstances and are continually evaluated. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal 
the related actual results. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period 
of the revision and future periods. Judgements made by management in application of the approved accounting standards 
that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments in the next 
year are discussed in respective policy note. The areas involving significant estimates or judgements are:   
              
(i) Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets [notes 5.1 and 5.2];

 (ii) Provision for slow moving inventories [notes 5.9 and 5.10];       
              
(iii) Estimate of payables and receivables in respect of staff retirement benefit schemes [notes 5.15 and 22.7];  
              
(iv) Estimate of provision for warranty [note 5.20]; and        

 (v) Estimation of current and deferred tax [note 5.21].

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS       

 Capital expenditure 
        
 During the year, the Company incurred major capital expenditure as part of its plan for capacity expansion. This is reflected in 

operating fixed assets note 6. 
        
 New model 
        
 In May 2017, the Company launched its new model in the 150cc category named as CB 150F.

 For detail performance review of the Company, refer Directors' Report. 
     
4. NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTREPRETATIONS
      
4.1 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards effective in current year
    
 New and amended standards and interpretations mandatory for the first time for the financial year beginning April 1, 2017:

(a) IAS 7 Statement of cash flows
      
 The amendment requires disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities 

arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flow and non-cash changes.  
  

(b) IAS 12 Income taxes
      
 The amendment clarifies deferred tax treatment for debt instrument and also addresses questions regarding 

determination of future taxable profit for the recognition test of deferred tax.

 The other new standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the 
financial year beginning on April 1, 2017 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company's 
financial reporting and operations.          

4.2 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not 
been early adopted by the Company          

 The following new standards and amendments to approved accounting standards are not effective for the financial year 
beginning on April 1, 2017 and have not been early adopted by the Company:      

(a) IFRS 9  Financial instruments Effective date: January 1, 2018
           
 IASB has published the complete version of IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, which replaces the guidance in IAS 

39. This final version includes requirements on the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities; 
it also includes an expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment model currently being 
used. The standard not likely to have material impact on the Company’s financial statements.   
         

(b) IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers Effective date: January 1, 2018
           
 The IASB has issued a new standard for the recognition of revenue. This will replace IAS 18 which covers contracts 

for goods and services and IAS 11 which covers construction contracts. The new standard is based on the principle 
that revenue is recognised when control of a good or service transfers to a customer – so the notion of control 
replaces the existing notion of risks and rewards. The standard permits a modified retrospective approach for the 
adoption. Under this approach entities will recognise transitional adjustments in retained earnings on the date of 
initial application (e.g. April 1, 2019), i.e. without restating the comparative period. They will only need to apply the 
new rules to contracts that are not completed as of the date of initial application. The Company has yet to assess 
the full impact of this standard on its financial statements.      

(c) IFRS 16 Leases Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 IFRS 16 will affect primarily the accounting by lessees and will result in the recognition of almost all leases on 

statement of financial position. The standard removes the current distinction between operating and financing leases 
and requires recognition of an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals for 
virtually all lease contracts. An optional exemption exists for short-term and low-value leases. The accounting by 
lessors will not significantly change. Some differences may arise as a result of the new guidance on the definition 

of a lease. Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of 
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. This IFRS is under consideration of the relevant 
Committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. The Company has yet to assess the full impact 
of this standard on its financial statements.        
  

(d) IAS 12 Income taxes Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 This amendment as part of the annual improvement 2015-2017 cycle, clarifies that all income tax consequences 

of dividends (including payments on financial instruments classified as equity) are recognised consistently with the 
transactions that generated the distributable profits – i.e. in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity. 
The amendments are not likely to have material impact on the Company’s financial statements.   
          

(e) IAS 23 Borrowing costs Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 The amendment is part of the annual improvement 2015-2017 cycle. The amendment clarifies that the general 

borrowings pool used to calculate eligible borrowing costs exclude only borrowings that specifically finance qualifying 
assets that are still under development or construction. Borrowings that were intended to specifically finance 
qualifying assets that are now ready for their intended use or sale – or any non – qualifying assets – are included 
in that general pool. This amendment will be applied prospectively to borrowing costs incurred on or after the date 
an entity adopts the amendments. The amendments are not likely to have material impact on the Company’s financial 
statements.           
 

(f) IFRIC 22 Foreign currency transactions Effective date: January 1, 2018
           
 The interpretation clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves 

an advance payment or receipt. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date that the advance 
foreign currency was paid or received and the prepayment or deferred income recognised. The amendments are 
not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial statements.    
    

(g) IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatment Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 The interpretation clarifies the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatment under 

IAS 12. The interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current 
and deferred tax. The amendments are not expected to have material impact on the Company's financial statements. 
           

 There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the approved accounting standards that are not yet 
effective and are also not relevant to the Company and therefore, have not been presented here.    
         

5. SIGINIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES         
         

 The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These polices have 
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.      
        

5.1 Property, plant and equipment          
           

 Owned assets          
           
 The Company has adopted cost model for its property, plant and equipment. Property, plant and equipment except for freehold 

land and capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Freehold land 
is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset, 
including any borrowing cost (note 5.24). The cost of a self constructed asset includes cost of materials, labour and other 
overheads that are directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, costs of dismantling / 
removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is located. Items of property, plant and equipment individually costing 
Rs.25,000 or less are charged to the profit and loss account as and when purchased.

           
 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated upto the reporting date less accumulated impairment loss, if any. Capital 

work-in-progress is recognised as an operating fixed asset when it is made available for its intended use.   
        

 Where major components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for in the 
books of account as separate items of property, plant and equipment.      
           

 Subsequent costs including major renewals and improvements are included in the carrying amount of the asset or are recognised 
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the asset will 
flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised 
at the time of replacement. Normal repair and maintenance and day-to-day servicing are charged to the profit and loss account 
as and when incurred.          

         

 Depreciation is charged to the profit and loss account using reducing balance method except for dies and jigs, office equipment, 
computers and accessories and furniture & fixtures, without considering extra shifts. Depreciation on dies and jigs, office 
equipment, computers and accessories and furniture & fixtures is charged to the profit and loss account using straight line 
method. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use while no depreciation is 
charged for the month in which the asset is disposed-off.        
        

 The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment are reviewed periodically 
and altered if circumstances or expectations have changed significantly. Any change or adjustment in depreciation method, 
useful lives and residual values is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate under IAS 8, ‘Accounting policies, changes 
in accounting estimates and errors’ and is applied prospectively in the financial statements by adjusting the depreciation charge 
for the period in which the amendment or change has been made and for future periods.    
        

 Disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised when significant risk and rewards, incidental to the ownership 
of that asset, have been transferred to the buyer. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the carrying 
amount of that asset with the sales proceeds and are recognised within 'other income / other operating expenses' in the profit 
and loss account.          

          
 Leased assets          
           
 Lease that substantially transfers all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the Company is classified 

as finance lease. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and 
present value of minimum lease payments. Subsequent to the initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with 
the accounting policy applicable for owned assets.        
       

5.2 Intangible assets          
           
 These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any and represent cost of software licenses, 

SAP implementation & support cost and license fee of certain products / components that are being manufactured by the 
Company under technology transfer arrangements.         
     

 Costs associated with maintaining these assets are charged to the profit and loss account as and when incurred, however, 
costs that are directly attributable to the identifiable asset and have probable economic benefits exceeding one year, are 
recognised as intangible asset. Direct costs include purchase cost of the asset, salaries and other service benefits of staff 
deployed towards development of the asset and other related overheads. Expenditure incurred in respect of design, construction 
and testing of an intangible asset are also added to the carrying amount of that asset.      
    

 Expenditure which enhances or extends the performance of the asset beyond its original specifications is recognised as a 
capital improvement and added to the original cost of the asset.       
         

 All intangible assets are estimated to have definite useful lives and are amortised from the month the software / license is 
acquired, made available for use or extended support cost is incurred, using the straight line method over a period of 2 to 5 years. 
     

5.3 Impairment of non-financial assets          
      

 Non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to identify circumstances indicating occurrence of impairment loss or 
reversal of pervious impairment losses, if any. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying 
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and 
value in use. Reversal of impairment loss is restricted to the original cost of the asset.     
    

5.4 Investments in equity instruments of an Associate        
  

 Investment in an Associate is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment 
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the Company's share of profit 
or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.         
          

 The Company’s share of post acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the profit and loss account, and its share of post acquisition 
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income with the corresponding adjustment 
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Company's share of losses in an Associate equals or exceeds its interest 
in the Associate, the Company does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or 
made payments on behalf of the Associate.         
           

 The Company determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the Associate 
is impaired. If this is the case, the Company calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable 
amount of the Associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to share of profit / loss of an Associate in 
the profit and loss account.           

            

5.5 Financial assets          
           
5.5.1 Classification          
           
 The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, 

held to maturity and available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. 
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.     
     

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss        
  

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this 
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in short term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading 
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets.    
       

(b) Loans and receivables          
           
 Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 

market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period, 
in which case, these are classified as non-current assets.        
     

(c) Held to maturity financial assets          

 Held to maturity financial assets are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity with 
a positive intention and ability to hold till maturity.         
     

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets          
      

 Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the 
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the investment matures or management intends to dispose-off 
it within 12 months of the end of the reporting date.        
   

5.5.2 Recognition and measurement          
      

 Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date – the date on which the Company commits 
to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not 
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at 
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss account. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights 
to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially 
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held to maturity investments are subsequently carried at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method.        
     

 Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' category are 
presented in the profit and loss account within 'other income / other operating expenses' in the period in which they arise. 
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the profit and loss account as part of 
'other income' when the Company's right to receive payments is established.      
     

 Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in 'Other 
comprehensive income'.          

          
 When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in 

equity are included in the profit and loss account as 'gains / losses from investment securities'.    
     

 Interest on available-for-sale securities and held to maturity investments is calculated using the effective interest method is 
recognised in the profit and loss account as part of 'other income'. Dividend income from available-for-sale equity instruments 
is recognised in the profit and loss account as part of 'other income' when the Company's right to receive payments is established. 
       

 The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group 
of financial assets is impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured 
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset 
previously recognised in profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss account. Impairment losses 
recognised in profit and loss account on equity instruments are not reversed through the profit and loss account. Impairment 
testing of other receivables is described in note 5.11.        
      

5.6 Financial liabilities          
           
 Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less directly attributable transactions costs, if any, and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using effective interest method.       
       

 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing 
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of original liability and 
recognition of a new liability and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit and loss account. 
     

5.7 Off setting financial instruments          

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be 
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the 
counter party.          

   
5.8 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities        

  
 Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured 

at their fair values. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a 
hedging instrument, if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Company designates certain derivatives as either fair value 
hedge or cash flow hedge.          

    
(a) Fair value hedge           
           
 Fair value hedge represents a hedge of the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or a firm commitment. Changes in the 

fair value of a derivative that is designated and qualify as fair value hedge is recorded in the profit and loss account, together 
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. The carrying value of 
the hedged item is adjusted accordingly.          
  

(b) Cash flow hedge          
           
 Cash flow hedge represents a hedge of a highly probable forecast transaction. The effective portion of changes in the fair value 

of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income. The gain or 
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account. Amounts accumulated in equity 
are reclassified to the profit and loss account in the periods when the hedged item affects profit and loss account.   
   

5.9 Stores, spares and loose tools          

 Stores, spares and loose tools are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventory is based on weighted 
average cost. Items-in-transit are stated at cost accumulated upto the reporting date. The Company reviews the carrying 
amounts of stores, spares and loose tools on an on-going basis and provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change 
in usage pattern and physical form. Impairment is also made for slow moving items.     
   

5.10 Stock-in-trade          
           
 Stock-in-trade are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials and components represent invoice 

values plus other charges incurred thereon. Cost of inventory is based on weighted average cost. Cost in relation to work-in-process 
and finished goods represent direct cost of raw materials, wages and appropriate manufacturing overheads. Goods in transit 
are valued at cost accumulated upto the reporting date.        
        

 The Company reviews the carrying amount of stock-in-trade on an on-going basis and as appropriate, inventory is written down 
to its net realisable value or provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in usage pattern and physical form of 
related inventory.          

         
 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs necessary to be incurred in 

order to make the sale.           
         
5.11 Trade debts and other receivables          

 Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at original invoice amount which is the fair value of consideration to be 
received in future and subsequently measured at cost as reduced by appropriate provision for receivables considered to be 

doubtful. A provision is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts 
due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount of provision is charged to profit and loss. Trade and other 
receivables considered irrecoverable are written-off.         
    

 Exchange gains and losses arising in respect of trade and other receivables in foreign currency are added to the carrying 
amount of the receivables.           

           
5.12 Cash and cash equivalents          
           
 Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, 

cash and cash equivalents represent balances with banks.        
    

5.13 Non current assets held for sale          

 Non current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a 
sale transaction rather than continuing use and sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying 
amount and fair value less cost to sell.           
    

5.14 Share capital          
           
 Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value.       

     
5.15 Retirement and other service benefit obligations        

      
5.15.1 Defined contribution plans          
           
 A defined contribution plan is a post employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contribution into a separate 

entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligation for contribution to a defined contribution 
plan is recognised as an employee service benefit expense in the profit and loss account when it is due.   
   

 The Company operates defined contribution plans for its permanent employees excluding ex-patriates, through either one of 
the following ways:          

           
•  a recognised provident fund; or         
           
•  voluntary pension schemes managed by Atlas Asset Management Limited, a related party, under the Voluntary Pension 

System Rules, 2005, viz, Atlas Pension Fund and Atlas Pension Islamic Fund.     
  

 All the newly appointed employees are offered voluntary pension scheme only. However, those employees who are provident 
fund trust members, have the option to opt for either of two above-mentioned defined contribution plans.   
   

 Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 11% of the basic salary are made to the fund / scheme both by the Company and 
the employees. The fund is a separate legal entity and its assets are being held separately under the control of its Trustees. 
     

5.15.2 Defined benefit plans          
           
 Defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than the defined contribution plan. Defined benefit plans define 

an amount of gratuity that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age and 
years of service. The liability recognised in the statement of financial position is the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of the plan assets.       

 The Company has established separate funded gratuity schemes for its management and non-management staff who completes 
qualifying period of service. Contributions under the schemes are made on the basis of actuarial valuation using Projected Unit 
Credit Method, related details of which are given in note 22.7 to the financial statements.    
 

 The amount arising as a result of remeasurements are recognised in the statement of financial position immediately, with a 
charge or credit to other comprehensive income in the periods in which they occur. Past-service cost are recognised immediately 
in profit and loss account. 

           
5.15.3 Compensated absences          
           
 Employees’ entitlement to annual leaves is recognised when they accrue to the employees. A provision, based on actuarial 

valuations, is made for the estimated liability for annual leaves as a result of services rendered by employees up to the reporting 
date. Current Service cost, actuarial gains or losses and past service cost are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account. 
       

5.16 Trade and other payables          
           
 Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at their amortised cost, which approximate fair value of the consideration to 

be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.     
     

5.17 Obligation under finance lease          

 Total outstanding obligation under the lease arrangements less finance cost attributable to future periods is presented as liability. 
Finance cost under the lease arrangements is distributed over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of 
finance cost on the balance of principal liability outstanding at the end of each period.     
    

5.18 Operating leases / Ijarah          
           
 Operating leases / Ijarah in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor / Muj’ir 

(lessor) are classified as operating leases / Ijarah. Payments made during the year are charged to the profit and loss account 
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease / Ijarah.        
       

5.19 Provisions          
           
 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it 

is probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate. 
   

5.20 Warranty          
           
 The Company recognises the estimated liability to repair or replace damaged parts of products still under warranty at the 

reporting date on the basis of historical claim information. The Company offers 3 years’ warranty on all engine spare parts and 
six months warranty on all other spare parts of its motorcycles. The ratio of warranty claims filed during the year to previous 
year's sales is taken into account for determining the estimated liability.       
     

5.21 Taxation          
           
 The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit and loss account, except to 

the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.      
    

 Current           
           
 The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The 

charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in the previous years 
arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.       
     

 Deferred          
           
 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax bases 

of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.      
      

 Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date 
and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.   
      

 Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised 
only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be

 utilised.
        
5.22 Foreign currency transactions and translation         

 
 Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of 

transactions. The closing balance of non-monetary items is included at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction 
and monetary items are translated using the exchange rate prevailing on the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses 
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit and loss account.     
         

5.23 Revenue recognition          
           
 Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of 

revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is reduced 
for allowances such as taxes, duties, commission, sales returns and discounts. Revenue from different sources is recognised 
on the following basis:          

        
 -   Revenue from sales of motorcycles and spare parts is recognised when goods are dispatched and invoiced to customers. 

       
 -   Interest income on deposits with banks and other financial assets is recognised on accrual basis.   

       
 -   Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.     

        
5.24 Borrowing costs          
           
 Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred except where such costs are directly 

attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset in which case such costs are capitalised as part 
of the cost of that asset.           

      
5.25 Research and development costs          

      
 Research and development costs are recognised in profit and loss account as and when incurred.   

      
5.26 Earnings per share          
           
 The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss 

attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 
the period.          

       
5.27 Segment reporting          
           
 Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes by the Chief Operating Decision 

Maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. On the basis of its 
internal reporting structure, the Company considers itself to be a single reportable segment.    
    

5.28 Dividend and appropriation to reserves         
 

 Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the financial statements in the period in which these are approved.
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1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS
 
 Atlas Honda Limited (the Company) was incorporated as a public limited company on October 16, 1962 under the Companies 

Act, 1913 (now the Companies Act, 2017) and its shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered office 
is located at 1- McLeod Road, Lahore. The Company is principally engaged in progressive manufacturing and marketing of 
motorcycles and spare parts. The manufacturing and assembling facilities of the Company are located at Karachi and 
Sheikhupura, with branches, customer care centres, warranty & training centres and other offices located in Karachi, Hyderabad, 
Multan, Lahore, Faisalabad, Rahim Yar Khan and Islamabad.     

 The Company is a subsidiary of Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited, which holds 52.43% of issued, subscribed and paid-up 
capital of the Company as at March 31, 2018.         

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
          
2.1 Statement of compliance
         
 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 

Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise:     

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as 
notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

        
- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as notified 

under the Companies Act, 2017; and 
        
- Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.      

 Where provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provision of and directives 
issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.       

2.2 Basis of measurement
         
 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain financial instruments, 

which are carried at fair values and staff retirement benefit - gratuity which is carried at present value of defined benefit obligation 
net of fair value of plan assets.          

2.3 Functional and presentation currency
         
 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company and figures 

are rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees.        

2.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements         

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses.

          
 The estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable 

under the circumstances and are continually evaluated. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal 
the related actual results. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period 
of the revision and future periods. Judgements made by management in application of the approved accounting standards 
that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments in the next 
year are discussed in respective policy note. The areas involving significant estimates or judgements are:   
              
(i) Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets [notes 5.1 and 5.2];

 (ii) Provision for slow moving inventories [notes 5.9 and 5.10];       
              
(iii) Estimate of payables and receivables in respect of staff retirement benefit schemes [notes 5.15 and 22.7];  
              
(iv) Estimate of provision for warranty [note 5.20]; and        

 (v) Estimation of current and deferred tax [note 5.21].

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS       

 Capital expenditure 
        
 During the year, the Company incurred major capital expenditure as part of its plan for capacity expansion. This is reflected in 

operating fixed assets note 6. 
        
 New model 
        
 In May 2017, the Company launched its new model in the 150cc category named as CB 150F.

 For detail performance review of the Company, refer Directors' Report. 
     
4. NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTREPRETATIONS
      
4.1 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards effective in current year
    
 New and amended standards and interpretations mandatory for the first time for the financial year beginning April 1, 2017:

(a) IAS 7 Statement of cash flows
      
 The amendment requires disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities 

arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flow and non-cash changes.  
  

(b) IAS 12 Income taxes
      
 The amendment clarifies deferred tax treatment for debt instrument and also addresses questions regarding 

determination of future taxable profit for the recognition test of deferred tax.

 The other new standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the 
financial year beginning on April 1, 2017 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company's 
financial reporting and operations.          

4.2 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not 
been early adopted by the Company          

 The following new standards and amendments to approved accounting standards are not effective for the financial year 
beginning on April 1, 2017 and have not been early adopted by the Company:      

(a) IFRS 9  Financial instruments Effective date: January 1, 2018
           
 IASB has published the complete version of IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, which replaces the guidance in IAS 

39. This final version includes requirements on the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities; 
it also includes an expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment model currently being 
used. The standard not likely to have material impact on the Company’s financial statements.   
         

(b) IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers Effective date: January 1, 2018
           
 The IASB has issued a new standard for the recognition of revenue. This will replace IAS 18 which covers contracts 

for goods and services and IAS 11 which covers construction contracts. The new standard is based on the principle 
that revenue is recognised when control of a good or service transfers to a customer – so the notion of control 
replaces the existing notion of risks and rewards. The standard permits a modified retrospective approach for the 
adoption. Under this approach entities will recognise transitional adjustments in retained earnings on the date of 
initial application (e.g. April 1, 2019), i.e. without restating the comparative period. They will only need to apply the 
new rules to contracts that are not completed as of the date of initial application. The Company has yet to assess 
the full impact of this standard on its financial statements.      

(c) IFRS 16 Leases Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 IFRS 16 will affect primarily the accounting by lessees and will result in the recognition of almost all leases on 

statement of financial position. The standard removes the current distinction between operating and financing leases 
and requires recognition of an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals for 
virtually all lease contracts. An optional exemption exists for short-term and low-value leases. The accounting by 
lessors will not significantly change. Some differences may arise as a result of the new guidance on the definition 

of a lease. Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of 
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. This IFRS is under consideration of the relevant 
Committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. The Company has yet to assess the full impact 
of this standard on its financial statements.        
  

(d) IAS 12 Income taxes Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 This amendment as part of the annual improvement 2015-2017 cycle, clarifies that all income tax consequences 

of dividends (including payments on financial instruments classified as equity) are recognised consistently with the 
transactions that generated the distributable profits – i.e. in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity. 
The amendments are not likely to have material impact on the Company’s financial statements.   
          

(e) IAS 23 Borrowing costs Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 The amendment is part of the annual improvement 2015-2017 cycle. The amendment clarifies that the general 

borrowings pool used to calculate eligible borrowing costs exclude only borrowings that specifically finance qualifying 
assets that are still under development or construction. Borrowings that were intended to specifically finance 
qualifying assets that are now ready for their intended use or sale – or any non – qualifying assets – are included 
in that general pool. This amendment will be applied prospectively to borrowing costs incurred on or after the date 
an entity adopts the amendments. The amendments are not likely to have material impact on the Company’s financial 
statements.           
 

(f) IFRIC 22 Foreign currency transactions Effective date: January 1, 2018
           
 The interpretation clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves 

an advance payment or receipt. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date that the advance 
foreign currency was paid or received and the prepayment or deferred income recognised. The amendments are 
not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial statements.    
    

(g) IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatment Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 The interpretation clarifies the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatment under 

IAS 12. The interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current 
and deferred tax. The amendments are not expected to have material impact on the Company's financial statements. 
           

 There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the approved accounting standards that are not yet 
effective and are also not relevant to the Company and therefore, have not been presented here.    
         

5. SIGINIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES         
         

 The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These polices have 
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.      
        

5.1 Property, plant and equipment          
           

 Owned assets          
           
 The Company has adopted cost model for its property, plant and equipment. Property, plant and equipment except for freehold 

land and capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Freehold land 
is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset, 
including any borrowing cost (note 5.24). The cost of a self constructed asset includes cost of materials, labour and other 
overheads that are directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, costs of dismantling / 
removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is located. Items of property, plant and equipment individually costing 
Rs.25,000 or less are charged to the profit and loss account as and when purchased.

           
 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated upto the reporting date less accumulated impairment loss, if any. Capital 

work-in-progress is recognised as an operating fixed asset when it is made available for its intended use.   
        

 Where major components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for in the 
books of account as separate items of property, plant and equipment.      
           

 Subsequent costs including major renewals and improvements are included in the carrying amount of the asset or are recognised 
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the asset will 
flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised 
at the time of replacement. Normal repair and maintenance and day-to-day servicing are charged to the profit and loss account 
as and when incurred.          

         

 Depreciation is charged to the profit and loss account using reducing balance method except for dies and jigs, office equipment, 
computers and accessories and furniture & fixtures, without considering extra shifts. Depreciation on dies and jigs, office 
equipment, computers and accessories and furniture & fixtures is charged to the profit and loss account using straight line 
method. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use while no depreciation is 
charged for the month in which the asset is disposed-off.        
        

 The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment are reviewed periodically 
and altered if circumstances or expectations have changed significantly. Any change or adjustment in depreciation method, 
useful lives and residual values is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate under IAS 8, ‘Accounting policies, changes 
in accounting estimates and errors’ and is applied prospectively in the financial statements by adjusting the depreciation charge 
for the period in which the amendment or change has been made and for future periods.    
        

 Disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised when significant risk and rewards, incidental to the ownership 
of that asset, have been transferred to the buyer. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the carrying 
amount of that asset with the sales proceeds and are recognised within 'other income / other operating expenses' in the profit 
and loss account.          

          
 Leased assets          
           
 Lease that substantially transfers all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the Company is classified 

as finance lease. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and 
present value of minimum lease payments. Subsequent to the initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with 
the accounting policy applicable for owned assets.        
       

5.2 Intangible assets          
           
 These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any and represent cost of software licenses, 

SAP implementation & support cost and license fee of certain products / components that are being manufactured by the 
Company under technology transfer arrangements.         
     

 Costs associated with maintaining these assets are charged to the profit and loss account as and when incurred, however, 
costs that are directly attributable to the identifiable asset and have probable economic benefits exceeding one year, are 
recognised as intangible asset. Direct costs include purchase cost of the asset, salaries and other service benefits of staff 
deployed towards development of the asset and other related overheads. Expenditure incurred in respect of design, construction 
and testing of an intangible asset are also added to the carrying amount of that asset.      
    

 Expenditure which enhances or extends the performance of the asset beyond its original specifications is recognised as a 
capital improvement and added to the original cost of the asset.       
         

 All intangible assets are estimated to have definite useful lives and are amortised from the month the software / license is 
acquired, made available for use or extended support cost is incurred, using the straight line method over a period of 2 to 5 years. 
     

5.3 Impairment of non-financial assets          
      

 Non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to identify circumstances indicating occurrence of impairment loss or 
reversal of pervious impairment losses, if any. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying 
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and 
value in use. Reversal of impairment loss is restricted to the original cost of the asset.     
    

5.4 Investments in equity instruments of an Associate        
  

 Investment in an Associate is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment 
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the Company's share of profit 
or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.         
          

 The Company’s share of post acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the profit and loss account, and its share of post acquisition 
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income with the corresponding adjustment 
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Company's share of losses in an Associate equals or exceeds its interest 
in the Associate, the Company does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or 
made payments on behalf of the Associate.         
           

 The Company determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the Associate 
is impaired. If this is the case, the Company calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable 
amount of the Associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to share of profit / loss of an Associate in 
the profit and loss account.           

            

5.5 Financial assets          
           
5.5.1 Classification          
           
 The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, 

held to maturity and available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. 
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.     
     

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss        
  

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this 
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in short term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading 
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets.    
       

(b) Loans and receivables          
           
 Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 

market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period, 
in which case, these are classified as non-current assets.        
     

(c) Held to maturity financial assets          

 Held to maturity financial assets are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity with 
a positive intention and ability to hold till maturity.         
     

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets          
      

 Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the 
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the investment matures or management intends to dispose-off 
it within 12 months of the end of the reporting date.        
   

5.5.2 Recognition and measurement          
      

 Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date – the date on which the Company commits 
to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not 
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at 
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss account. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights 
to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially 
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held to maturity investments are subsequently carried at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method.        
     

 Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' category are 
presented in the profit and loss account within 'other income / other operating expenses' in the period in which they arise. 
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the profit and loss account as part of 
'other income' when the Company's right to receive payments is established.      
     

 Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in 'Other 
comprehensive income'.          

          
 When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in 

equity are included in the profit and loss account as 'gains / losses from investment securities'.    
     

 Interest on available-for-sale securities and held to maturity investments is calculated using the effective interest method is 
recognised in the profit and loss account as part of 'other income'. Dividend income from available-for-sale equity instruments 
is recognised in the profit and loss account as part of 'other income' when the Company's right to receive payments is established. 
       

 The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group 
of financial assets is impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured 
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset 
previously recognised in profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss account. Impairment losses 
recognised in profit and loss account on equity instruments are not reversed through the profit and loss account. Impairment 
testing of other receivables is described in note 5.11.        
      

5.6 Financial liabilities          
           
 Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less directly attributable transactions costs, if any, and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using effective interest method.       
       

 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing 
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of original liability and 
recognition of a new liability and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit and loss account. 
     

5.7 Off setting financial instruments          

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be 
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the 
counter party.          

   
5.8 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities        

  
 Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured 

at their fair values. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a 
hedging instrument, if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Company designates certain derivatives as either fair value 
hedge or cash flow hedge.          

    
(a) Fair value hedge           
           
 Fair value hedge represents a hedge of the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or a firm commitment. Changes in the 

fair value of a derivative that is designated and qualify as fair value hedge is recorded in the profit and loss account, together 
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. The carrying value of 
the hedged item is adjusted accordingly.          
  

(b) Cash flow hedge          
           
 Cash flow hedge represents a hedge of a highly probable forecast transaction. The effective portion of changes in the fair value 

of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income. The gain or 
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account. Amounts accumulated in equity 
are reclassified to the profit and loss account in the periods when the hedged item affects profit and loss account.   
   

5.9 Stores, spares and loose tools          

 Stores, spares and loose tools are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventory is based on weighted 
average cost. Items-in-transit are stated at cost accumulated upto the reporting date. The Company reviews the carrying 
amounts of stores, spares and loose tools on an on-going basis and provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change 
in usage pattern and physical form. Impairment is also made for slow moving items.     
   

5.10 Stock-in-trade          
           
 Stock-in-trade are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials and components represent invoice 

values plus other charges incurred thereon. Cost of inventory is based on weighted average cost. Cost in relation to work-in-process 
and finished goods represent direct cost of raw materials, wages and appropriate manufacturing overheads. Goods in transit 
are valued at cost accumulated upto the reporting date.        
        

 The Company reviews the carrying amount of stock-in-trade on an on-going basis and as appropriate, inventory is written down 
to its net realisable value or provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in usage pattern and physical form of 
related inventory.          

         
 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs necessary to be incurred in 

order to make the sale.           
         
5.11 Trade debts and other receivables          

 Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at original invoice amount which is the fair value of consideration to be 
received in future and subsequently measured at cost as reduced by appropriate provision for receivables considered to be 

doubtful. A provision is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts 
due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount of provision is charged to profit and loss. Trade and other 
receivables considered irrecoverable are written-off.         
    

 Exchange gains and losses arising in respect of trade and other receivables in foreign currency are added to the carrying 
amount of the receivables.           

           
5.12 Cash and cash equivalents          
           
 Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, 

cash and cash equivalents represent balances with banks.        
    

5.13 Non current assets held for sale          

 Non current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a 
sale transaction rather than continuing use and sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying 
amount and fair value less cost to sell.           
    

5.14 Share capital          
           
 Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value.       

     
5.15 Retirement and other service benefit obligations        

      
5.15.1 Defined contribution plans          
           
 A defined contribution plan is a post employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contribution into a separate 

entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligation for contribution to a defined contribution 
plan is recognised as an employee service benefit expense in the profit and loss account when it is due.   
   

 The Company operates defined contribution plans for its permanent employees excluding ex-patriates, through either one of 
the following ways:          

           
•  a recognised provident fund; or         
           
•  voluntary pension schemes managed by Atlas Asset Management Limited, a related party, under the Voluntary Pension 

System Rules, 2005, viz, Atlas Pension Fund and Atlas Pension Islamic Fund.     
  

 All the newly appointed employees are offered voluntary pension scheme only. However, those employees who are provident 
fund trust members, have the option to opt for either of two above-mentioned defined contribution plans.   
   

 Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 11% of the basic salary are made to the fund / scheme both by the Company and 
the employees. The fund is a separate legal entity and its assets are being held separately under the control of its Trustees. 
     

5.15.2 Defined benefit plans          
           
 Defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than the defined contribution plan. Defined benefit plans define 

an amount of gratuity that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age and 
years of service. The liability recognised in the statement of financial position is the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of the plan assets.       

 The Company has established separate funded gratuity schemes for its management and non-management staff who completes 
qualifying period of service. Contributions under the schemes are made on the basis of actuarial valuation using Projected Unit 
Credit Method, related details of which are given in note 22.7 to the financial statements.    
 

 The amount arising as a result of remeasurements are recognised in the statement of financial position immediately, with a 
charge or credit to other comprehensive income in the periods in which they occur. Past-service cost are recognised immediately 
in profit and loss account. 

           
5.15.3 Compensated absences          
           
 Employees’ entitlement to annual leaves is recognised when they accrue to the employees. A provision, based on actuarial 

valuations, is made for the estimated liability for annual leaves as a result of services rendered by employees up to the reporting 
date. Current Service cost, actuarial gains or losses and past service cost are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account. 
       

5.16 Trade and other payables          
           
 Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at their amortised cost, which approximate fair value of the consideration to 

be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.     
     

5.17 Obligation under finance lease          

 Total outstanding obligation under the lease arrangements less finance cost attributable to future periods is presented as liability. 
Finance cost under the lease arrangements is distributed over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of 
finance cost on the balance of principal liability outstanding at the end of each period.     
    

5.18 Operating leases / Ijarah          
           
 Operating leases / Ijarah in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor / Muj’ir 

(lessor) are classified as operating leases / Ijarah. Payments made during the year are charged to the profit and loss account 
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease / Ijarah.        
       

5.19 Provisions          
           
 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it 

is probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate. 
   

5.20 Warranty          
           
 The Company recognises the estimated liability to repair or replace damaged parts of products still under warranty at the 

reporting date on the basis of historical claim information. The Company offers 3 years’ warranty on all engine spare parts and 
six months warranty on all other spare parts of its motorcycles. The ratio of warranty claims filed during the year to previous 
year's sales is taken into account for determining the estimated liability.       
     

5.21 Taxation          
           
 The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit and loss account, except to 

the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.      
    

 Current           
           
 The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The 

charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in the previous years 
arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.       
     

 Deferred          
           
 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax bases 

of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.      
      

 Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date 
and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.   
      

 Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised 
only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be

 utilised.
        
5.22 Foreign currency transactions and translation         

 
 Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of 

transactions. The closing balance of non-monetary items is included at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction 
and monetary items are translated using the exchange rate prevailing on the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses 
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit and loss account.     
         

5.23 Revenue recognition          
           
 Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of 

revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is reduced 
for allowances such as taxes, duties, commission, sales returns and discounts. Revenue from different sources is recognised 
on the following basis:          

        
 -   Revenue from sales of motorcycles and spare parts is recognised when goods are dispatched and invoiced to customers. 

       
 -   Interest income on deposits with banks and other financial assets is recognised on accrual basis.   

       
 -   Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.     

        
5.24 Borrowing costs          
           
 Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred except where such costs are directly 

attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset in which case such costs are capitalised as part 
of the cost of that asset.           

      
5.25 Research and development costs          

      
 Research and development costs are recognised in profit and loss account as and when incurred.   

      
5.26 Earnings per share          
           
 The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss 

attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 
the period.          

       
5.27 Segment reporting          
           
 Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes by the Chief Operating Decision 

Maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. On the basis of its 
internal reporting structure, the Company considers itself to be a single reportable segment.    
    

5.28 Dividend and appropriation to reserves         
 

 Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the financial statements in the period in which these are approved.
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1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS
 
 Atlas Honda Limited (the Company) was incorporated as a public limited company on October 16, 1962 under the Companies 

Act, 1913 (now the Companies Act, 2017) and its shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered office 
is located at 1- McLeod Road, Lahore. The Company is principally engaged in progressive manufacturing and marketing of 
motorcycles and spare parts. The manufacturing and assembling facilities of the Company are located at Karachi and 
Sheikhupura, with branches, customer care centres, warranty & training centres and other offices located in Karachi, Hyderabad, 
Multan, Lahore, Faisalabad, Rahim Yar Khan and Islamabad.     

 The Company is a subsidiary of Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited, which holds 52.43% of issued, subscribed and paid-up 
capital of the Company as at March 31, 2018.         

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
          
2.1 Statement of compliance
         
 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 

Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise:     

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as 
notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

        
- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as notified 

under the Companies Act, 2017; and 
        
- Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.      

 Where provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provision of and directives 
issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.       

2.2 Basis of measurement
         
 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain financial instruments, 

which are carried at fair values and staff retirement benefit - gratuity which is carried at present value of defined benefit obligation 
net of fair value of plan assets.          

2.3 Functional and presentation currency
         
 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company and figures 

are rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees.        

2.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements         

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses.

          
 The estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable 

under the circumstances and are continually evaluated. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal 
the related actual results. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period 
of the revision and future periods. Judgements made by management in application of the approved accounting standards 
that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments in the next 
year are discussed in respective policy note. The areas involving significant estimates or judgements are:   
              
(i) Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets [notes 5.1 and 5.2];

 (ii) Provision for slow moving inventories [notes 5.9 and 5.10];       
              
(iii) Estimate of payables and receivables in respect of staff retirement benefit schemes [notes 5.15 and 22.7];  
              
(iv) Estimate of provision for warranty [note 5.20]; and        

 (v) Estimation of current and deferred tax [note 5.21].

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS       

 Capital expenditure 
        
 During the year, the Company incurred major capital expenditure as part of its plan for capacity expansion. This is reflected in 

operating fixed assets note 6. 
        
 New model 
        
 In May 2017, the Company launched its new model in the 150cc category named as CB 150F.

 For detail performance review of the Company, refer Directors' Report. 
     
4. NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTREPRETATIONS
      
4.1 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards effective in current year
    
 New and amended standards and interpretations mandatory for the first time for the financial year beginning April 1, 2017:

(a) IAS 7 Statement of cash flows
      
 The amendment requires disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities 

arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flow and non-cash changes.  
  

(b) IAS 12 Income taxes
      
 The amendment clarifies deferred tax treatment for debt instrument and also addresses questions regarding 

determination of future taxable profit for the recognition test of deferred tax.

 The other new standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the 
financial year beginning on April 1, 2017 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company's 
financial reporting and operations.          

4.2 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not 
been early adopted by the Company          

 The following new standards and amendments to approved accounting standards are not effective for the financial year 
beginning on April 1, 2017 and have not been early adopted by the Company:      

(a) IFRS 9  Financial instruments Effective date: January 1, 2018
           
 IASB has published the complete version of IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, which replaces the guidance in IAS 

39. This final version includes requirements on the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities; 
it also includes an expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment model currently being 
used. The standard not likely to have material impact on the Company’s financial statements.   
         

(b) IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers Effective date: January 1, 2018
           
 The IASB has issued a new standard for the recognition of revenue. This will replace IAS 18 which covers contracts 

for goods and services and IAS 11 which covers construction contracts. The new standard is based on the principle 
that revenue is recognised when control of a good or service transfers to a customer – so the notion of control 
replaces the existing notion of risks and rewards. The standard permits a modified retrospective approach for the 
adoption. Under this approach entities will recognise transitional adjustments in retained earnings on the date of 
initial application (e.g. April 1, 2019), i.e. without restating the comparative period. They will only need to apply the 
new rules to contracts that are not completed as of the date of initial application. The Company has yet to assess 
the full impact of this standard on its financial statements.      

(c) IFRS 16 Leases Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 IFRS 16 will affect primarily the accounting by lessees and will result in the recognition of almost all leases on 

statement of financial position. The standard removes the current distinction between operating and financing leases 
and requires recognition of an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals for 
virtually all lease contracts. An optional exemption exists for short-term and low-value leases. The accounting by 
lessors will not significantly change. Some differences may arise as a result of the new guidance on the definition 

of a lease. Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of 
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. This IFRS is under consideration of the relevant 
Committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. The Company has yet to assess the full impact 
of this standard on its financial statements.        
  

(d) IAS 12 Income taxes Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 This amendment as part of the annual improvement 2015-2017 cycle, clarifies that all income tax consequences 

of dividends (including payments on financial instruments classified as equity) are recognised consistently with the 
transactions that generated the distributable profits – i.e. in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity. 
The amendments are not likely to have material impact on the Company’s financial statements.   
          

(e) IAS 23 Borrowing costs Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 The amendment is part of the annual improvement 2015-2017 cycle. The amendment clarifies that the general 

borrowings pool used to calculate eligible borrowing costs exclude only borrowings that specifically finance qualifying 
assets that are still under development or construction. Borrowings that were intended to specifically finance 
qualifying assets that are now ready for their intended use or sale – or any non – qualifying assets – are included 
in that general pool. This amendment will be applied prospectively to borrowing costs incurred on or after the date 
an entity adopts the amendments. The amendments are not likely to have material impact on the Company’s financial 
statements.           
 

(f) IFRIC 22 Foreign currency transactions Effective date: January 1, 2018
           
 The interpretation clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves 

an advance payment or receipt. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date that the advance 
foreign currency was paid or received and the prepayment or deferred income recognised. The amendments are 
not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial statements.    
    

(g) IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatment Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 The interpretation clarifies the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatment under 

IAS 12. The interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current 
and deferred tax. The amendments are not expected to have material impact on the Company's financial statements. 
           

 There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the approved accounting standards that are not yet 
effective and are also not relevant to the Company and therefore, have not been presented here.    
         

5. SIGINIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES         
         

 The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These polices have 
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.      
        

5.1 Property, plant and equipment          
           

 Owned assets          
           
 The Company has adopted cost model for its property, plant and equipment. Property, plant and equipment except for freehold 

land and capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Freehold land 
is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset, 
including any borrowing cost (note 5.24). The cost of a self constructed asset includes cost of materials, labour and other 
overheads that are directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, costs of dismantling / 
removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is located. Items of property, plant and equipment individually costing 
Rs.25,000 or less are charged to the profit and loss account as and when purchased.

           
 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated upto the reporting date less accumulated impairment loss, if any. Capital 

work-in-progress is recognised as an operating fixed asset when it is made available for its intended use.   
        

 Where major components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for in the 
books of account as separate items of property, plant and equipment.      
           

 Subsequent costs including major renewals and improvements are included in the carrying amount of the asset or are recognised 
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the asset will 
flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised 
at the time of replacement. Normal repair and maintenance and day-to-day servicing are charged to the profit and loss account 
as and when incurred.          

         

 Depreciation is charged to the profit and loss account using reducing balance method except for dies and jigs, office equipment, 
computers and accessories and furniture & fixtures, without considering extra shifts. Depreciation on dies and jigs, office 
equipment, computers and accessories and furniture & fixtures is charged to the profit and loss account using straight line 
method. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use while no depreciation is 
charged for the month in which the asset is disposed-off.        
        

 The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment are reviewed periodically 
and altered if circumstances or expectations have changed significantly. Any change or adjustment in depreciation method, 
useful lives and residual values is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate under IAS 8, ‘Accounting policies, changes 
in accounting estimates and errors’ and is applied prospectively in the financial statements by adjusting the depreciation charge 
for the period in which the amendment or change has been made and for future periods.    
        

 Disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised when significant risk and rewards, incidental to the ownership 
of that asset, have been transferred to the buyer. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the carrying 
amount of that asset with the sales proceeds and are recognised within 'other income / other operating expenses' in the profit 
and loss account.          

          
 Leased assets          
           
 Lease that substantially transfers all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the Company is classified 

as finance lease. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and 
present value of minimum lease payments. Subsequent to the initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with 
the accounting policy applicable for owned assets.        
       

5.2 Intangible assets          
           
 These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any and represent cost of software licenses, 

SAP implementation & support cost and license fee of certain products / components that are being manufactured by the 
Company under technology transfer arrangements.         
     

 Costs associated with maintaining these assets are charged to the profit and loss account as and when incurred, however, 
costs that are directly attributable to the identifiable asset and have probable economic benefits exceeding one year, are 
recognised as intangible asset. Direct costs include purchase cost of the asset, salaries and other service benefits of staff 
deployed towards development of the asset and other related overheads. Expenditure incurred in respect of design, construction 
and testing of an intangible asset are also added to the carrying amount of that asset.      
    

 Expenditure which enhances or extends the performance of the asset beyond its original specifications is recognised as a 
capital improvement and added to the original cost of the asset.       
         

 All intangible assets are estimated to have definite useful lives and are amortised from the month the software / license is 
acquired, made available for use or extended support cost is incurred, using the straight line method over a period of 2 to 5 years. 
     

5.3 Impairment of non-financial assets          
      

 Non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to identify circumstances indicating occurrence of impairment loss or 
reversal of pervious impairment losses, if any. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying 
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and 
value in use. Reversal of impairment loss is restricted to the original cost of the asset.     
    

5.4 Investments in equity instruments of an Associate        
  

 Investment in an Associate is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment 
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the Company's share of profit 
or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.         
          

 The Company’s share of post acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the profit and loss account, and its share of post acquisition 
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income with the corresponding adjustment 
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Company's share of losses in an Associate equals or exceeds its interest 
in the Associate, the Company does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or 
made payments on behalf of the Associate.         
           

 The Company determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the Associate 
is impaired. If this is the case, the Company calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable 
amount of the Associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to share of profit / loss of an Associate in 
the profit and loss account.           

            

5.5 Financial assets          
           
5.5.1 Classification          
           
 The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, 

held to maturity and available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. 
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.     
     

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss        
  

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this 
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in short term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading 
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets.    
       

(b) Loans and receivables          
           
 Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 

market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period, 
in which case, these are classified as non-current assets.        
     

(c) Held to maturity financial assets          

 Held to maturity financial assets are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity with 
a positive intention and ability to hold till maturity.         
     

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets          
      

 Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the 
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the investment matures or management intends to dispose-off 
it within 12 months of the end of the reporting date.        
   

5.5.2 Recognition and measurement          
      

 Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date – the date on which the Company commits 
to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not 
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at 
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss account. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights 
to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially 
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held to maturity investments are subsequently carried at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method.        
     

 Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' category are 
presented in the profit and loss account within 'other income / other operating expenses' in the period in which they arise. 
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the profit and loss account as part of 
'other income' when the Company's right to receive payments is established.      
     

 Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in 'Other 
comprehensive income'.          

          
 When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in 

equity are included in the profit and loss account as 'gains / losses from investment securities'.    
     

 Interest on available-for-sale securities and held to maturity investments is calculated using the effective interest method is 
recognised in the profit and loss account as part of 'other income'. Dividend income from available-for-sale equity instruments 
is recognised in the profit and loss account as part of 'other income' when the Company's right to receive payments is established. 
       

 The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group 
of financial assets is impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured 
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset 
previously recognised in profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss account. Impairment losses 
recognised in profit and loss account on equity instruments are not reversed through the profit and loss account. Impairment 
testing of other receivables is described in note 5.11.        
      

5.6 Financial liabilities          
           
 Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less directly attributable transactions costs, if any, and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using effective interest method.       
       

 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing 
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of original liability and 
recognition of a new liability and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit and loss account. 
     

5.7 Off setting financial instruments          

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be 
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the 
counter party.          

   
5.8 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities        

  
 Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured 

at their fair values. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a 
hedging instrument, if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Company designates certain derivatives as either fair value 
hedge or cash flow hedge.          

    
(a) Fair value hedge           
           
 Fair value hedge represents a hedge of the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or a firm commitment. Changes in the 

fair value of a derivative that is designated and qualify as fair value hedge is recorded in the profit and loss account, together 
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. The carrying value of 
the hedged item is adjusted accordingly.          
  

(b) Cash flow hedge          
           
 Cash flow hedge represents a hedge of a highly probable forecast transaction. The effective portion of changes in the fair value 

of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income. The gain or 
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account. Amounts accumulated in equity 
are reclassified to the profit and loss account in the periods when the hedged item affects profit and loss account.   
   

5.9 Stores, spares and loose tools          

 Stores, spares and loose tools are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventory is based on weighted 
average cost. Items-in-transit are stated at cost accumulated upto the reporting date. The Company reviews the carrying 
amounts of stores, spares and loose tools on an on-going basis and provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change 
in usage pattern and physical form. Impairment is also made for slow moving items.     
   

5.10 Stock-in-trade          
           
 Stock-in-trade are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials and components represent invoice 

values plus other charges incurred thereon. Cost of inventory is based on weighted average cost. Cost in relation to work-in-process 
and finished goods represent direct cost of raw materials, wages and appropriate manufacturing overheads. Goods in transit 
are valued at cost accumulated upto the reporting date.        
        

 The Company reviews the carrying amount of stock-in-trade on an on-going basis and as appropriate, inventory is written down 
to its net realisable value or provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in usage pattern and physical form of 
related inventory.          

         
 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs necessary to be incurred in 

order to make the sale.           
         
5.11 Trade debts and other receivables          

 Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at original invoice amount which is the fair value of consideration to be 
received in future and subsequently measured at cost as reduced by appropriate provision for receivables considered to be 

doubtful. A provision is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts 
due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount of provision is charged to profit and loss. Trade and other 
receivables considered irrecoverable are written-off.         
    

 Exchange gains and losses arising in respect of trade and other receivables in foreign currency are added to the carrying 
amount of the receivables.           

           
5.12 Cash and cash equivalents          
           
 Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, 

cash and cash equivalents represent balances with banks.        
    

5.13 Non current assets held for sale          

 Non current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a 
sale transaction rather than continuing use and sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying 
amount and fair value less cost to sell.           
    

5.14 Share capital          
           
 Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value.       

     
5.15 Retirement and other service benefit obligations        

      
5.15.1 Defined contribution plans          
           
 A defined contribution plan is a post employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contribution into a separate 

entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligation for contribution to a defined contribution 
plan is recognised as an employee service benefit expense in the profit and loss account when it is due.   
   

 The Company operates defined contribution plans for its permanent employees excluding ex-patriates, through either one of 
the following ways:          

           
•  a recognised provident fund; or         
           
•  voluntary pension schemes managed by Atlas Asset Management Limited, a related party, under the Voluntary Pension 

System Rules, 2005, viz, Atlas Pension Fund and Atlas Pension Islamic Fund.     
  

 All the newly appointed employees are offered voluntary pension scheme only. However, those employees who are provident 
fund trust members, have the option to opt for either of two above-mentioned defined contribution plans.   
   

 Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 11% of the basic salary are made to the fund / scheme both by the Company and 
the employees. The fund is a separate legal entity and its assets are being held separately under the control of its Trustees. 
     

5.15.2 Defined benefit plans          
           
 Defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than the defined contribution plan. Defined benefit plans define 

an amount of gratuity that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age and 
years of service. The liability recognised in the statement of financial position is the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of the plan assets.       

 The Company has established separate funded gratuity schemes for its management and non-management staff who completes 
qualifying period of service. Contributions under the schemes are made on the basis of actuarial valuation using Projected Unit 
Credit Method, related details of which are given in note 22.7 to the financial statements.    
 

 The amount arising as a result of remeasurements are recognised in the statement of financial position immediately, with a 
charge or credit to other comprehensive income in the periods in which they occur. Past-service cost are recognised immediately 
in profit and loss account. 

           
5.15.3 Compensated absences          
           
 Employees’ entitlement to annual leaves is recognised when they accrue to the employees. A provision, based on actuarial 

valuations, is made for the estimated liability for annual leaves as a result of services rendered by employees up to the reporting 
date. Current Service cost, actuarial gains or losses and past service cost are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account. 
       

5.16 Trade and other payables          
           
 Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at their amortised cost, which approximate fair value of the consideration to 

be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.     
     

5.17 Obligation under finance lease          

 Total outstanding obligation under the lease arrangements less finance cost attributable to future periods is presented as liability. 
Finance cost under the lease arrangements is distributed over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of 
finance cost on the balance of principal liability outstanding at the end of each period.     
    

5.18 Operating leases / Ijarah          
           
 Operating leases / Ijarah in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor / Muj’ir 

(lessor) are classified as operating leases / Ijarah. Payments made during the year are charged to the profit and loss account 
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease / Ijarah.        
       

5.19 Provisions          
           
 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it 

is probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate. 
   

5.20 Warranty          
           
 The Company recognises the estimated liability to repair or replace damaged parts of products still under warranty at the 

reporting date on the basis of historical claim information. The Company offers 3 years’ warranty on all engine spare parts and 
six months warranty on all other spare parts of its motorcycles. The ratio of warranty claims filed during the year to previous 
year's sales is taken into account for determining the estimated liability.       
     

5.21 Taxation          
           
 The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit and loss account, except to 

the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.      
    

 Current           
           
 The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The 

charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in the previous years 
arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.       
     

 Deferred          
           
 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax bases 

of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.      
      

 Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date 
and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.   
      

 Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised 
only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be

 utilised.
        
5.22 Foreign currency transactions and translation         

 
 Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of 

transactions. The closing balance of non-monetary items is included at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction 
and monetary items are translated using the exchange rate prevailing on the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses 
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit and loss account.     
         

5.23 Revenue recognition          
           
 Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of 

revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is reduced 
for allowances such as taxes, duties, commission, sales returns and discounts. Revenue from different sources is recognised 
on the following basis:          

        
 -   Revenue from sales of motorcycles and spare parts is recognised when goods are dispatched and invoiced to customers. 

       
 -   Interest income on deposits with banks and other financial assets is recognised on accrual basis.   

       
 -   Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.     

        
5.24 Borrowing costs          
           
 Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred except where such costs are directly 

attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset in which case such costs are capitalised as part 
of the cost of that asset.           

      
5.25 Research and development costs          

      
 Research and development costs are recognised in profit and loss account as and when incurred.   

      
5.26 Earnings per share          
           
 The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss 

attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 
the period.          

       
5.27 Segment reporting          
           
 Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes by the Chief Operating Decision 

Maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. On the basis of its 
internal reporting structure, the Company considers itself to be a single reportable segment.    
    

5.28 Dividend and appropriation to reserves         
 

 Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the financial statements in the period in which these are approved.
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1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS
 
 Atlas Honda Limited (the Company) was incorporated as a public limited company on October 16, 1962 under the Companies 

Act, 1913 (now the Companies Act, 2017) and its shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered office 
is located at 1- McLeod Road, Lahore. The Company is principally engaged in progressive manufacturing and marketing of 
motorcycles and spare parts. The manufacturing and assembling facilities of the Company are located at Karachi and 
Sheikhupura, with branches, customer care centres, warranty & training centres and other offices located in Karachi, Hyderabad, 
Multan, Lahore, Faisalabad, Rahim Yar Khan and Islamabad.     

 The Company is a subsidiary of Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited, which holds 52.43% of issued, subscribed and paid-up 
capital of the Company as at March 31, 2018.         

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
          
2.1 Statement of compliance
         
 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 

Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise:     

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as 
notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

        
- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as notified 

under the Companies Act, 2017; and 
        
- Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.      

 Where provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provision of and directives 
issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.       

2.2 Basis of measurement
         
 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain financial instruments, 

which are carried at fair values and staff retirement benefit - gratuity which is carried at present value of defined benefit obligation 
net of fair value of plan assets.          

2.3 Functional and presentation currency
         
 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company and figures 

are rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees.        

2.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements         

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses.

          
 The estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable 

under the circumstances and are continually evaluated. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal 
the related actual results. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period 
of the revision and future periods. Judgements made by management in application of the approved accounting standards 
that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments in the next 
year are discussed in respective policy note. The areas involving significant estimates or judgements are:   
              
(i) Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets [notes 5.1 and 5.2];

 (ii) Provision for slow moving inventories [notes 5.9 and 5.10];       
              
(iii) Estimate of payables and receivables in respect of staff retirement benefit schemes [notes 5.15 and 22.7];  
              
(iv) Estimate of provision for warranty [note 5.20]; and        

 (v) Estimation of current and deferred tax [note 5.21].

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS       

 Capital expenditure 
        
 During the year, the Company incurred major capital expenditure as part of its plan for capacity expansion. This is reflected in 

operating fixed assets note 6. 
        
 New model 
        
 In May 2017, the Company launched its new model in the 150cc category named as CB 150F.

 For detail performance review of the Company, refer Directors' Report. 
     
4. NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTREPRETATIONS
      
4.1 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards effective in current year
    
 New and amended standards and interpretations mandatory for the first time for the financial year beginning April 1, 2017:

(a) IAS 7 Statement of cash flows
      
 The amendment requires disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities 

arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flow and non-cash changes.  
  

(b) IAS 12 Income taxes
      
 The amendment clarifies deferred tax treatment for debt instrument and also addresses questions regarding 

determination of future taxable profit for the recognition test of deferred tax.

 The other new standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the 
financial year beginning on April 1, 2017 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company's 
financial reporting and operations.          

4.2 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not 
been early adopted by the Company          

 The following new standards and amendments to approved accounting standards are not effective for the financial year 
beginning on April 1, 2017 and have not been early adopted by the Company:      

(a) IFRS 9  Financial instruments Effective date: January 1, 2018
           
 IASB has published the complete version of IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, which replaces the guidance in IAS 

39. This final version includes requirements on the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities; 
it also includes an expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment model currently being 
used. The standard not likely to have material impact on the Company’s financial statements.   
         

(b) IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers Effective date: January 1, 2018
           
 The IASB has issued a new standard for the recognition of revenue. This will replace IAS 18 which covers contracts 

for goods and services and IAS 11 which covers construction contracts. The new standard is based on the principle 
that revenue is recognised when control of a good or service transfers to a customer – so the notion of control 
replaces the existing notion of risks and rewards. The standard permits a modified retrospective approach for the 
adoption. Under this approach entities will recognise transitional adjustments in retained earnings on the date of 
initial application (e.g. April 1, 2019), i.e. without restating the comparative period. They will only need to apply the 
new rules to contracts that are not completed as of the date of initial application. The Company has yet to assess 
the full impact of this standard on its financial statements.      

(c) IFRS 16 Leases Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 IFRS 16 will affect primarily the accounting by lessees and will result in the recognition of almost all leases on 

statement of financial position. The standard removes the current distinction between operating and financing leases 
and requires recognition of an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals for 
virtually all lease contracts. An optional exemption exists for short-term and low-value leases. The accounting by 
lessors will not significantly change. Some differences may arise as a result of the new guidance on the definition 

of a lease. Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of 
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. This IFRS is under consideration of the relevant 
Committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. The Company has yet to assess the full impact 
of this standard on its financial statements.        
  

(d) IAS 12 Income taxes Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 This amendment as part of the annual improvement 2015-2017 cycle, clarifies that all income tax consequences 

of dividends (including payments on financial instruments classified as equity) are recognised consistently with the 
transactions that generated the distributable profits – i.e. in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity. 
The amendments are not likely to have material impact on the Company’s financial statements.   
          

(e) IAS 23 Borrowing costs Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 The amendment is part of the annual improvement 2015-2017 cycle. The amendment clarifies that the general 

borrowings pool used to calculate eligible borrowing costs exclude only borrowings that specifically finance qualifying 
assets that are still under development or construction. Borrowings that were intended to specifically finance 
qualifying assets that are now ready for their intended use or sale – or any non – qualifying assets – are included 
in that general pool. This amendment will be applied prospectively to borrowing costs incurred on or after the date 
an entity adopts the amendments. The amendments are not likely to have material impact on the Company’s financial 
statements.           
 

(f) IFRIC 22 Foreign currency transactions Effective date: January 1, 2018
           
 The interpretation clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves 

an advance payment or receipt. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date that the advance 
foreign currency was paid or received and the prepayment or deferred income recognised. The amendments are 
not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial statements.    
    

(g) IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatment Effective date: January 1, 2019
           
 The interpretation clarifies the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatment under 

IAS 12. The interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current 
and deferred tax. The amendments are not expected to have material impact on the Company's financial statements. 
           

 There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the approved accounting standards that are not yet 
effective and are also not relevant to the Company and therefore, have not been presented here.    
         

5. SIGINIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES         
         

 The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These polices have 
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.      
        

5.1 Property, plant and equipment          
           

 Owned assets          
           
 The Company has adopted cost model for its property, plant and equipment. Property, plant and equipment except for freehold 

land and capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Freehold land 
is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset, 
including any borrowing cost (note 5.24). The cost of a self constructed asset includes cost of materials, labour and other 
overheads that are directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, costs of dismantling / 
removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is located. Items of property, plant and equipment individually costing 
Rs.25,000 or less are charged to the profit and loss account as and when purchased.

           
 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated upto the reporting date less accumulated impairment loss, if any. Capital 

work-in-progress is recognised as an operating fixed asset when it is made available for its intended use.   
        

 Where major components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for in the 
books of account as separate items of property, plant and equipment.      
           

 Subsequent costs including major renewals and improvements are included in the carrying amount of the asset or are recognised 
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the asset will 
flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised 
at the time of replacement. Normal repair and maintenance and day-to-day servicing are charged to the profit and loss account 
as and when incurred.          

         

 Depreciation is charged to the profit and loss account using reducing balance method except for dies and jigs, office equipment, 
computers and accessories and furniture & fixtures, without considering extra shifts. Depreciation on dies and jigs, office 
equipment, computers and accessories and furniture & fixtures is charged to the profit and loss account using straight line 
method. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use while no depreciation is 
charged for the month in which the asset is disposed-off.        
        

 The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment are reviewed periodically 
and altered if circumstances or expectations have changed significantly. Any change or adjustment in depreciation method, 
useful lives and residual values is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate under IAS 8, ‘Accounting policies, changes 
in accounting estimates and errors’ and is applied prospectively in the financial statements by adjusting the depreciation charge 
for the period in which the amendment or change has been made and for future periods.    
        

 Disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised when significant risk and rewards, incidental to the ownership 
of that asset, have been transferred to the buyer. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the carrying 
amount of that asset with the sales proceeds and are recognised within 'other income / other operating expenses' in the profit 
and loss account.          

          
 Leased assets          
           
 Lease that substantially transfers all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the Company is classified 

as finance lease. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and 
present value of minimum lease payments. Subsequent to the initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with 
the accounting policy applicable for owned assets.        
       

5.2 Intangible assets          
           
 These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any and represent cost of software licenses, 

SAP implementation & support cost and license fee of certain products / components that are being manufactured by the 
Company under technology transfer arrangements.         
     

 Costs associated with maintaining these assets are charged to the profit and loss account as and when incurred, however, 
costs that are directly attributable to the identifiable asset and have probable economic benefits exceeding one year, are 
recognised as intangible asset. Direct costs include purchase cost of the asset, salaries and other service benefits of staff 
deployed towards development of the asset and other related overheads. Expenditure incurred in respect of design, construction 
and testing of an intangible asset are also added to the carrying amount of that asset.      
    

 Expenditure which enhances or extends the performance of the asset beyond its original specifications is recognised as a 
capital improvement and added to the original cost of the asset.       
         

 All intangible assets are estimated to have definite useful lives and are amortised from the month the software / license is 
acquired, made available for use or extended support cost is incurred, using the straight line method over a period of 2 to 5 years. 
     

5.3 Impairment of non-financial assets          
      

 Non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to identify circumstances indicating occurrence of impairment loss or 
reversal of pervious impairment losses, if any. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying 
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and 
value in use. Reversal of impairment loss is restricted to the original cost of the asset.     
    

5.4 Investments in equity instruments of an Associate        
  

 Investment in an Associate is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment 
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the Company's share of profit 
or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.         
          

 The Company’s share of post acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the profit and loss account, and its share of post acquisition 
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income with the corresponding adjustment 
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Company's share of losses in an Associate equals or exceeds its interest 
in the Associate, the Company does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or 
made payments on behalf of the Associate.         
           

 The Company determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the Associate 
is impaired. If this is the case, the Company calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable 
amount of the Associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to share of profit / loss of an Associate in 
the profit and loss account.           

            

5.5 Financial assets          
           
5.5.1 Classification          
           
 The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, 

held to maturity and available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. 
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.     
     

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss        
  

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this 
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in short term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading 
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets.    
       

(b) Loans and receivables          
           
 Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 

market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period, 
in which case, these are classified as non-current assets.        
     

(c) Held to maturity financial assets          

 Held to maturity financial assets are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity with 
a positive intention and ability to hold till maturity.         
     

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets          
      

 Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the 
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the investment matures or management intends to dispose-off 
it within 12 months of the end of the reporting date.        
   

5.5.2 Recognition and measurement          
      

 Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date – the date on which the Company commits 
to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not 
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at 
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss account. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights 
to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially 
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held to maturity investments are subsequently carried at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method.        
     

 Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' category are 
presented in the profit and loss account within 'other income / other operating expenses' in the period in which they arise. 
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the profit and loss account as part of 
'other income' when the Company's right to receive payments is established.      
     

 Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in 'Other 
comprehensive income'.          

          
 When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in 

equity are included in the profit and loss account as 'gains / losses from investment securities'.    
     

 Interest on available-for-sale securities and held to maturity investments is calculated using the effective interest method is 
recognised in the profit and loss account as part of 'other income'. Dividend income from available-for-sale equity instruments 
is recognised in the profit and loss account as part of 'other income' when the Company's right to receive payments is established. 
       

 The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group 
of financial assets is impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured 
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset 
previously recognised in profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss account. Impairment losses 
recognised in profit and loss account on equity instruments are not reversed through the profit and loss account. Impairment 
testing of other receivables is described in note 5.11.        
      

5.6 Financial liabilities          
           
 Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less directly attributable transactions costs, if any, and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using effective interest method.       
       

 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing 
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of original liability and 
recognition of a new liability and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit and loss account. 
     

5.7 Off setting financial instruments          

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be 
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the 
counter party.          

   
5.8 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities        

  
 Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured 

at their fair values. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a 
hedging instrument, if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Company designates certain derivatives as either fair value 
hedge or cash flow hedge.          

    
(a) Fair value hedge           
           
 Fair value hedge represents a hedge of the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or a firm commitment. Changes in the 

fair value of a derivative that is designated and qualify as fair value hedge is recorded in the profit and loss account, together 
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. The carrying value of 
the hedged item is adjusted accordingly.          
  

(b) Cash flow hedge          
           
 Cash flow hedge represents a hedge of a highly probable forecast transaction. The effective portion of changes in the fair value 

of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income. The gain or 
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account. Amounts accumulated in equity 
are reclassified to the profit and loss account in the periods when the hedged item affects profit and loss account.   
   

5.9 Stores, spares and loose tools          

 Stores, spares and loose tools are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventory is based on weighted 
average cost. Items-in-transit are stated at cost accumulated upto the reporting date. The Company reviews the carrying 
amounts of stores, spares and loose tools on an on-going basis and provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change 
in usage pattern and physical form. Impairment is also made for slow moving items.     
   

5.10 Stock-in-trade          
           
 Stock-in-trade are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials and components represent invoice 

values plus other charges incurred thereon. Cost of inventory is based on weighted average cost. Cost in relation to work-in-process 
and finished goods represent direct cost of raw materials, wages and appropriate manufacturing overheads. Goods in transit 
are valued at cost accumulated upto the reporting date.        
        

 The Company reviews the carrying amount of stock-in-trade on an on-going basis and as appropriate, inventory is written down 
to its net realisable value or provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in usage pattern and physical form of 
related inventory.          

         
 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs necessary to be incurred in 

order to make the sale.           
         
5.11 Trade debts and other receivables          

 Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at original invoice amount which is the fair value of consideration to be 
received in future and subsequently measured at cost as reduced by appropriate provision for receivables considered to be 

doubtful. A provision is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts 
due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount of provision is charged to profit and loss. Trade and other 
receivables considered irrecoverable are written-off.         
    

 Exchange gains and losses arising in respect of trade and other receivables in foreign currency are added to the carrying 
amount of the receivables.           

           
5.12 Cash and cash equivalents          
           
 Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, 

cash and cash equivalents represent balances with banks.        
    

5.13 Non current assets held for sale          

 Non current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a 
sale transaction rather than continuing use and sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying 
amount and fair value less cost to sell.           
    

5.14 Share capital          
           
 Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value.       

     
5.15 Retirement and other service benefit obligations        

      
5.15.1 Defined contribution plans          
           
 A defined contribution plan is a post employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contribution into a separate 

entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligation for contribution to a defined contribution 
plan is recognised as an employee service benefit expense in the profit and loss account when it is due.   
   

 The Company operates defined contribution plans for its permanent employees excluding ex-patriates, through either one of 
the following ways:          

           
•  a recognised provident fund; or         
           
•  voluntary pension schemes managed by Atlas Asset Management Limited, a related party, under the Voluntary Pension 

System Rules, 2005, viz, Atlas Pension Fund and Atlas Pension Islamic Fund.     
  

 All the newly appointed employees are offered voluntary pension scheme only. However, those employees who are provident 
fund trust members, have the option to opt for either of two above-mentioned defined contribution plans.   
   

 Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 11% of the basic salary are made to the fund / scheme both by the Company and 
the employees. The fund is a separate legal entity and its assets are being held separately under the control of its Trustees. 
     

5.15.2 Defined benefit plans          
           
 Defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than the defined contribution plan. Defined benefit plans define 

an amount of gratuity that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age and 
years of service. The liability recognised in the statement of financial position is the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of the plan assets.       

 The Company has established separate funded gratuity schemes for its management and non-management staff who completes 
qualifying period of service. Contributions under the schemes are made on the basis of actuarial valuation using Projected Unit 
Credit Method, related details of which are given in note 22.7 to the financial statements.    
 

 The amount arising as a result of remeasurements are recognised in the statement of financial position immediately, with a 
charge or credit to other comprehensive income in the periods in which they occur. Past-service cost are recognised immediately 
in profit and loss account. 

           
5.15.3 Compensated absences          
           
 Employees’ entitlement to annual leaves is recognised when they accrue to the employees. A provision, based on actuarial 

valuations, is made for the estimated liability for annual leaves as a result of services rendered by employees up to the reporting 
date. Current Service cost, actuarial gains or losses and past service cost are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account. 
       

5.16 Trade and other payables          
           
 Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at their amortised cost, which approximate fair value of the consideration to 

be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.     
     

5.17 Obligation under finance lease          

 Total outstanding obligation under the lease arrangements less finance cost attributable to future periods is presented as liability. 
Finance cost under the lease arrangements is distributed over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of 
finance cost on the balance of principal liability outstanding at the end of each period.     
    

5.18 Operating leases / Ijarah          
           
 Operating leases / Ijarah in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor / Muj’ir 

(lessor) are classified as operating leases / Ijarah. Payments made during the year are charged to the profit and loss account 
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease / Ijarah.        
       

5.19 Provisions          
           
 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it 

is probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate. 
   

5.20 Warranty          
           
 The Company recognises the estimated liability to repair or replace damaged parts of products still under warranty at the 

reporting date on the basis of historical claim information. The Company offers 3 years’ warranty on all engine spare parts and 
six months warranty on all other spare parts of its motorcycles. The ratio of warranty claims filed during the year to previous 
year's sales is taken into account for determining the estimated liability.       
     

5.21 Taxation          
           
 The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit and loss account, except to 

the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.      
    

 Current           
           
 The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The 

charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in the previous years 
arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.       
     

 Deferred          
           
 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax bases 

of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.      
      

 Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date 
and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.   
      

 Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised 
only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be

 utilised.
        
5.22 Foreign currency transactions and translation         

 
 Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of 

transactions. The closing balance of non-monetary items is included at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction 
and monetary items are translated using the exchange rate prevailing on the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses 
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit and loss account.     
         

5.23 Revenue recognition          
           
 Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of 

revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is reduced 
for allowances such as taxes, duties, commission, sales returns and discounts. Revenue from different sources is recognised 
on the following basis:          

        
 -   Revenue from sales of motorcycles and spare parts is recognised when goods are dispatched and invoiced to customers. 

       
 -   Interest income on deposits with banks and other financial assets is recognised on accrual basis.   

       
 -   Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.     

        
5.24 Borrowing costs          
           
 Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred except where such costs are directly 

attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset in which case such costs are capitalised as part 
of the cost of that asset.           

      
5.25 Research and development costs          

      
 Research and development costs are recognised in profit and loss account as and when incurred.   

      
5.26 Earnings per share          
           
 The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss 

attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 
the period.          

       
5.27 Segment reporting          
           
 Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes by the Chief Operating Decision 

Maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. On the basis of its 
internal reporting structure, the Company considers itself to be a single reportable segment.    
    

5.28 Dividend and appropriation to reserves         
 

 Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the financial statements in the period in which these are approved.

  Note 2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----
6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
           
 Operating fixed assets       6.1  7,858,301    6,898,586 
 Capital work-in-progress       6.5  117,800    63,333 
          
          7,976,101    6,961,919 
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As at April 1, 2016               
 
Cost 225,082   34,132   700,507   256,789   6,739,094   1,326,834   285,580   32,606   173,825   68,617   410,072   292,989   10,546,127 
              
Accumulated depreciation -        (11,040)  (292,976)  (105,527)  (3,189,496)  (960,301)  (144,667)  (24,175)  (138,863)  (41,583)  (204,830)  (126,672)  (5,240,130)
              
Net book amount 225,082   23,092   407,531   151,262   3,549,598   366,533   140,913   8,431   34,962   27,034   205,242   166,317   5,305,997 
              
Year ended March 31, 2017              
              
Opening net book amount 225,082   23,092   407,531   151,262   3,549,598   366,533   140,913   8,431   34,962   27,034   205,242   166,317   5,305,997 
              
Additions -        -       622,934   -       1,306,258   208,662   112,642   8,466   15,501   30,641   47,641   132,597   2,485,342 
              
Disposals              
              
   Cost -        -       (132)  (1,256)  (48,430)  (320,798)  (3,200)  (370)  (476)  (425)  (3,051)  (81,227)  (459,365)
              
   Accumulated depreciation -        -       123   1,199   34,355   294,247   2,386   351   476   331   2,200   28,223   363,891 
              
 -        -       (9)  (57)  (14,075)  (26,551)  (814)  (19)  -       (94)  (851)  (53,004)  (95,474)
              
Depreciation charge -        (513)  (69,835)  (15,125)  (422,113)  (173,594)  (19,063)  (3,855)  (15,902)  (13,546)  (21,742)  (41,991)  (797,279)
              
Closing net book amount 225,082   22,579   960,621   136,080   4,419,668   375,050   233,678   13,023   34,561   44,035   230,290   203,919   6,898,586 
              
At March 31, 2017              
              
Cost 225,082   34,132   1,323,309   255,533   7,996,922   1,214,698   395,022   40,702   188,850   98,833   454,662   344,359   12,572,104 
              
Accumulated depreciation -        (11,553)  (362,688)  (119,453)  (3,577,254)  (839,648)  (161,344)  (27,679)  (154,289)  (54,798)  (224,372)  (140,440)  (5,673,518)
              
Net book amount 225,082   22,579   960,621   136,080   4,419,668   375,050   233,678   13,023   34,561   44,035   230,290   203,919   6,898,586 
              
Year ended March 31, 2018              
              
Opening net book amount 225,082   22,579   960,621   136,080   4,419,668   375,050   233,678   13,023   34,561   44,035   230,290   203,919   6,898,586 
              
Additions -        -       227,265   52,211   1,482,901   219,576   104,881   20,891   26,338   12,650   33,790   133,916   2,314,419 
              
Disposals (note 6.4)              
              
   Cost -        -       (7,583)  -       (912,757)  (40,691)  (1,208)  (2,323)  (5,568)  (1,716)  (2,321)  (82,701)  (1,056,868)
                
   Accumulated depreciation -        -       4,015   -       521,057   32,249   913   2,323   5,407   1,716   1,839   31,702   601,221 
              
 -        -       (3,568)  -       (391,700)  (8,442)  (295)  -       (161)  -       (482)  (50,999)  (455,647)
              
Depreciation charge (note 6.3) -        (513)  (98,546)  (16,102)  (463,706)  (182,689)  (26,381)  (6,078)  (18,090)  (14,540)  (24,242)  (48,170)  (899,057)
              
Closing net book amount 225,082   22,066   1,085,772   172,189   5,047,163   403,495   311,883   27,836   42,648   42,145   239,356   238,666   7,858,301 
              
At March 31, 2018              
              
Cost 225,082   34,132   1,542,991   307,744   8,567,066   1,393,583   498,695   59,270   209,620   109,767   486,131   395,574   13,829,655 
              
Accumulated depreciation -        (12,066)  (457,219)  (135,555)  (3,519,903)  (990,088)  (186,812)  (31,434)  (166,972)  (67,622)  (246,775)  (156,908)  (5,971,354)
              
Net book amount 225,082   22,066   1,085,772   172,189   5,047,163   403,495   311,883   27,836   42,648   42,145   239,356   238,666   7,858,301 
              
Annual rate of depreciation (%)  1.79   10   10   10   25   10   20   25   20   10   20  

6.1 Operating fixed assets

  
   Buildings Buildings     Computers   Electric   
   on on Plant Dies   and Furniture  and   
 Freehold Leasehold freehold leasehold and and Factory Office accesso- and  gas   
 land land land land machinery jigs equipment equipment ries fixtures  fittings  Vehicles Total
  ---------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in ’000) ----------------------------------------------------------------------

6.2 Free hold lands of the Company are located at Sheikhupura with an area of 231,555 square yards and leasehold lands of the 
Company are located at Karachi with an area of 27,543 square yards.      
    

6.3 Depreciation expense of Rs.829,370 thousand (2017: Rs.737,813 thousand) has been charged in 'Cost of sales' and Rs.69,687 
thousand (2017: Rs.59,466 thousand) in 'Administrative expenses'.
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6.4 Details of operating fixed assets disposed-off during the year:

Items with individual net book 
   amount exceeding Rs.500,000 each

Buildings on freehold land 
      
  3,692   (1,620)  2,072   269   (1,803) Scrap Haji Muhammad Nawaz & Co., Near Grid  
       Station, Tehsil Burewala, District Vehari.
  2,142   (1,194)  948   123   (825) Scrap Haji Muhammad Nawaz & Co., Near Grid  
       Station, Tehsil Burewala, District Vehari.
  
 5,834   (2,814)  3,020   392   (2,628)  
       
Plant and machinery       
       
  43,029   (18,660)  24,369   25,329   960  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  31,819   (22,961)  8,858   9,208   350  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  28,071   (12,029)  16,042   16,499   457  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  27,778   (19,565)  8,213   8,536   323  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  24,565   (3,182)  21,383   22,547   1,164  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  24,496   (7,369)  17,127   17,802   675  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  23,542   (6,645)  16,897   17,563   666  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  23,490   (10,066)  13,424   13,807   383  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  23,030   (10,556)  12,474   12,830   356  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  22,422   (6,884)  15,538   16,151   613  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  22,205   (9,515)  12,690   13,052   362  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  19,108   (3,996)  15,112   15,468   356  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  18,181   (14,298)  3,883   4,094   211  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  17,524   (1,709)  15,815   16,188   373  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  17,400   (6,838)  10,562   11,136   574  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  17,096   (8,690)  8,406   8,863   457  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  17,069   (11,926)  5,143   342   (4,801) Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  17,058   (12,266)  4,792   4,929   137  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  16,685   (2,023)  14,662   15,080   418  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  16,540   (14,180)  2,360   2,427   67  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  16,010   (4,519)  11,491   11,944   453  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  15,331   (7,027)  8,304   8,541   237  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
       
       
Balance carried forward  482,449   (214,904)  267,545   272,336   4,791   

-------------------- (Rupees in ’000) --------------------

CostDescription Accumulated
depreciation

Net book
amount

Sale
proceeds

Gain /
(loss)

Method of
disposal Sold to
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-------------------- (Rupees in ’000) --------------------

CostDescription Accumulated
depreciation

Net book
amount

Sale
proceeds

Gain /
(loss)

Method of
disposal Sold to

Plant and machinery
      
Balance brought forward  482,449   (214,904)  267,545   272,336   4,791 
  
  15,167   (10,945)  4,222   4,389   167  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  14,845   (8,037)  6,808   6,968   160  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  14,619   (10,549)  4,070   4,230   160  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  14,491   (10,420)  4,071   4,187   116  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  14,314   (10,855)  3,459   3,558   99  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  13,446   (7,166)  6,280   6,458   178  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  12,622   (9,877)  2,745   2,823   78  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  12,064   (10,569)  1,495   214   (1,281) Negotiation B-A Electric Store, Aziz Park, Misri Shah,  
       Lahore.
  12,022   (6,509)  5,513   5,643   130  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi
  11,744   (10,069)  1,675   1,724   49  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  10,646   (8,372)  2,274   2,397   123  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  10,577   (8,276)  2,301   2,366   65  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  9,999   (7,824)  2,175   2,237   62  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  9,775   (4,189)  5,586   5,745   159  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  9,775   (4,189)  5,586   5,745   159  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  9,398   (4,353)  5,045   5,243   198  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  9,200   (7,199)  2,001   2,058   57  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  8,771   (6,329)  2,442   2,538   96  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  8,716   (3,780)  4,936   5,131   195  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  8,149   (5,860)  2,289   2,355   66  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  8,149   (5,860)  2,289   2,355   66  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  8,128   (4,433)  3,695   3,896   201  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  8,075   (5,827)  2,248   2,337   89  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  7,586   (2,770)  4,816   4,929   113  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  7,218   (5,591)  1,627   184   (1,443) Negotiation Zahid Machinery Store, Mughal Market,  
       Ganda Nala, Misri Shah, Lahore.
  6,916   (5,358)  1,558   176   (1,382) Negotiation Zahid Machinery Store, Mughal Market,  
       Misri Shah, Lahore.
  6,902   (5,428)  1,474   1,554   80  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  6,729   (5,292)  1,437   1,515   78  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  6,644   (5,225)  1,419   1,496   77  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  6,496   (5,718)  778   165   (613) Negotiation Zahid Machinery Store, Mughal Market,  
       Misri Shah, Lahore.
  6,496   (5,718)  778   165   (613) Negotiation Zahid Machinery Store, Mughal Market,  
       Misri Shah, Lahore.
  6,494   (5,716)  778   165   (613) Negotiation Zahid Machinery Store, Mughal Market,  
       Misri Shah, Lahore.
  6,494   (5,716)  778   165   (613) Negotiation Zahid Machinery Store, Mughal Market,  
       Misri Shah, Lahore.

Balance carried forward  805,116   (438,923)  366,193   367,447   1,254   
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-------------------- (Rupees in ’000) --------------------

CostDescription Accumulated
depreciation

Net book
amount

Sale
proceeds

Gain /
(loss)

Method of
disposal Sold to

Plant and machinery
      
Balance brought forward  805,116   (438,923)  366,193   367,447   1,254 
  
  6,149   (5,036)  1,113   1,139   26  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  6,003   (4,332)  1,671   1,737   66  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  6,003   (4,332)  1,671   1,737   66  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  5,253   (4,504)  749   771   22  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  5,121   (3,708)  1,413   1,490   77  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  4,894   (3,829)  1,065   1,095   30  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  4,836   (4,146)  690   710   20  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  4,548   (3,293)  1,255   1,323   68  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  4,528   (3,323)  1,205   410   (795) Negotiation Dawood Hussain Contractor, A7/53, Street  
       No.74, G-104, Aagrah Taj, Karachi.
  4,472   (3,238)  1,234   1,301   67  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  4,438   (3,202)  1,236   1,284   48  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  4,387   (3,364)  1,023   109   (914) Negotiation K.H. Machinery Store, Kacha Raheem  
       Road, Misri Shah, Lahore.
  3,996   (3,143)  853   900   47  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  3,992   (2,881)  1,111   1,155   44  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  3,500   (2,861)  639   248   (391) Negotiation Saith Taj Malook Khan, Street No. 5,  
       Mohallah Islampura, Lahore.
  3,319   (2,610)  709   747   38  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  3,306   (2,600)  706   745   39  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  1,374   (699)  675   -     (675) Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  969   (203)  766   784   18  Negotiation Atlas Autos Pvt. Ltd., a related party,  
       Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
  886,204   (500,227)  385,977   385,132   (845)  
Dies and Jigs              
  13,510   (10,695)  2,815   142   (2,673) Scrap Roshan Traders, Baway Di Kuttiya, Lahore  
       Road, Sheikhupura.
  13,506   (10,692)  2,814   142   (2,672) Scrap Roshan Traders, Baway Di Kuttiya, Lahore  
       Road, Sheikhupura.
  13,506   (10,692)  2,814   142   (2,672) Scrap Roshan Traders, Baway Di Kuttiya, Lahore  
       Road, Sheikhupura.
  40,522   (32,079)  8,443   426   (8,017)  
       
Vehicles       Employees of the Company
  2,158   (1,253)  905   905   -    Company policy Mr. M. Qadeer Khan (Key management  
       personnel) 
  2,007   (1,175)  832   832   -    Company policy Mr. Shahzada Jamal
  2,007   (1,191)  816   816   -    Company policy Mr. Irshad Ahmed
  1,997   (985)  1,012   1,012   -    Company policy Mr. Naeem Mohsin
  1,997   (1,199)  798   798   -    Company policy Mr. M. Saeed Anwar
  1,954   (1,232)  722   722   -    Company policy Mr. Azmat Ullah Khattak
  1,667   (1,001)  666   666   -    Company policy Mr. Nawaid Ali Khan
  1,657   (995)  662   662   -    Company policy Mr. Talat Mahmood Khan
  1,646   (134)  1,512   1,512   -    Company policy Mr. Muhammad Ammar
  1,646   (313)  1,333   1,333   -    Company policy Mr. M. Hassan Kashif
  1,646   (288)  1,358   1,358   -    Company policy Mr. Naveed Ahmed
  1,637   (710)  927   927   -    Company policy Mr. Syed Aftab Ghous Gilani
  1,634   (287)  1,347   1,347   -    Company policy Mr. Sadullah Ejaz
  1,601   (1,031)  570   570   -    Company policy Mr. Hasan Mushtaq Cheema
  1,277   -     1,277   1,277   -    Company policy Mr. Aid Ali
Balance carried forward  26,531   (11,794)  14,737   14,737   -     
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  Note 2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----
6.5 Capital work-in-progress 
           
 Civil works         2,604    47,459 
 Plant and machinery         1,764    1,602 
 Dies and jigs         18,708    -   
 Factory equipment         58,099    3,465 
 Office equipment         998    960 
 Computers and accessories         96    -   
 Furniture and fixtures         6,976    4,169 
 Electric and gas fittings         10,067    317 
 Vehicles       6.5.1  18,488    5,361 
          
          117,800    63,333 

           
6.5.1 Includes advance of Rs.4,380 thousand (2017: Rs.4,636 thousand) made to Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited - a related  
 party. 

-------------------- (Rupees in ’000) --------------------

CostDescription Accumulated
depreciation

Net book
amount

Sale
proceeds

Gain /
(loss)

Method of
disposal Sold to

Vehicles
      
Balance brought forward  26,531   (11,794)  14,737   14,737   -     
  1,277   (64)  1,213   1,662   449  Negotiation Mr. Sardar Abid
  1,174   (376)  798   798   -    Company policy Ms. Marrium Ahmed
  1,174   (407)  767   767   -    Company policy Mr. Farrukh Munir
  1,124   (131)  993   993   -    Company policy Mr. Muhammad Nawaz
  1,114   (338)  776   776   -    Company policy Mr. Muhammad Khizar Farooq
  837   (110)  727   727   -    Company policy Mr. Afaq Ahmad (Key management  
       personnel)
  789   (115)  674   674   -    Company policy Mr. Adeel Safdar
  789   (39)  750   750   -    Company policy Mr. Faisal Mahmood
  778   (137)  641   641   -    Company policy Mr. Khurshid Ahmad Khan
  753   (171)  582   582   -    Company policy Mr. Azizullah
  753   (219)  534   534   -    Company policy Mr. Abdul Hannan
  748   (245)  503   503   -    Company policy Mr. Shahbaz Ahmad
  745   (50)  695   695   -    Company policy Mr. Umair Aziz
  708   (156)  552   552   -    Company policy Mr. Fahad Mahmood
  646   (22)  624   624   -    Company policy Mr. Khadim Hussain
       
       Ex-Employees of the Company
       
  2,315   (509)  1,806   1,806   -    Company policy Mr. Tauqeer Ahmed Rana
  2,243   (75)  2,168   2,168   -    Company policy Mr. Sarwar Shamim
  1,715   -     1,715   1,715   -    Company policy Mr. Tauqeer Ahmed Rana
  1,629   (612)  1,017   1,017   -    Company policy Mr. V.A. Khalid
  1,039   (470)  569   569   -    Company policy Mr. Rizwan Yousuf
  778   (13)  765   765   -    Company policy Mr. Faizan Rab
  1,646   (162)  1,484   1,484   -    Company policy Mr. Hassan Murad
  1,997   (1,077)  920   920   -    Company policy Mr. Zahid Mahmood Khan
  1,626   (689)  937   937   -    Company policy Mr. M. Ameen Tahir
  758   (101)  657   657   -    Company policy Mr. Ejaz Mushtaq
  644   (53)  591   591   -    Company policy Mr. Muhammad Rafi
       
       Others
       
  2,148   (1,067)  1,081   875   (206) Negotiation Khurram Autos 13 Main road, Samanabad,  
       Lahore.
  58,478   (19,202)  39,276   39,519   243   
       
  991,038   (554,322)  436,716   425,469   (11,247)  
Various assets having net book
amount upto Rs. 500,000 each 65,830   (46,899)  18,931   19,279   348   
       
Year Ended: March 31, 2018  1,056,868   (601,221)  455,647   444,748   (10,899)  
       
Year Ended: March 31, 2017  459,365   (363,891)  95,474   57,669   (37,805)  
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  Note 2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----
8. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS 
           
 Unquoted          
           
 Associate - equity accounted investment       8.1  324,899    292,342 
 Others - available for sale       8.2  -         -      
           
          324,899    292,342 

8.1 Equity accounted investment -           
    Atlas Hitec (Private) Limited          
           
 Balance as at April 1         292,342    245,508 
 Share of profit for the year - net of tax         50,607    61,084 
 Dividend received during the year         (18,050)   (14,250)
           
 Balance as at March 31         324,899    292,342   
  

 As at April 1, 2016 

           
 Cost       57,981   38,041   5,216    101,238 
          
 Accumulated amortisation       (52,603)  (38,041)  (5,215)   (95,859)
          
 Net book amount       5,378   -       1    5,379 
          
 Year ended March 31, 2017          
          
 Opening net book amount       5,378   -       1    5,379 
          
 Amortisation charge       (5,341)  -       (1)   (5,342)
           
 Closing net book amount       37   -       -        37 
          
 At March 31, 2017          
          
 Cost       57,981   38,041   5,216    101,238 
          
 Accumulated amortisation       (57,944)  (38,041)  (5,216)   (101,201)
          
 Net book amount       37   -       -        37 
          
 Year ended March 31, 2018          
          
 Opening net book amount       37   -       -        37 
          
 Additions (note 7.1)       2,466   -       52,400    54,866 
          
 Amortisation charge (note 26.1)       (391)  -       (9,607)   (9,998)
          
 Closing net book amount       2,112   -       42,793    44,905 
          
 At March 31, 2018          
          
 Cost       60,447   38,041   57,616    156,104 
          
 Accumulated amortisation       (58,335)  (38,041)  (14,823)   (111,199)
          
 Net book amount       2,112   -       42,793    44,905 
          
 Annual rate of amortisation (%)       50   20   20  

7.1 During the year, the Company paid Rs.52,400 thousand to Honda Motor Company Limited, Japan - a related party, for 
license fee and drawings of new product.     

Software
licences

SAP
implementation

and
support cost

Licence
fee Total

-----------------------------------(Rupees in ‘000)---------------------------------

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
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8.1.1  Investment in Atlas Hitec (Private) Limited (AHPL) represents 19,000,000 fully paid ordinary shares of Rs.10 each representing 
29.23% (2017: 29.23%) of its issued, subscribed and paid-up capital as at March 31, 2018. AHPL was incorporated in Pakistan 
as a private limited company on September 13, 2012 and its principal activity is to manufacture and sale any kind of automobile 
parts and allied products.          

8.1.2 The summary of financial information / reconciliation of AHPL as of March 31, 2018 is as follows:

   2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----
 Summarised Statement of Financial Position     
           
 Non current assets         524,600    551,500 
 Current assets         750,700    574,300 
           
          1,275,300    1,125,800 
           
 Non - current liabilities         50,200    -      
 Current liabilities         128,900    140,978   
         
          179,100    140,978 
           
 Net assets         1,096,200    984,822 
           
 Reconciliation to carrying amount          
           
 Opening net assets         984,822    824,600 
 Profit for the year         173,174    185,500 
 Other adjustments         (46)   23,472 
 Dividend paid during the year         (61,750)   (48,750)

 Closing net assets         1,096,200    984,822
 
 Company's share %        29.23%  29.23%
 Company's share         320,428    287,871 
 Goodwill         4,471    4,471 
           
 Carrying amount of investment         324,899    292,342 
           
 Summarised Statement of Profit and Loss Account          
           
 Revenue         2,272,000    1,857,200 
           
 Profit before tax         224,100    186,000 
           
 Profit after tax         173,174    185,500 
           

8.1.3 The financial information of AHPL is based on unaudited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018. 

   2018 2017
                        ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----   
       
8.2 Others - available for sale
           
 Arabian Sea Country Club Limited          
           
 200,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each - cost         2,000    2,000 
 Less: Impairment in the value of investment         2,000    2,000 
           
          -         -      
 Automotive Testing & Training Centre (Private) Limited          
           
 50,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each - cost         500    500 
 Less: Impairment in the value of investment         500    500 
           
          -         -      
           
          -         -      
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  Note 2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----
9. LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
           
 Considered good          
 Loans and advances to:          
    Related parties - Key Management Personnel         2,544    1,710 
    Other employees         64,153    62,679 
           
        9.1  66,697    64,389 
 Less: amounts due within twelve months and          
    shown under current assets:       13   
           
    Related parties - Key Management Personnel         2,057    1,453 
    Other employees         33,159    32,828 
           
          35,216    34,281 
           
          31,481    30,108 
           

9.1 These represent interest free loans and advances provided to employees as per the terms of employment. Loans aggregating 
Rs.46,931 thousand (2017: Rs.45,928 thousand) are provided for purchase of motorcycles and are repayable in forty eight 
equal monthly instalments for management staff and forty equal monthly instalments for non-management staff. These loans 
are secured against respective motorcycles and employees' vested retirement benefits. Advances are unsecured and are 
repayable in eighteen equal monthly instalments.  

9.2 The maximum amount of loans and advances to the key management personnel outstanding at the end of any month during 
the year ended March 31, 2018 was Rs.3,040 thousand (2017: Rs.2,644 thousand).  

9.3 The carrying values of these loans and advances are neither past due nor impaired. The credit quality of these financial assets 
can be assessed with reference to negligible defaults in recent history.

  Note 2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----
10. STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS 
           
 Consumable stores         109,332    97,717 
 Maintenance spares         398,731    319,653 
 Loose tools         234,614    213,024 
           
          742,677    630,394 
 Provision for slow moving items       11.2   (92,517)   (91,290)
           
          650,160    539,104 

11. STOCK-IN-TRADE 
           
 Raw materials and components          
    - in hand         1,623,976    1,216,386 
    - held with vendors       11.1   106,259    63,105 
           
          1,730,235    1,279,491 
           
 Work-in-process         5,980    4,636 
           
 Finished goods          
    - motorcycles         25,284    68,853 
    - spare parts         449,584    468,900 
           
          474,868    537,753 
 Items in transit         466,145    360,063 
           
          2,677,228    2,181,943 
 Provision for slow moving items       11.2   (77,698)   (58,112)
           
          2,599,530    2,123,831 
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11.1 Includes raw materials amounting Rs.7,370 thousand (2017: Rs.6,953 thousand) held with Atlas Autos (Private) Limited (a 
related party) for further processing into parts to be supplied to the Company.  
  
  
  
  

11.2 Movement of provision for
    slow moving inventories         
  
 Balance as at April 1       91,290   67,069   58,112    52,333 
 Provision made during the year        1,227   24,221   19,586    5,779 
          
 Balance as at March 31       92,517   91,290   77,698    58,112 

11.3 Stock-in-trade and trade debts upto a maximum amount of Rs.4,058,000 thousand (2017: Rs.4,058,000 thousand) are under 
hypothecation of commercial banks as security for short term finance facilities (note 23).  

  Note 2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----
12. TRADE DEBTS 
  
 Considered good          
           
 Export - secured       12.1   16,811    15,717 
 Local - unsecured         844,413    607,614 
          
          861,224    623,331 
           

12.1 These trade debts are secured against letters of credit issued by customers in favour of the Company. 

12.2 The maximum aggregate amount of trade receivable from related parties at the end of any month during the year was Rs.15,943 
thousand (2017: Rs.Nil). 

12.3 At March 31, 2018, trade debts aggregating to Rs.72,042 thousand (2017: Rs.28,172 thousand) were past due but not impaired. 
These relate to various customers for which there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade debts is 
as follows:

  Note 2018 2017
   

                                                                                                                                                    ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----  

 Past due within 30 days         69,434    25,288 
 Past due beyond 30 days         2,608    2,884 

          72,042    28,172 
           
13. LOANS AND ADVANCES
   
 Considered good          
 Current portion of long term loans and advances to key
    management personnel and other employees       9  35,216    34,281 
 Loans to employees       13.1  523    456 
 Advances to suppliers, contractors and others         4,368    4,184 
           
          40,107    38,921 
           

13.1 These represent interest free welfare and festival loans provided to employees in accordance with Company's policy and have 
maturities upto ten months. 

13.2 The carrying values of loans and advances are neither past due nor impaired. The credit quality of these financial assets can 
be assessed with reference to negligible defaults in recent history.

Stores, spares & loose tools Stock-in-trade

-------------------- (Rupees in ’000) --------------------

2018 2017 2018 2017
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  Note 2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----
14. TRADE DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS  
           
 Trade deposits - unsecured and considered good         34,550    36,879 
 Prepayments       14.1  103,113    83,683 
          
          137,663    120,562 
           

14.1 Includes prepayments of Rs.38,919 thousand (2017: Rs.34,399 thousand), Rs.28,963 thousand (2017: Rs.19,162 thousand) and  
 Rs.4,400 thousand (2017: Rs.4,401 thousand) to Atlas Insurance Limited , Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited and Atlas Foundation,  
 related parties respectively.

  Note 2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----
15. OTHER RECEIVABLES

 Unsecured and considered good
 Duty drawback receivable         10,927    5,023 
 Others         4,601    1,604 
          
          15,528    6,627 
16. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS - At fair value           
    through profit or loss

 2018 2017 
 ----- Number of units ----- Related parties
           
   3,865,912    5,329,964   Atlas Income Fund    2,051,330    2,835,381 
   9,585,583    3,525,913   Atlas Money Market Fund    5,006,166    1,848,531 
   759,826    721,453   Atlas Islamic Stock Fund    427,228    444,184 
   342,127    220,949   Atlas Stock Market Fund    224,839    148,084 
   -          503,770   Atlas Gold Fund    -         51,500 
   105    3,521,882   Atlas Sovereign Liquid Fund    11    365,536 
   30    1,367,167   Atlas Islamic Income Fund    16    715,958 
         
          7,709,590    6,409,174 
      Others     
         
   2,441,171    2,477,740   Lakson Money Market Fund    254,255    260,617 
   3,591,972    3,265,559   Lakson Income Fund    375,595    344,762 
   772,598    737,906   National Investment (Unit) Trust    60,803    66,116 
   50    -         NIT Government Bond Fund    1    -      
   10    -         NIT Islamic Equity Fund    2    -      
         
          690,656    671,495 
         
          8,400,246    7,080,669 

17. BANK BALANCES 
   
 Cash at banks in:
    - current accounts (including US$ 55 thousand)         87,629    399,430 
    - savings deposit accounts       17.1  1,393,990    1,004,354 
    - term deposit receipts / treasury bill       17.2  8,499,996    5,650,000 
          
          9,981,615    7,053,784 
           
17.1 Savings deposit accounts carry mark-up upto 5.70% (2017: 5.85%) per annum.  

17.2 Term deposit receipts (TDR) have maturity of 30 days (2017: 30 to 90 days) from respective date of acquisition. TDRs carry 
mark-up at the rates ranging from 6.15% to 6.50% (2017: 5.95% to 6.10%) per annum. Treasury bill have maturity of 29 
days from date of acquisition and carries mark-up at the rate of 6.10% per annum.
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18. SHARE CAPITAL

18.1 Authorised capital

 2018 2017  2018 2017
 ----- Number of shares -----  ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----

 150,000,000   150,000,000   Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each      1,500,000    1,500,000 

18.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

 2018 2017 
 ----- Number of shares ----- 

 6,352,748    6,352,748   Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each fully paid in cash  63,528    63,528 
          
  96,794,565    96,794,565   Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each  issued as fully    
        paid bonus shares     967,945    967,945 
          
  259,300    259,300   Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each issued as fully    
        paid for consideration other than cash      2,593    2,593 
          
  103,406,613    103,406,613        1,034,066    1,034,066 

   Note 2018 2017
   ------ Number of shares -----
18.3 Ordinary shares of the Company held by 
    the related parties as at March 31

 Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited         54,220,693    54,220,693 
 Honda Motor Company Limited, Japan         36,192,315    36,192,315 
 Atlas Insurance Limited         2,931,728    2,931,728 
           
          93,344,736    93,344,736 
19. RESERVES 

 Capital reserves          
    Share premium         39,953    39,953 
    Gain on sale of land         165    165 
           
          40,118    40,118 
 Revenue reserves          
    General reserve:          
    - at April 1         6,992,000    6,162,000 
    - transferred from unappropriated profit         1,000,000    830,000 
           
    - at March 31         7,992,000    6,992,000 
 
 Unappropriated profit         6,934,537    5,191,349 
           
          14,926,537    12,183,349 
           
          14,966,655    12,223,467 
20. COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
           
 Balance as at April 1         228,443    214,620 
 Provision for the year         37,419    30,894 
           
          265,862    245,514 
 Encashed during the year         (24,181)   (17,071)
           
 Balance as at March 31       20.1  241,681    228,443 
           
20.1 Includes liability in respect of key management personnel aggregating to Rs.31,261 thousand (2017: Rs.32,308 thousand).          
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        Note 2018 2017
   ------ Rupees in ‘000 -----
22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES    

 Creditors       22.1  3,005,807    2,717,244 
 Accrued liabilities       22.2  2,451,241    2,294,184 
 Royalty payable       22.3  958,635    807,107 
 Warranty obligations         62,014    58,224 
 Advances from customers       22.4  7,021,657    4,759,060 
 Retention money         31,569    25,040 
 Sales tax payable - net         477,701    206,073 
 Workers' profit participation fund       22.5  333,728    270,713 
 Workers' welfare fund       22.6  116,373    102,687 
 Payable to staff retirement benefit funds - gratuity       22.7  45,645    38,447 
 Provision for Sindh government infrastructure fee         207,949    128,999 
 Others       22.9  110,973    23,024 
           
          14,823,292    11,430,802 
           

22.1 Includes Rs.35,842 thousand (2017: Rs.24,380 thousand) and Rs.289 thousand (2017: Rs.Nil) due to Atlas Hitec (Private)  
 Limited and Pakistan Cables Limited (related parties) respectively.       
          
22.2 Includes Rs.2,635 thousand (2017: Rs.2,121 thousand) due to Honda Motor Company Limited, Japan - a related party.  

   Note 2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----
21. DEFERRED TAXATION - Net          
           
 The liability for deferred taxation comprises temporary           
    differences relating to:          
           
 Accelerated tax depreciation         852,111    792,679 
 Unrealized gain on investments         -      18,924 
 Provision for slow moving inventories         (50,476)   (44,279)
 Compensated absences         (71,668)   (67,705)
 Warranty obligations         (18,390)   (17,256)
 Staff retirement benefit - gratuity         (13,535)   (11,395)
          
          698,042    670,968 

21.1 Movement in deferred taxation

 At April 1, 2016  662,717    28,902    (35,433)   (63,690)   (13,399)   (12,348)   566,749 
 Charge / (credited) to:             
             
 Profit and loss account  129,962    (9,978)   (8,846)   (4,015)   (3,857)   (44)   103,222 
 Other comprehensive income  -         -        -        -        -       997    997 
             
   129,962    (9,978)   (8,846)   (4,015)   (3,857)   953    104,219 
             
 At March 31, 2017  792,679    18,924    (44,279)   (67,705)   (17,256)   (11,395)   670,968 
 Charge / (credited) to:             
             
 Profit and loss account  59,432    (18,924)   (6,197)   (3,963)   (1,134)   1,042    30,256 
 Other comprehensive income  -        -        -        -        -        (3,182)   (3,182)
             
   59,432    (18,924)   (6,197)   (3,963)   (1,134)   (2,140)   27,074 
             
 At March 31, 2018  852,111    -        (50,476)   (71,668)   (18,390)   (13,535)  698,042 

------------------------------------ (Rupees in ’000) ----------------------------------

Accelerated
tax

depreciation

Unrealized
gain on

investments

Provision
for slow
moving

inventories

Compens-
ated

absences
Warranty

obligations

Staff
retirement
benefit -
gratuity

Total
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22.3 Includes Rs.952,385 thousand (2017: Rs.800,745 thousand) due to Honda Motor Company Limited, Japan - a related party  
         
22.4 These represent advances from customers against sale of motorcycles & parts and carry no mark-up.  

22.7 Staff retirement benefit - gratuity          
           
22.7.1  The Company has established two separate funded gratuity schemes for its management and non-management staff, who 

completes qualifying period of service.          
           
22.7.2 These benefit plans are trustee-administered funds and are governed by local regulations which mainly includes Trust Act, 

1882, the Companies Act, 2017, Income Tax Rules, 2002 and Rules under the Trust deed of the Plans. Responsibility for 
governance of the Plans, including investment decisions and contributions schedules lies with the board of trustees. The 
Company appoints the trustees and all trustees are employees of the Company.      
         

22.7.3 The latest actuarial valuations of the Funds as at March 31, 2018 were carried out using the 'Projected Unit Credit Method'. 
Details of the Funds as per the actuarial valuations are as follows:     

   Note 2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----
22.5 Workers' profit participation fund (the Fund)  
           
 Balance as at April 1         270,713    215,727 
 Allocation for the year       30  333,190    270,229 
 Interest on funds utilised in the Company's business       31  538    484 
           
          604,441    486,440 
 Paid to trustees of the Fund         (270,713)   (215,727)

 Balance as at March 31         333,728    270,713 
           
22.6 Workers' welfare fund          
           
 Balance as at April 1         102,687    81,652 
           
 Charge for the year         116,373    102,687 
 Adjustment for prior year         (18,533)   (8,881)
           
        30  97,840    93,806 
           
          200,527    175,458 
 Payment made during the year         (84,154)   (72,771)
           
 Balance as at March 31         116,373    102,687 

  Management Non-management Total
  2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
  ------------------------------------ (Rupees in ’000) ----------------------------------22.7.4 Reconciliation 
               
 Present value of defined benefit obligation              
    at March 31 - note 22.7.5     321,813    328,371    36,621    38,370    358,434    366,741 
 Fair value of plan assets at               
    March 31 - note 22.7.6     (260,280)   (262,154)   (86,119)   (86,134)   (346,399)   (348,288)
 Payable to related parties in               
    respect of transferees     33,610    19,994    -       -        33,610   -     19,994 
               
      95,143    86,211    (49,498)   (47,764)   45,645    38,447 
22.7.5 Movement in the present value of               
    defined benefit obligation              
               
 Balance as at April 1     328,371    309,560    38,370    35,699    366,741    345,259 
 Benefits paid      (19,829)   (17,755)   (4,054)   (1,870)   (23,883)   (19,625)
 Current service cost     18,767    17,838    1,205    1,188    19,972    19,026 
 Interest expense     24,660    23,287    2,867    2,692    27,527    25,979 
 Remeasurement on obligation     4,774    16,439    (1,767)   661    3,007    17,100 
 Payable to related parties               
    in respect of transferees     (34,930)   (20,998)   -       -       (34,930)   (20,998)
               
 Balance as at March 31     321,813    328,371    36,621    38,370    358,434    366,741 
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  Management Non-management Total
  2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
  ------------------------------------ (Rupees in ’000) ----------------------------------22.7.6 Movement in the fair value of   
    plan assets   
               
 Balance as at April 1     262,154    237,680    86,134    79,199    348,288    316,879 
 Contributions     25,492    25,355    -      -      25,492    25,355 
 Benefits paid     (19,829)   (17,755)   (4,054)   (1,870)   (23,883)   (19,625)
 Interest income     18,983    15,633    6,433    5,940    25,416    21,573 
 Remeasurement     (5,206)   17,559    (2,394)   2,865    (7,600)   20,424 
 Payable to related parties               
    in respect of transferees     (21,314)   (16,318)   -       -       (21,314)   (16,318)
               
 Balance as at March 31     260,280    262,154    86,119    86,134    346,399    348,288 
               
22.7.7 Expense / (income) recognised in                
    profit and loss account              
               
 Current service costs     18,767    17,838    1,205    1,188    19,972    19,026 
 Net interest expense / (income)     5,677    7,654    (3,566)   (3,248)   2,111    4,406 
               
      24,444    25,492    (2,361)   (2,060)   22,083    23,432 
               
22.7.8 Remeasurement recognised in              
    other comprehensive income              
               
 Loss / (gain) from change in              
 financial assumptions     5,392    15,392    607    1,798    5,999    17,190 
 Experience (gain) / loss     (618)   1,047    (2,374)   (1,137)   (2,992)   (90)
 Loss / (gain) on remeasurement of plan assets     5,206    (17,559)   2,394    (2,865)   7,600    (20,424)

 Net remeasurements     9,980    (1,120)   627    (2,204)   10,607    (3,324)
               
22.7.9 Net recognised liability              
               
 Net liability / (asset) at beginning of the year     86,211    87,194    (47,764)   (43,500)   38,447    43,694 
 Charge / (income) for the year     24,444    25,492    (2,361)   (2,060)   22,083    23,432 
 Contributions made during the year     (25,492)   (25,355)   -       -       (25,492)   (25,355)
 Remeasurement recognised in              
    other comprehensive income     9,980    (1,120)   627    (2,204)   10,607    (3,324)
               
 Recognised liability / (asset) as at March 31     95,143    86,211    (49,498)   (47,764)   45,645    38,447 
               
22.7.10 Actual return on planned assets     13,777    33,192    2,285    7,421    16,062    40,613 
               
22.7.11 Plan assets comprise of:              
               
 Fixed income instruments     133,165    121,470    45,747    44,209    178,912    165,679 
 Mutual fund securities     125,342    140,480    39,676    40,826    165,018    181,306 
 Others     1,773    204    696    1,099    2,469    1,303 
               
      260,280    262,154    86,119    86,134    346,399    348,288 

22.7.12 The expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns available on the assets underlying 
the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the 
reporting date.  

   Management Non management
    2018 2017 2018 2017
   ------------------- % per annum -------------------
22.7.13 Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity: 
               
 Discount rate at March 31        8.75   7.75   8.75   7.75 
 Expected rate of increase in future salaries    - first year     9.00   12.00   9.00   12.00  
    - long term     7.75   6.75   7.75   6.75 
 Expected rate of return on plan assets         7.75   7.75   7.75   7.75 
 Demographic assumptions          
      - Mortality rates (for death in service)        SLIC  SLIC  SLIC  SLIC 
         (2001-05)  (2001-05)  (2001-05) (2001-05)
    - Rates of employee turnover        Moderate  Moderate  Moderate Moderate
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 The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in principal assumptions is:

  Impact on defined benefit obligation
  Change in Increase in Decrease in
  assumptions assumptions assumptions
  ---------- (Rupees in ’000) ----------

 Discount rate        1.00%  334,119    386,290 
          
 Future salary increase       1.00%  384,516    335,246 
          
 Withdrawal rates : light         356,480   
          
 Withdrawal rates : heavy         357,829     

 
  The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. 

In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and change in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the 
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of 
defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of reporting period) has been 
applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised within the statement of financial position.   
       

 The method and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the previous 
period.          

           
22.7.14 Expected charge and income to management and non-management gratuity plans for the year ending March 31, 2019 

are Rs.25,810 thousand and Rs.2,983 thousand respectively.             
    

22.7.15 The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation for management and non-management plans is 6.98 years 
and 5.12 years respectively. The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted retirement benefits is as follows:

22.8 Payable to staff retirement benefit funds - gratuity includes liability in respect of key management personnel aggregating to 
Rs.53,313 thousand (2017: Rs.52,605 thousand).          

           
22.9 Other liabilities include vehicle deposits under Company's vehicle policy aggregating Rs.14,279 thousand (2017: Rs.12,122 

thousand) and Rs.85,026 thousand (2017: Nil) payable against provincial levies.

23. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - Secured          
           
 Short term finance facilities available from various commercial banks under mark-up arrangements aggregate to Rs.2,740,000 

thousand (2017: Rs.2,740,000 thousand) and are secured against pari passu hypothecation charge over the Company's 
stock-in-trade and trade debts to extent of Rs.4,058,000 thousand (2017: Rs.4,058,000 thousand). The rates of mark-up of 
these facilities during the year ranged from 6.24% to 7.50% (2017: 6.14% to 7.12%) per annum. These facilities are expiring 
on various dates by December 31, 2018.          

          
 The facilities for opening letters of credit as at March 31, 2018 aggregated to Rs.3,640,000 thousand (2017: Rs.3,530,000 

thousand) of which the amount remained unutilised at year end was Rs.1,356,257 thousand (2017: Rs.2,092,382 thousand). 
These finance facilities are also secured against pari passu joint hypothecation charge on stocks-in-trade and trade debts of 
the Company.           

 Less Between Between Over 5 
 than a year 1 - 2 years 2 - 5 years years Total
 March 31, 2018 ----------------------------------------- Rupees  in '000 -----------------------------------------
        
 Management staff    27,564    58,374    97,982    217,030    400,950 
 Non-management staff    1,753    4,443    16,797    36,000    58,993 
           
 Total    25,811    53,931    114,779    253,030    459,943 

 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
   ----------------------------------------- Rupees  in '000 -----------------------------------------
        
 Present value of defined benefit obligation      358,434    366,741    345,259    324,883   305,323 
 Fair value of plan assets      346,399    348,288    316,879    284,007   261,100 
            
 Deficit provided in financial statements      12,035    18,453    28,380    40,876   44,223 
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  Note 2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----

 Not later than one year         36,406    29,765 
 Later than one year and not later than five years         63,739    52,361 
                     100,145    82,126 
25. SALES - Net          
           
 Gross sales          
    - local         89,677,263    74,496,874 
    - export         458,891    437,212 
                     90,136,154    74,934,086 
 Less:           
    - trade discount and commission         531,226    351,104 
    - sales tax         12,126,083    10,048,961 
           
          12,657,309    10,400,065 
           
          77,478,845    64,534,021 
26. COST OF SALES                     
 Opening stock of finished goods         537,753    391,372 
 
 Cost of goods manufactured       26.1  63,550,978    53,512,593 
 Purchases during the year         5,574,238    4,388,775 
           
          69,125,216    57,901,368 
 Closing stock of finished goods         (474,868)   (537,753)
           
          69,188,101    57,754,987 
26.1 Cost of goods manufactured                   
 Opening stock of work-in-process         4,636    2,858 
 Raw materials and components consumed       26.2  53,758,498    45,018,128 
 Direct labour       26.3  1,386,114    1,222,728 
 Technical directors' remuneration         2,048    1,848 
 Staff salaries, wages and other benefits       26.3  1,214,000    1,135,047 
 Stores consumed         757,903    753,119 
 Fuel and power         688,411    568,110 
 Insurance         112,546    93,998 
 Rent, rates and taxes         134,902    103,245 
 Ijarah rentals         31,551    30,599 
 Repair and maintenance         553,997    490,495 
 Royalty including provincial taxes       26.4  3,648,492    2,960,283 
 Technical assistance fee         51,639    53,735 
 Travelling, conveyance and entertainment         84,112    86,788 
 Postage and telephone         7,708    7,697 
 Printing and stationery         27,613    17,736 
 Vehicle running expenses         28,765    22,451 
 Depreciation       6.3  829,370    737,813 
 Canteen         130,986    112,251 
 Newspapers, magazines and subscriptions         2,919    3,775 
 Amortisation       7  9,998    5,342 
 Provision for slow moving inventories       11.2  20,813    30,000 
 Marking fee         69,765    58,547 
 Other manufacturing expenses         172    636            
          63,556,958    53,517,229 
 Closing stock of work-in-process         (5,980)   (4,636)           
          63,550,978    53,512,593 

24. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
          
24.1 Contingencies
          
24.1.1 Various cases have been filed against the Company by some former employees for reinstatement of service and are pending 

in different courts of Pakistan. The management is confident that outcome of these cases will be in favour of the Company 
and hence no provision is made in these financial statements. 

         
24.1.2 Guarantees aggregating to Rs.901,410 thousand (2017: Rs.1,658,491 thousand) have been issued by commercial banks to 

government and semi government institutions for import of raw materials and supply of goods.     

24.2 Commitments
          
24.2.1 Commitments outstanding for letters of credit relating to capital expenditure, raw materials and components as at March 31, 

2018 aggregated to Rs.2,283,743 thousand (2017: Rs.1,437,618 thousand).
     
24.2.2 Commitments outstanding for capital expenditure other than through letters of credit as at March 31, 2018 aggregated to 

Rs.59,122 thousand (2017: Rs.131,915 thousand).
          
24.2.3 The Company has entered into Ijarah arrangements for vehicles with various banks. Aggregate commitments for these Ijarah 

arrangements as at March 31, are as follows:
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  Note 2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----
26.2 Raw materials and components consumed            
   
 Opening stock         1,279,491    1,365,459 
 Purchases during the year         54,209,242    44,932,160 
           
          55,488,733    46,297,619 
 Closing stock         (1,730,235)   (1,279,491)
           
          53,758,498    45,018,128 
           

26.3 Direct labour and staff salaries, wages & other benefits include Rs.69,440 thousand (2017: Rs.70,150 thousand) in respect 
of staff retirement benefits.          

           
26.4 Royalty charged in these financial statement pertains to Honda Motor Company Limited having registered office at 1-1, 

Minami-Aoyama 2-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo 107-8556, Japan, Toyo Denso Company Limited having registered office at 10-4, 
2-Chome, Shinbashi Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan and Yamada Manufacturing Company Limited having registered office at 1296-2, 
Koubayashi, Isesaki, Gunama, Japan.

  Note 2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----
27. SALES AND MARKETING EXPENSES
           
 Directors' remuneration         40,717    37,591 
 Staff salaries and other benefits       27.1  355,403    311,395 
 Travelling, conveyance and entertainment         89,622    88,099 
 Vehicle running expenses         15,490    14,996 
 Rent, rates and taxes         60,982    40,414 
 Advertisement and sales promotion         546,898    499,910 
 Repairs and maintenance         16,861    8,000 
 Gas and electricity         12,601    11,054 
 Freight outward         500,043    446,729 
 Printing and stationery         4,318    4,181 
 Postage and telephone         19,267    16,438 
 First free service charges         174,180    137,745 
 Insurance         13,245    12,900 
 Newspapers, magazines and subscriptions         1,804    1,204 
 Others         626    117 
           
          1,852,057    1,630,773 
           
27.1 Staff salaries and other benefits include Rs.29,589 thousand (2017: Rs.20,300 thousand) in respect of staff retirement benefits. 
 
  Note 2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----
28. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
           
 Non executive directors' fee         20,685    20,770 
 Staff salaries and other benefits       28.1  341,514    325,488 
 Travelling, conveyance and entertainment         22,358    20,380 
 Rent, rates and taxes         8,123    8,632 
 Insurance         4,416    4,876 
 Repairs and maintenance         24,252    13,253 
 Legal and professional charges         27,752    24,045 
 Gas and electricity         1,559    1,795 
 Newspapers, magazines, fees and subscriptions         3,699    3,513 
 Postage and telephone         3,446    3,607 
 Printing and stationery         20,307    12,822 
 Vehicle running expenses         10,209    7,415 
 Staff training         24,905    28,734 
 Depreciation       6.3  69,687    59,466 
 Donation       28.2  51,649    67,349 
 Others         33    198 
           
          634,594    602,343 
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28.1  Staff salaries and other benefits include Rs.20,996 thousand (2017: Rs.18,585 thousand) in respect of staff retirement benefits. 
         

28.2 Donation of Rs.50,927 thousand (2017: Rs.66,444 thousand) charged in these financial statements is paid to Atlas Foundation, 
2nd Floor, Federation House, Shara-e-Firdousi, Clifton, Karachi (the Foundation). Mr. Yusuf H. Shirazi, Chairman and

 Mr. Jawaid Iqbal Ahmed, the Directors of the Company and also the Directors of the Foundation.    

  Note 2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----
29. OTHER INCOME
           
 Income from financial assets          
 Mark-up / interest on savings deposit accounts,          
    term deposit receipts and treasury bills       29.1  527,204    365,716 
 Gain on sale of investments at fair  value through profit or loss   12,864    24,063 
 Fair value gain on investments at fair  value through profit or loss   16,183    35,838 
 Dividend income         3,321    9,474 
 Net foreign exchange gains         -        93 
 Income from investments in related parties          
 Gain on sale of investments at fair  value through profit or loss   104,299    35,215 
 Fair value gain on investments at fair  value through profit or loss   144,022    219,601 
 Dividend income         29,094    201,419 
 Income from assets other than financial assets          
 Commission income         1,726    1,517 
 Scrap sales         37,854    22,607 
 Others         1,341    790 
           
          877,908    916,333 
    
       
29.1 Mark-up / interest at the rates ranged from 5.8% to 6.70% (2017: 2.20% to 6.70%) per annum has been earned during the 

year on savings deposit accounts, term deposit receipts and treasury bills.

  Note 2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----
30. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
           
 Workers' profit participation fund       22.5  333,190    270,229 
 Workers' welfare fund       22.6  97,840    93,806 
 Auditors' remuneration       30.1  2,919    2,900 
 Net foreign exchange loss         189    -     
 Loss on disposal and write-off of operating fixed assets         10,899    37,805 
           
          445,037    404,740 
30.1 Auditors' remuneration          
           
 Fee for:          
    - audit of annual financial statements         1,500    1,500 
    - review of half yearly financial information         212    212 
    - review of Code of Corporate Governance         91    91 
    - audits of retirement funds and  workers' profit participation fund       250    250 
    - certifications for payment of royalty,  technical fee and dividend   569    550 
    - out of pocket expenses         297    297 
           
          2,919    2,900 
           
31. FINANCE COSTS
           
 Interest on workers' profit participation fund       22.5  538    484 
 Bank and other financial charges         22,187    25,369 
           
          22,725    25,853 

106 Annual Report 2018

Company Overview Message for Stakeholders Financial Highlights Financial Statements Other Information



   2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----
32. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 
           
 Current tax          
           
 Current tax on profits for the year         1,567,943    1,159,131 
 Adjustments for current tax of prior years         3,012    77,910 
           
          1,570,955    1,237,041 
 Deferred tax          
           
 Origination and reversal of temporary differences         30,256    155,790 
 Impact of change in tax rate         -      (52,568)
           
          30,256    103,222 
           
          1,601,211    1,340,263 
32.1 Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax       
   
 Profit before income tax expense         6,264,846    5,092,742 
           
 Tax at the applicable rate of 30% (2017: 31%)         1,879,454    1,578,750 
 Tax effect of:          
     - amounts not deductible for tax purposes         316,713    299,211 
     - amounts deductible for tax purposes but  not taken to profit and loss account  (351,097)   (401,341)
     - income not subject to tax / income subject  to final tax regime / tax credits  (264,652)   (300,334)
     - Associate's result reported net of tax         (12,475)   (17,155)
 Adjustments for current tax of prior years         3,012    77,910 
 Deferred tax         30,256    103,222 

 Income tax expense         1,601,211    1,340,263 
           

32.2 The provision for current year tax represent tax on taxable income at the rate of 30%. According to management, the tax 
provision made in the financial statements is sufficient. A comparison of last three years of income tax provision with tax 
assessed is presented below:            

        2017     2016      2015   
           
 Income tax provision for the year - accounts        1,159,131   1,065,822    942,357 
 Income tax as per tax assessment        1,141,516   1,049,136    975,191 
           
32.3 Section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 imposes tax at the rate of 7.5% on every public company other than a scheduled 

bank or modaraba, that derives profits for tax a year but does not distribute at least 40% of accounting profit either through 
cash dividend or issuance of bonus shares within six months of the end of said tax year.     
           
The Board of Directors in their meeting held on April 30, 2018 has distributed sufficient cash dividend for the year ended March 
31, 2018 (refer note 44) which complies with the above stated requirements. Accordingly, no provision for tax on undistributed 
profits has been recognised in the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018.

   2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----
33. EARNINGS PER SHARE        

33.1 Basic earnings per share          
           
 Net profit for the year         4,663,635    3,752,479 
           
                                              --- Number of shares ---
           
 Weighted average ordinary shares in issue         103,406,613    103,406,613 
           
                                                -------- Rupees --------  
           
 Earnings per share         45.10   36.29 
           
33.2 Diluted earnings per share          
           
 No figures for diluted earnings per share have been presented as the Company has not issued any instruments carrying
 options which would have an impact on earnings per share when exercised.     
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  Note 2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----

34. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
 
 Profit before taxation         6,264,846    5,092,742 
 Adjustments for:          
 Depreciation         899,057    797,279 
 Amortisation         9,998    5,342 
 Provision for compensated absences         37,419    30,894 
 Provision for gratuity         22,083    23,432 
 Provision for slow moving inventories         20,813    30,000 
 Mark-up / interest on savings deposit accounts and           
    term deposit receipts         (527,204)   (365,716)
 Gain on sale of investments at fair value          
    through profit or loss         (117,163)   (59,278)
 Fair value gain on investments at fair value           
    through profit or loss         (160,205)   (255,439)
 Net foreign exchange loss / (gain)         189    (93)
 Dividend income         (32,415)   (210,893)
 Workers' profit participation fund         333,728    270,713 
 Workers' welfare fund         97,840    93,806 
 Loss on disposal and write-off of operating fixed assets         10,899    37,805 
 Share of net profit of an Associate         (50,607)   (61,084)
 Changes in working capital       34.1  2,435,753    2,407,852 
           
          9,245,031    7,837,362 
34.1 Changes in working capital
           
 (Increase) / decrease in current assets          
     - Stores, spares and loose tools         (112,283)   (73,910)
     - Stock-in-trade         (495,285)   (266,128)
     - Trade debts         (237,893)   (14,911)
     - Loans and advances         (1,186)   (3,044)
     - Trade deposits and prepayments         (17,101)   (55,792)
     - Other receivables         (8,901)   (1,717)
           
          (872,649)   (415,502)
 Increase in current liabilities:          
     - Trade and other payables         3,308,402    2,823,354 
           
          2,435,753    2,407,852 
34.2 Cash flows from operating activities          
     - Direct method          
 Receipts from customers         79,503,549    66,063,716 
 Mark-up / interest received         533,117    361,088 
 Payments to trade suppliers, service providers           
 and employees         (70,265,125)   (58,230,837)
 Income taxes paid         (1,563,999)   (1,427,626)
 Contributions made to gratuity funds         (25,492)   (25,355)
 Compensated absences paid         (24,181)   (17,071)
 Workers' profit participation fund paid         (270,713)   (215,727)
 Workers' welfare fund paid         (84,154)   (72,771)
           
          7,803,002    6,435,417 
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35. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
          

The aggregate amounts charged during year in respect of remuneration and fee, including certain benefits, to the Chief 
Executive Officer, Directors and Executives of the Company are given below:

 -------------------- Directors ------------------- 
 Chief Executive Officer Others Executives
 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
 ------------------------------ (Rupees in ’000) ------------------------------

 Managerial remuneration and fee   19,158    17,739    22,733    22,618    155,332    131,175 
 Rent and utilities   9,162    8,484    -        -        74,289    62,736 
 Bonus   10,340    9,462    -        -        83,383    68,922 
 Retirement benefits   1,832    1,697    -        -        14,164    11,444 
 Medical and other reimbursable expenses   225    209    -        -        4,185    16,333 
            
    40,717    37,591    22,733    22,618    331,353    290,610 
            
 Number of persons   1    1    5    5    72    60 

35.1 The Chief Executive Officer, three Directors and two ex-patriate executives are provided with free use of Company maintained 
cars and telephones at residences. Two Directors and two ex-patriate executives are also provided with furnished accommodation. 
 

36. RELATED PARTIES   
 

 Related parties comprise of the Holding Company, Associated Companies, staff retirement funds, directors and key management 
personnel. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Detail of related 
parties (with whom the Company has transacted) along with relationship and transactions with related parties, other than those 
which have been disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows:   
 

36.1 Name and nature of relationship   
 

a) The Holding Company   
 

 Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited - 52.43% shares held in the Company   
 

b) Associated Companies due to significant influence   
 

 Honda Motor Company Limited - 35.00% shares held in the Company (note 36.1.1)   
 

 Atlas Hitec (Private) Limited - 29.23% shares held by the Company   
 

c) Associated Companies due to common directorship   
 

 Atlas Engineering Limited Atlas Asset Management Limited   

 Atlas Autos (Private) Limited Atlas Power Limited  
 
 Atlas Die Casting (Private) Limited Atlas Foundation  
 
 Atlas Battery Limited Honda Atlas Cars Pakistan Limited  
 
 Atlas Insurance Limited Atlas Metals (Private) Limited  
 
 Shirazi Trading Company (Private) Limited Atlas Global, FZE (note 36.1.2)  
 
 Honda Atlas Power Products (Private) Limited    

   
Pakistan Cables Limited    
 

d) Associated companies under common management    
  

 Atlas Worldwide General Trading LLC (note 36.1.3) Atlas Aluminium Limited   
   

36.1.1 Honda Motor Company Limited (HMCL) is a company incorporated in Japan, having registered office at 1-1, Minami-Aoyama 
2-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo 107-8556, Japan. HMCL holds 35% shares in the Company. Mr. Takahiro Hachigo is the Chief 
Executive Officer of HMCL. Major line of business of HMCL are motorcycles, automobiles, power products and financial 
services. Auditors have expressed unqualified opinion on the financial statements of HMCL for the year ended March 31, 2017.
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  Note 2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----
36.2 Transactions with related parties    
 The Holding Company    
 
 Sales of:          
    - goods and services         723    160 
    - operating fixed assets         502    -     
 Purchases of operating fixed assets         5,550    -     
 Rent         122,681    88,847 
 Dividend paid         1,003,083    786,200 
 Associated companies          
 Sales of:          
    - goods and services         1,057,093    857,855 
    - operating fixed assets         466,170    15,995 
 Purchases of:          
    - goods and services         20,188,202    16,640,812 
    - operating fixed assets         118,215    92,085 
 License and drawings fee paid         52,400    -     
 Sale of units in mutual funds         11,951,415    4,485,622 
 Purchase of units in mutual funds         13,003,508    5,344,610 
 Royalty paid         3,571,617    2,967,098 
 Export commission paid         5,767    3,637 
 Technical assistance fee         14,007    9,443 
 Commission income         1,726    1,517 
 Rent         18,207    16,552 
 Insurance premium paid         320,651    264,724 
 Insurance claims received         11,499    3,239 
 Reimbursement of expenses - net         2,862    2,962 
 Dividend paid         723,795    567,299 
 Donation paid         50,927    66,444 
 Dividend received         47,144    215,669 
 Other related parties          
 Contributions paid to:           
    - gratuity funds         25,492    25,355 
    - provident funds / pension schemes         60,525    54,709 
 Key Management Personnel          
    - salaries and other employment benefits         136,654    136,717 
    - sale of vehicles under company policy         1,632    2,244 

          
 The related party status of outstanding balances as at March 31, 2018 is included in 'Capital work-in-progress - note 6.5',  
  'Trade deposit and prepayments - note 14' and 'Trade and other payables - note 22' respectively. These are settled in ordinary  
 course of business.         

36.1.2 Atlas Global FZE (AG) is a Free Zone establishment with limited liability in the Jebel Ali Free Zone, Dubai, UAE formed under 
the Law 9 of 1992 and implementing regulation issued there under by Jebel Ali Free Zone. The registered office of AG is P.O. 
Box 17442, Dubai, UAE. Mr. Iftikhar H. Shirazi is the Chief Executive Officer of AG. Major line of business of AG is general 
trading activities. Auditors have expressed unqualified opinion on the financial statements of AG for the year ended June 30, 
2017.

36.1.3 Atlas Worldwide General Trading (L.L.C) (AWWT) established with limited liability in Dubai formed under Federal Law 2 of 
2015 by Dubai, UAE. The registered office of AWWT is Office 311, Nasir Ahmed Nasir Lootah Building, Khalid Bin Al Waleed 
Road, Dubai, UAE. Mr. Iftikhar H. Shirazi is the Chief Executive Officer of AWWT. Major line of business of AWWT is general 
trading activities. Auditors have expressed unqualified opinion on the financial statements of AWWT for the year ended June 
30, 2017. 
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 2018 2017
 Japanese US Japanese US
 Yen Dollar Yen Dollar
  -------------------- (Amounts in ’000) ----------------------
 

 Trade debts     -        149    -        150 
 Trade and other payables     (888,013)  (238)   (860,004)  (146)
        
  Net exposure     (888,013)  89    (860,004)  (4)
 
 The following significant exchange rates have been applied:
 2018 2017 2018 2017
 Average rate   Reporting date rate
  -------------------- (Rupees) ----------------------
 
 Pakistani Rupee to Japanese Yen    0.98  0.96  1.09   0.93 
 Pakistani Rupee to U.S. Dollar    106.30  104.80  115.50   104.85 

 At March 31, 2018, if the Pakistani Rupee had strengthened / weakened by 5% against Japanese Yen and U.S. Dollar with all 
other variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would have been higher / (lower) by the amount shown below mainly 
as a result of net foreign exchange gains / (losses) on translation of foreign denominated financial assets and liabilities.

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

37.1 Financial risk factors   
 

 The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:   
 

 - market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk);    
 - credit risk; and    
 - liquidity risk.   

 
 The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management 

framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies.   
 

 The Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise 
potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance. Risk management is carried out by a treasury department 
under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The treasury department identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks. The 
Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as foreign 
exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative and non-derivative financial instruments and investment of excess

 liquidity.
  
(a) Market risk   

 
 Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect 

the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage 
and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.   
 

 Foreign exchange risk   
 

 Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument shall fluctuate because of changes 
in foreign exchange rates.   
 

 The Company operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily 
with respect to the Japanese Yen and the US Dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and 
recognised assets and liabilities. The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the reporting date is as follows:  

   2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----
 Effect on profit for the year: 
          
 Pakistani Rupee to Japanese Yen         48,343    40,141 
 Pakistani Rupee to U.S. Dollar         514    (21)          
          48,857    40,120  
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 Interest rate risk   

 Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair values or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of 
change in market interest rates.   

 The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on balances with banks in savings deposit accounts and term deposit receipts. 
Deposits in bank savings accounts held at variable interest rate expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk and term 
deposit receipts issued by the banks at fixed interest rates give rise to fair value interest rate risk. Significant interest rate risk 
exposures are primarily managed by a suitable mix of deposits. At March 31, 2018, the Company's interest bearing financial 
assets amounted to Rs.9,893,986 thousand (2017: Rs.6,654,354 thousand).   

 At March 31, 2018, if the interest rate on the Company's deposits had been 1% higher / lower with other variables held constant, 
profit before tax for the year would have been higher / (lower) by Rs.13,940 thousand (2017: Rs.10,044 thousand) mainly as 
a result of higher / (lower) interest income.   

 Price risk   
 

 Price risk represents the risk that the fair values or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes 
in market prices (other than those arising from foreign exchange risk or interest rate risk), whether those changes are caused 
by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors effecting all similar financial instruments traded 
in the market.   
 

 The Company is exposed to price risk because of investments in mutual fund securities aggregating to Rs.8,400,246 thousand 
(2017: Rs.7,080,669 thousand) as changes in Net Asset Value (NAV) of mutual funds affects the Company. The Company is 
not exposed to commodity price risk. To manage its price risk arising from investments in mutual funds, the Company diversifies 
its portfolios.   
 

 At March 31, 2018, if fair value (NAV) had been 5% higher / lower with all other variables held constant profit before tax for 
the year would have higher / (lower) by Rs.420,012 thousand (2017: Rs.354,033 thousand).   
 

(b) Credit risk   
 

 Credit risk represents the risk of financial loss being caused if counter party fails to perform as contracted or discharge an 
obligation. The Company's credit risk arises from deposits with banks & financial institutions, loans & advances, deposits, 
trade debts, investments, accrued mark-up / interest and other receivables.   
 

 The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure. The financial assets exposed to credit risk 
amounted to Rs.19,387,586 thousand (2017: Rs.14,899,921 thousand) as at March 31, 2018 and are as follows:  

   2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----

 Long term loans and advances         31,481    30,108 
 Long term deposits         22,573    17,339 
 Trade debts         861,224    623,331 
 Loans and advances         35,739    34,737 
 Trade deposits         34,550    36,879 
 Accrued mark-up / interest         15,557    21,470 
 Other receivables         4,601    1,604 
 Short term investments         8,400,246    7,080,669 
 Bank balances         9,981,615    7,053,784           
          19,387,586    14,899,921 

 The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts at the reporting date by geographic region is as follows:
   2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----
          
 Pakistan         844,413    607,614 
 Bangladesh         16,811    15,717           
          861,224    623,331 

 The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts by type of counter party as at reporting date is as follows:
   2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----

 Government departments         35,891    6,647 
 Defence institutions         698,612    523,139 
 Others (including exports)         126,721    93,545           
          861,224    623,331 
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 Out of the total financial assets credit risk is concentrated in trade debts, investments in mutual funds securities and deposits 
with banks as they constitute 99% (2017: 99%) of the total financial assets. Significant part of sales of the Company occurs 
against advance payments, therefore, trade debts mainly arise from export sales and local sales that were made to Government 
and Defence Institutions. The Company believes that it is not exposed to any specific credit risk in respect of those trade debts. 

 The credit quality of loans and receivables can be assessed with reference to their historical performance with no or negligible 
defaults in recent history and no losses incurred. The credit quality of Company's bank balances and investments in mutual 
funds securities can be assessed with reference to the external credit ratings as follows:  

(c)  Liquidity risk   
 

 Liquidity risk reflects the Company's inability in raising funds to meet commitments. The Company manages liquidity risk by 
maintaining sufficient balances with banks. At March 31, 2018 there is no maturity mismatch between financial assets and 
liabilities that exposes the Company to liquidity risk.   
 

37.2 Capital management   
  

 The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it can 
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and maintain an optimal capital structure to 
reduce the cost of capital. The capital structure of the Company is equity based with no financing through long term or short 
term borrowings. 

   Rating   
 Banks Short term  Long term  Agency

 Conventional
 Allied Bank Limited       A1+ AA+  PACRA
 Askari Bank Limited       A1+ AA+  PACRA
 Bank Al Habib Limited       A1+ AA+  PACRA
 Bank Alfalah Limited       A-1+ AA+  PACRA
 Deutsche Bank AG       F-1 A-  FITCH
 Faysal Bank Limited       A-1+ AA  JCR-VIS
 Habib Bank Limited       A-1+ AAA  JCR-VIS
 Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited       A1+ AA+  PACRA
 Khushhali Bank Limited       A-1 A+  JCR-VIS
 MCB Bank Limited       A1+ AAA  PACRA
 National Bank of Pakistan       A1+ AAA  PACRA
 Soneri Bank Limited       A1+ AA-  PACRA
 Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited       A1+ AAA  PACRA
 The Bank of Tokyo - Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited       P-1 A1  MOODYS
 United Bank Limited       A-1+ AAA  JCR-VIS
 Shariah Compliant          
 BankIslami Pakistan Limited       A1 A+  PACRA
 Meezan Bank Limited       A-1+ AAA  JCR-VIS
 United Bank Limited       A-1+ AAA  JCR-VIS
 Mutual Funds        Rating  Agency
 Atlas Income Fund        AA-(f)  PACRA
 Atlas Islamic Income Fund        AA-(f)  PACRA
 Atlas Money Market Fund        AA(f)  PACRA
 Atlas Sovereign Liquid Fund        AA(f)  PACRA
 Lakson Money Market Fund        AA(f)  PACRA
 Lakson Income Fund        A+(f)  PACRA
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 Loans and At fair value
 receivables   through profit and loss
 2018 2017 2018 2017
  ---------------------- Rupees in ‘000 ----------------------
37.3 Financial instruments by category

 Financial assets as per statement of financial position 

 Long term loans and advances       31,481   30,108   -          -       
 Long term deposits        22,573   17,339   -          -       
 Trade debts       861,224   623,331   -          -       
 Loans and advances       35,739   34,737   -          -       
 Trade deposits       34,550   36,879   -          -       
 Accrued mark-up / interest       15,557   21,470   -          -       
 Other receivables       4,601   1,604   -          -       
 Short term investments       -         -         8,400,246    7,080,669 
 Bank balances              9,981,615   7,053,784   -          -       
          
        10,987,340   7,819,252   8,400,246    7,080,669  

    Financial liabilities
    measured at amortised cost
    2018 2017
    --- Rupees in ‘000 ---
 Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position

 Trade and other payables         6,729,487    6,018,274 

37.4 Fair value measurement of financial instruments 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is 
going concern and there is no intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operation or to undertake a transaction 
on adverse terms.   
 
The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements are a reasonable approximation 
of their fair values.    
 
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined 
as follows:   
 
 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities [Level 1].   

 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as  
  prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) [Level 2].   
  
 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) [Level 3].  

The following table presents the Company's financial assets that are measured at fair value at March 31, 2018 and March 31, 
2017.

  March 31, 2018
 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
  --------- Rupees in ‘000 --------- 
 Assets - Recurring fair value measurement
 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
 Short term investments 8,400,246  -      -           8,400,246 
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 Valuation techniques used to determine fair values 

 Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. 
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry 
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on 
an arm’s length basis. These instruments are included in Level 1. 

         
 Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation 

techniques. These valuation techniques maximize the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as 
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument 
is included in Level 2. 

          
 Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3. 

  There were no other material Level 1, 2 or 3 assets or liabilities during the current and preceding year.     
     

38. ENTITY-WIDE INFORMATION          

38.1 The Company markets and sells motorcycles and spare parts. Breakdown of net revenues for both the products of the 
Company is as follows:          

   2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----
          
 Motorcycles         70,412,715    58,333,750 
 Spare parts         7,066,130    6,200,271 
          
          77,478,845    64,534,021 

38.2  Export sales are made to Afghanistan and Bangladesh. Result of the Company's revenue from external customers in Pakistan 
is Rs.77,025,720 thousand (2017: Rs.64,100,446 thousand) and total revenue from external customers from other countries 
is Rs.453,125 thousand (2017: Rs.433,575 thousand).            
     

38.3 All the non-current assets of the Company are located in Pakistan.          
           
38.4 The Company's customer base is diverse with no single customer accounting for more than 10% of net revenue. 

  March 31, 2017
 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
  --------- Rupees in ‘000 ---------
 Assets - Recurring fair value measurement
 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
 Short term investments 7,080,669  -      -           7,080,669 

    There were no transfers amongst the levels during the current and preceding year. The Company’s policy is to recognise  
 transfer into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting periods.   

   2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----
39. PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

 Capacity - Motorcycles         1,250,000    1,000,000 
 Production         1,086,700    920,640 
          
 The Company has completed the capacity expansion in March, 2018.         
 
 The capacity of the plants are determined based on a certain product mix and number of working days.     
     
40. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
  Factory Others
 2018 2017 2018 2017

 Total number of employees       1,385   1,440   226   198
          
 Average number of employees       1,507   1,457   209   194
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41. PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURE

 The Company operates defined contribution provident fund (the Fund) maintained for its permanent employees. Equal monthly 
contributions at the rate of 11% of the basic salary are made to the Fund both by the Company and the employees. The 
following information is based on un-audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended March 31, 2018: 

           
   2018 2017
   ------ (Rupees in ’000) -----

 Size of the Fund - Total assets        894,830  906,053
          
 Fair value of investments        875,760  885,074
          
 Percentage of investments made        97.87%  97.68%
           
41.1  The cost of above investments amounted to Rs.863,830 thousand (2017: Rs.826,727 thousand).     
 
41.2 The break-up of fair value of investments is as follow:      
 2018 2017 2018 2017
  --- Percentage --- --- Rupees in ‘000 ---

 Debt securities       9.26 10.70  82,870    96,948 
 Government securities      40.32 39.67  360,801    359,404 
 Mutual funds securities      42.47 45.01  380,076    407,810 
 Special accounts in schedule banks      5.81 2.31  52,013    20,912 
          
        97.87  97.68  875,760    885,074 
           

41.3  The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Act and 
conditions specified thereunder.         

42. SHARIAH SCREENING DISCLOSURE

 Short term investments 7,973,000    427,246    5,920,527    1,160,142     
 Bank balances        9,964,738    16,877    7,026,411    27,373     
 Revenue -          77,478,845    -          64,534,021     
          
 Other income          
          
 a) Mark-up / interest on savings deposit            
     accounts and term deposit receipts 527,204    -          351,421    14,295   
          
 b) Gain on sale of investments at fair         
     value through profit or loss 109,726    7,437    41,416    17,862     
          
 c) Fair value gain / (loss) on investments         
     at fair value through profit or loss 199,256    (39,051)   108,163    147,276     
          
 d) Dividend income 7,164    25,251    208,793    2,100     
          
 e) Others including exchange gain on          
     actual currency -          40,921    -          25,007     

Conventional Shahriah
Compliant Conventional Shahriah

Compliant
-------------------- Rupees in 000 --------------------

-------- 2018 -------- -------- 2017 --------
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43. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

 The corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever considered necessary, to comply with the 
requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 and for the purposes of comparison and better presentation. Following major 
reclassification has been made:

  2017
 Reclassified from component Reclassified to component Rupees in ‘000
 Trade and other payable Unclaimed dividend 55,004 
  Disclosed on the face of statement
  of financial position)    

    

44. EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD   
  

 The Board of Directors, in their meeting held on April 30, 2018, (i) approved the transfer of Rs. 1,500,000 thousand (2017: 
Rs.1,000,000 thousand) from unappropriated profit to general reserve and (ii) proposed a final cash dividend of Rs. 27.0 (2017: 
Rs.18.5) per share amounting to Rs. 2,791,979 thousand (2017: Rs.1,913,022 thousand) for approval of the members at the 
Annual General Meeting to be held on June 28, 2018.   
  

 The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 do not include the effect of the proposed appropriations, which 
will be accounted for in the financial statements for year ending March 31, 2019.   

  
45. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE   

  
 These financial statements were authorised for issue on April 30, 2018 by the Board of Directors of the Company.  
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 Number of Number of 
Shareholders’ Category Shareholders     Shares held    Percentage

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties       
Atlas Insurance Limited      1   2,931,728  2.84%
Honda Motor Company Limited      1   36,192,315  35.00%
Shirazi Investments (Pvt) Limited      1   54,220,693  52.43%
       
      3   93,344,736  90.27%
       
NIT and ICP:       
National Bank Of  Pakistan Trustee Department      1   26,421  0.03%
IDBP (ICP Unit)      1   762  0.00%
       
      2   27,183  0.03%
       
Directors, CEO and their Spouses and minor children and Associates:    
   
Mr. Yusuf H.Shirazi & Associates      3   3  0.00%
Mr.Saqib H. Shirazi  (CEO)      1   1  0.00%
Mr. Sanaullah Qureshi      1   400  0.00%
Mr. Hirofumi Yada      1   1  0.00%
Mr. Susumu Mitsuishi      1   1  0.00%
Mr. Yasutaka Uda      1   1  0.00%
Mr. Abid Naqvi      1   501  0.00%
Mr. Jawaid Iqbal Ahmed      1   1  0.00%
       
      10   909  0.00%
       
Executives       -    0.00%
       
Public Sector Companies and Corporations       -    0.00%
       
Banks, Development Finance Institutions,           
Non-Banking Finance Institutions, Insurance       
Companies, Modaraba and Mutual Funds.      12   568,916  0.55%
       
Individuals      1,488   9,312,380  9.00%
       
Others      29   152,489  0.15%

Total      1,544   103,406,613  100.00%
       
       
Shareholders holding 10% or more voting interest       
       
Honda Motor Company Limited       36,192,315   35.00
Shirazi Investments (Pvt) Limited       54,220,693   52.43

There was no trading in the shares of the company by Directors, their spouses and minor children.

Pattern of Shareholding Additional Information
As at March 31, 2018
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 Number of  Total
 Shareholders Shareholdings  Shares Held
 589 From  1  To  100  19,064
 326 From  101  To  500  86,466
 150 From  501  To  1,000  113,826
 263 From  1,001  To  5,000  641,662
 74 From  5,001  To  10,000  549,933
 45 From  10,001  To  15,000  559,550
 20 From  15,001  To  20,000  356,140
 10 From  20,001  To  25,000  218,420
 13 From  25,001  To  30,000  347,408
 3 From  30,001  To  35,000  94,680
 2 From  35,001  To  40,000  76,845
 5 From  40,001  To  45,000  216,104
 4 From  45,001  To  50,000  183,289
 1 From  65,001  To  70,000  66,601
 3 From  70,001  To  75,000  217,252
 4 From  75,001  To  80,000  308,480
 3 From  80,001  To  85,000  248,042
 3 From  85,001  To  90,000  264,445
 1 From  90,001  To  95,000  92,000
 2 From  95,001  To  100,000  195,751
 2 From  110,001  To  115,000  227,696
 2 From  120,001  To  125,000  244,698
 3 From  125,001  To  130,000  384,154
 1 From  150,000  To  155,000  151,715
 1 From  160,001  To  165,000  162,011
 1 From  175,001  To  180,000  176,841
 1 From  195,001  To  200,000  199,459
 1 From  215,001  To  220,000  218,625
 1 From  225,001  To  230,000  227,627
 2 From  245,001  To  250,000  490,956
 1 From  265,001  To  270,000  267,566
 1 From  415,001  To  420,000  418,230
 1 From  490,001  To  495,000  491,833
 1 From  515,001  To  520,000  516,600
 1 From  1,025,001  To  1,030,000  1,027,908
 1 From  2,930,001  To  2,935,000  2,931,728
 1 From  36,190,001  To  36,195,000  36,192,315
 1 From  54,220,001  To  54,225,000  54,220,693
     
 1,544     103,406,613

Pattern of Shareholding
As at March 31, 2018
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  Number of 
 Shareholders’ Category Shareholders Shares held Percentage

 Directors, CEO their spouse and minor children and Associates   10  909  0.00

*  Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties   3  93,344,736  90.27

     NIT and ICP   2  27,183  0.03

     Banks, Development Finance Institutions,     

     Non-Banking Finance Institutions         

    Insurance Companies           

     Modarabas and Mutual Funds   12  568,916  0.55

     General Public      

          Local   1488  9,312,380  9.00

          Foreign           

    Others      

         Joint Stock Companies   27  151,517  0.15

         Cooperative Society   1  971  0.00

          Trustee of Iftikhar Shirazi Family Trust   1  1  0.00

     

      1544  103,406,613  100.00

 Note : Included in Associated Companies  
              Atlas Insurance Ltd. 2,931,728 shares,  
              Honda Motor Company Ltd. 36,192,315 shares,  
              Shirazi Investments (Pvt) Ltd. 54,220,693 shares.     

*

Pattern of Shareholding
As at March 31, 2018
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Shirazi Investments 1962

Atlas Honda 1962

Atlas Battery 1966

Shirazi Trading 1975

Atlas Insurance 1980*

Atlas Engineering 1981*

Honda Atlas Cars 1992

Honda Atlas Power Product 1997

Atlas Asset Management 2002

Atlas Group Companies

Atlas Power 2007

Atlas World Wide 2007

Atlas Venture 2008

Atlas Autos 2011

Atlas Hitec 2012

Atlas Metals 2012

Atlas Global 2015

Atlas Aluminium 2016

Atlas Die Casting 2016
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 ACCA Association of Chartered Certified Accountants

 AGM Annual General Meeting

 AHL Atlas Honda Limited

 AHPL Atlas Hitec (Private) Limited

 AMP Advance Management Program

 ATL Active Tax-payers List

 B2B Business to Business

 BCR Best Corporate Report

 BCG Boston Consulting Group

 BSR Best Sustainability Report

 BOD Board of Director

 CAGR Cumulative Average Growth Rate

 CCG Code of Corporate Governance

 CDC Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

 CDS Central Depository System

 CEO Chief Executive Officer

 CFO Chief Financial Officer

 CKD Completely Knocked Down

 CNIC Computerized National Identity Card

 COO Chief Operating Officer

 CPEC China - Pakistan Economic Corridor

 CSR Corporate Social Responsibility

 DFI Development Finance Institutions

 EOBI Employee Old-Age Benefits Institution

 EPS Earnings per Share

 ERP Enterprise Resource Planning - software

 FBR Federal Board of Revenue

 GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

 GDC Gravity Die Casting

 GDP Gross Domestic Product

 HMC Honda Motor Company

 HPDC High Pressure Die Casting

 HSE Health Safety Environment

Glossary of Terms
Acronym Description Acronym Description

 IAS International Accounting Standards

 ICAP Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan

 ICMAP Institute of Cost and Management Accountants of Pakistan

 IFAC International Federation of Accountants

 IFAS Islamic Financial Accounting Standards

 IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

 ISO International Standardization Organization

 KSE Karachi Stock Exchange

 LLB Bachelor of Law

 LNG Liquefied Natural Gas

 LTD Limited

 LSE Lahore Stock Exchange

 LSM Large Scale Manufacturing

 MOU Memorandum of Understanding

 MMC Minor Model Change

 MSCI Morgan Stanley Capital International

 NAV Net Asset Value

 NBFI Non-Banking Financial Institutions

 NHC New Honda Circle

 PBT Profit Before Taxation

 PERAC Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission

 PSX Pakistan Stock Exchange

 RCSM Risk and Counter Strategy Matrix

 RMF Risk Management Function

 SAFA South Asian Federation of Accountants

 SAP Standard Application Protocol - ERP system

 SECP Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

 SRO Statutory Regulatory Order

 SWOT Strenght Weaknesses Opportunities Threats

 SSGC Sui Southern Gas Company Limited

 TDR Term Deposit Receipt

 WWF World Wildlife Fund
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